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PART L.

Iltem 1. Business

BUSINESS
General

First Business Financial Services, Inc. (togethigh @dl of its subsidiaries, collectively referremlas “Corporation,” “FBFS,” “we,”
“us,” or “our”) is a registered bank holding company originallyoiporated in 1986 under the laws of the State cfddfisin and engaged in-
commercial banking business through our two whollyred bank subsidiaries, First Business Bank (“FBB&adquartered in Madison,
Wisconsin, and First Business Bank-Milwaukee (“FBBwaukee” and, together with FBB, the “Banks”),duguartered in Brookfield,
Wisconsin. All of our operations are conducted tigto the Banks and certain subsidiaries of FBB. Baweks operate as business banks
focusing on delivering a full line of commercialit@ng products, including commercial loans and caruial real estate loans, and services
tailored to meet the specific needs of small- ardinm-sized businesses, business owners, exegutivgsssionals and high net worth
individuals. The Banks generally target businesgiis annual sales between $2.0 million and $75Mani Because of their focus on business
banking, the Banks do not utilize branch netwodkattract retail clients and, to supplement thasibess banking deposit base, the Banks
utilize wholesale funding alternatives to fund atjpm of their assets. As of December 31, 2013 a @onsolidated basis, we had total assets o
$1.269 billion , total deposits of $1.130 billiondatotal stockholders’ equity of $109.3 million .

Our Business Lines
Commercial Lending

We strive to meet the specific commercial-lendiegas of small- to medium-sized companies in ogetamarket areas of Wisconsin,
primarily through lines of credit for working capitneeds and term loans to businesses with anales ketween $2.0 million and
$75.0 million. Through FBB, we have a strong pregein Madison and its surrounding areas. In 20@0ppened FBB-Milwaukee to take
advantage of the strong commercial base locatétilmaukee and the surrounding communities. In 200BB opened a loan production office
in Appleton to take advantage of the strong comrakenivironment in Northeast Wisconsin. Since theahave opened additional loan
production offices in Oshkosh and Green Bay.

Our commercial loans are typically secured by uaitypes of business assets, including inventeggivables and equipment. We
also originate loans secured by commercial reatesincluding non-residential owner-occupied comuia¢ facilities, multi-family housing,
office buildings, retail centers, and, to a lessdent, commercial real estate construction lobmgery limited cases, we may originate loans
an unsecured basis. As of December 31, 2013 ,amumercial real estate and commercial loans, exctudsset-based lending and equipment
financing, represented approximately 79.7% of otaltgross loans and leases receivable.

Asse-Based Financing

First Business Capital Corp. (“FBCC"), a wholly-osthsubsidiary of FBB, is focused on assetsed lending to smallto medium-
sized companies. With its seven sales offices éutat six states, FBCC does not limit itself to dacting business in Wisconsin.

FBCC primarily provides revolving lines of creditdaiterm loans for financial and strategic acquisii (e.g., leveraged or manager
buyouts), capital expenditures, working capitasagport rapid growth, bank debt refinancing, debtructuring, corporate turnaround
strategies and debtor-in-possession financingarctiurse of bankruptcy proceedings or the exiefinem. As a bank-owned, asdmsed lende
with strong underwriting standards, FBCC is posiéid to provide cost-effective financing solutioasdmpanies with annual sales between
$5.0 million and $50.0 million and do not have #stablished stable cash flows necessary to qualifg more traditional commercial lending
product. Asset-based lending is generally moreifafgle than traditional commercial lending. Thisdliof business complements our traditiona
commercial loan portfolio and provides us with mdieerse income opportunities. As of December 31,3, our asset-based lending line
represented 13.3% of our total gross loan and $e@seivable.
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First Business Factors (“FBF"), a division of FBGQovides factored receivable financing by purahgsiccounts receivable from
clients on a full recourse basis and advances 8p%b of the purchased receivable. FBF provides etitiye rates to clients starting up,
seeking growth and needing cash flow support, oeatly experiencing financial issues. Factoree@neable arrangements typically have
contracts of one to two years. Similar to asseetdsnding, factoring is generally more profitathian traditional commercial lending, and
complements our traditional commercial portfolitieTpurchase of the accounts receivable on a ftdlurse basis mitigates our risk and
provides us with more diverse income opportuniti#e. started this line of business in November 28i@ we believe we will continue to grc
this business in the future. The FBF office is tedain Chicago, lllinois. As of December 31, 20&8y factored receivable financing line
represented 0.1% of our total gross loan and lease$vable.

Equipment Financing

First Business Equipment Finance, LLC (“FBEF"), holy-owned subsidiary of FBB, delivers a broadgamf equipment finance
products, including leases and loans, to addresfrtAncing needs of commercial clients in a vgradtindustries. FBEF's focus includes
manufacturing equipment, industrial assets, coo8tm and transportation equipment, and drillind ail field equipment, in addition to a wi
variety of other commercial equipment. These fimage generally range between $1.0 million and $1@il0on with terms of 36 to 84 month
We believe that we will continue to grow this besia through our existing offices in Wisconsin, Kem€ity, Kansas and Denver, Colorado
of December 31, 2013, our equipment financingress line represented approximately 5.4% of oatf gybss loans and leases receivable.

Treasury Management Services

The Banks provide comprehensive services for corialezlients to manage their cash and liquiditgluding lockbox, accounts
receivable collection services, electronic paynsahitions, fraud protection, information reportimg¢onciliation and data integration solutic
The Banks also offer a variety of deposit accoants$ balance optimization solutions. As we contittuseek to diversify our income and
increase our non-interest income, we have focueddarveasing these services and have emphasizeel dfferings with new and existing
business clients.

Trust and Investment Services

FBB, through its First Business Trust & Investmatitgsion, acts as fiduciary and investment mandgeindividual and corporate
clients, creating and executing asset allocatimategjies tailored to each client’s unique situatkinst Business Trust & Investments has full
fiduciary powers and offers trust, estate, finahgianning and investment services, acting in atae or agent capacity. First Business Trust &
Investments also provides brokerage and custodysmrvices, for which it administers and safeguasisets but does not provide investment
advice. At December 31, 2013, First Business T&ulstvestments had $959.0 million of assets undanagement and administration.

Competition

The Banks encounter strong competition in attrgotiommercial loan, asset-based finance, equipnrenide and deposit clients as
well as trust and investment clients. Such comipetincludes banks, savings institutions, mortgbaeking companies, credit unions, finance
companies, equipment finance companies, mutuakfundurance companies, brokerage firms and inwegtivanking firms. The Banks’
market areas include branches of several commdraidds that are substantially larger in terms ahfand deposits. Furthermore, credit
unions exempt from income taxes operate in the Bankrket areas and aggressively price their prisdaied services to a large portion of the
market. The Banks also compete with regional anidmal financial institutions, many of which haveegter liquidity, higher lending limits,
greater access to capital, more established maegkegnition and more resources and collective égpee than the Banks. We believe that the
strength of our executive management team, theriexme and capabilities of our front-line bankingfessionals, the range and quality of the
products that we offer and our emphasis on builthmg-lasting relationships sets us apart fromammpetitors.

The following table lists the counties in which Banks have their main offices as well as certéeoinformation as of June 30,
2013, the most recent data published by the FDIC:

Total Number Total Number Total Deposits FBFS
of Banking of Banking in County FBFS Market Deposit
County Organizations Offices (In Thousands) Market Share Rank Share
Dane County 4C 187 $ 13,525,86 5 6.97%
Waukesha County 38 194 $ 10,153,34 14 2.14%
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Employees

At December 31, 2013 , we had 164 employees equaditi45.4 full-time equivalent employees. We hadighat our relationship with
our employees is good. At December 31, 2013 , wbio@r employees were represented by a union.

Our Subsidiaries
First Business Bank

FBB is a state bank chartered in 1909 under theertéimgston State Bank. In 1990, FBB relocated @k office to Madison,
Wisconsin, opened a banking facility in UniverdiRgsearch Park, and began focusing on providing-igtiity banking services to small- to
medium-sized businesses located in Madison, Wise@msl the surrounding area. FBB'’s product linetuide commercial loans, commercial
real estate loans, equipment loans and leaseseasiity management services. FBB offers a varietigposit accounts and personal loans to
business owners, executives, professionals andragtvorth individuals. FBB also offers trust andéstment services through First Business
Trust & Investments, a division of FBB. FBB hasetaioan production offices in the Northeast RegibWisconsin serving Appleton,
Oshkosh, and Green Bay and their surrounding areas.

FBB has four wholly-owned subsidiaries:

»  First Business Capital Corp., is an asset-baseatmercial lending company specializing in provigdiimes of credit, factored
receivable financing and term loans secured bywdsaeceivable, inventory, equipment and reatesissets, primarily to
manufacturers and wholesale distribution compaoiested predominately in the Midwest. FBCC wasldighed in 1995 and hi
sales offices in seven states.

» First Business Equipment Finance, LLC is a coneciaéequipment finance company offering a fullegrof finance and leasing
options to commercial clients of which the largestcentage are currently located in Wisconsinffére new and replacement
equipment loans and leases, debt restructuringatidiation, and sale-lease-back transactions thrasgrimary banking
locations in Wisconsin and business developmeitesfin Kansas City, Kansas and Denver, Colorado.

 FBB Real Estate, LLC (“FBBRE?") is a limited ligity company established for the purpose of hajdémd liquidating real estate
and other assets acquired by FBB through foreobosupther legal proceedings.

e First Madison Investment Corp. (“FMIC") is loeaktin and formed under the laws of the state ofadayand was organized for
the purpose of managing a portion of FBB’s investopertfolio.

As of December 31, 2013, FBB had total gross l@amtsleases of $867.0 million , total deposits@3%&7 million and total
stockholders’ equity of $110.8 million .

First Business Bank-Milwaukee

FBB-Milwaukee is a state bank chartered in 200W/iaconsin. We formed FBB-Milwaukee to focus on coenaial banking in the
greater Milwaukee market area. Like FBB, FBB-Milwae's product lines include commercial loans, comuiaéreal estate loans and treasury
management services for similar sized businesse®as served by FBB. FBB-Milwaukee offers a varigitdeposit accounts and personal
loans to business owners, executives, professiamaldigh net worth individuals. FBB-Milwaukee afsfters trust and investment services
through a trust service office agreement with FBBB-Milwaukee has one wholly-owned subsidiary, FBBwaukee Real Estate, LLC
(“FBBMRE"), which is a limited liability company ésblished for the purpose of holding and liquidatiral estate and other assets acquired
through foreclosure or other legal proceedings.

As of December 31, 2013, FBB-Milwaukee had tatahls of $114.7 million , total deposits of $197 i@iam and total stockholders’
equity of $16.3 million .

FBFS Statutory Trust Il

In September 2008 , we formed FBFS Statutory TiysTrust 11"), a Delaware business trust whollywvaed by FBFS. In 2008 ,
Trust Il completed the sale of $10.0 million of 3% fixed rate trust preferred securities. Trustl$lo issued
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common securities in the amount of $315,000 tdrusst |l used the proceeds from the offering tochase $10.3 million of 10.5% junior
subordinated notes issued by us. FBFS has thetdgktieem the junior subordinated notes at eaeheist payment date on or after
September 26, 2013 . The preferred securities aredatorily redeemable upon the maturity of thegusiubordinated notes on September 26,
2038 . FBFS’s ownership interest in Trust Il haslmen consolidated into the financial statements.

Corporate Information

Our principal executive offices are located at @bftarmany Drive, Madison, Wisconsin 53719 and olepteone number is (608) 238-
8008. We maintain an Internet website at www.fiusihess.com. This Form 10-K and all of our othémds under the Securities Exchange Ac
of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), are afidlthrough that website, free of charge, inclgdiapies of our proxy statement, annual
reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on FormQ,Qzurrent reports on Form 8-K and any amendmeritsase reports, on the date that we
file those materials with, or furnish them to, ®ecurities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”). Thiisg$ are also available to the public on
the internet at the SEC’s website at www.sec.gbaré&holders may also read and copy any documenivehfile at the SEC’s public reference
rooms located at 100 F Street, NE, Washington, D&19. Shareholders may call the SEC at 1-800-SHID-@® further information on the
public reference room.

Our Market Area

Although certain of our business lines are markétegughout the Midwest and beyond, our primaryketareas lie in Wisconsin.
Specifically, our three target market areas comgisadison and Milwaukee, Wisconsin and their sunding communities, and Northeastern
Wisconsin, including Appleton, Green Bay and Oshid¥isconsin and their surrounding communities.Heafcour primary markets provide:
unique set of economic and demographic charadgtsristich provide us with a variety of strategigoptunities. A brief description of each of
our primary markets is as follows:

Madison

As the capital city of Wisconsin and home of thauwdrsity of Wisconsin - Madison, our Madison matlsgiecifically Dane County,
offers an appealing economic environment populbted highly educated workforce (more than 45% efgibpulation of Dane County age 25
or older holds a bachelor’s degree or higher degeceerding to the U.S. Census Bureau, as compar2@% for the State of Wisconsin as a
whole). While the economy of the Madison marketrigsen in large part by the government and edunatextors, there is also a diverse array
of industries outside of these segments, includiggificant concentration of insurance companie® (of which, American Family Insurance
Group, is a Fortune 500 Company) and agricultuetdted industries. Madison is also home to a canaon of research and development
related companies, which benefit from the areatngt governmental and academic ties, as well abtiversity of Wisconsin Hospital, which
provides healthcare services to the South Centrst&ksin market.

According to the U.S. Census Bureau, as of Aprild10 (the 2010 Census Date), the Madison metrapoditatistical area ("MSA"),
consisting of Dane County, Columbia County and I&@eanty, had a total population of 568,593 and @23 total households. Since 2000, the
Madison MSA has experienced population growth &fol8ompared to the State of Wisconsin's populajiromvth rate of 6%. Due to the
composition of its workforce and major economicvdrs, the Madison area generally experienced fewreerse economic effects than many
other areas of the country during the period oflehging economic conditions in recent years. Aapfil, 2010, the five-year average median
household income level in Dane County - the largesnty within the Madison MSA - was $60,519, whatimpares favorably to the average
median household income levels in the United Stanelsthe State of Wisconsin of $51,914 and $51,&%ectively. According tpreliminary
Bureau Labor of Statistics data, as of DecembeB2@hie unadjusted unemployment rate in the Madid8/A was 4.0% compared to the
national unemployment rate of 6.5% and an unempémytmate in the State of Wisconsin of 5.8% . Theraployment rate in the Madison
MSA improved 0.7% from December 2012 , compareithéamprovement in the national and Wisconsin ayesawhich was 1.1% and 0.8% ,
respectively over the same period.

Milwaukee

Our Milwaukee market, the primary commercial anduistrial hub for Southeastern Wisconsin, providds/arse economic base, w
both a highly skilled labor force and significanamufacturing base. The most prominent economioseat the Milwaukee market include
manufacturing, financial services, health careediified service companies and education. The mpelitan area ranks among the top
manufacturing centers in the United States. Milvesl& percentage of workforce in the manufacturegja is one of the highest of any MSA.
In addition to this strong manufacturing base, Milikee is home to several major hospitals, provitiegjth services to the greater
Southeastern Wisconsin market, several
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large academic institutions including the Universif Wisconsin-Milwaukee and Marquette Universepd a wide variety of small- to medium-
size firms with representatives in nearly everystdal classification. The Milwaukee area is als® home to six Fortune 500 companies,
including Johnson Controls, Inc., Harley Davidsio,, Kohl's Corporation, Rockwell Automation, IndélanPower Group and Northwestern
Mutual.

According to the U.S. Census Bureau, as of Aprild10 (the 2010 Census Date), the Milwaukee MSAsixting of Milwaukee
County, Ozaukee County, Washington County, and Wsluk County, had a total population of 1,555,9@B6&ib,847 total households. Since
2000, the Milwaukee MSA has experienced a populagimwth of 4%, compared to the State of Wiscosspopulation growth rate of 6%. As
of April, 2010, the five-year average median howd@lincome level in Waukesha County - our primagrket within the Milwaukee Area -
was $75,064, which compares favorably to the meld@arsehold income level averages in the UniteceStand the State of Wisconsin of
$51,914 and $51,598, respectively. Despite theogenf challenging economic conditions in recentrgethe Milwaukee area has begun to
experience improvement in its general economicatémAs of December 2013 , the preliminary unadgisnemployment rate in the
Milwaukee MSA was 6.2% , compared to the natiomemployment rate of 6.5% and an unemployment ratiee State of Wisconsin
generally of 5.8% . The unemployment rate in théndilkee MSA improved 0.7% from December 2012 , carag to the improvement in the
national and Wisconsin averages, which was 1.19%0a8#%b , respectively, over the same period.

Northeastern Wisconsin

The cities of Appleton, Green Bay, and Oshkosh,céfisin serve as the primary population centersiifwrtheast Wisconsin mark
and provide an attractive market to a variety distries, including transportation, utilities, pagkng and diversified services, with the most
significant economic drivers being the manufactyripackaging and paper goods industries. The nigrsfisant individual employers in this
market include Bemis Company, Inc., a packagingpmamy, and Oshkosh Corporation, a specialty truckufecturer, each of which is a
Fortune 500 company. As the home of the Green Bakéts NFL franchise, tourism is also a meaninigifdlistry in this market.

According to the U.S. Census Bureau, as of Aprdd10 (the 2010 Census Date), the three major MSAsr Northeast Wisconsin
market (Appleton, Green Bay and Oshkd$#enah) had a total population of 698,901 and taiakeholds of 275,674. Since 2000, these V
have experienced a population growth of 9%, comptrehe State of Wisconsin’s population growtlerat 6%. As of April, 2010, the five-
year average median household income level in @QmégCounty- where our primary loan production office in thégjion is located - was
$55,914, compared to the median household incowet dverages in the United States and the Staféisfonsin of $51,914 and $51,598,
respectively. According to the Bureau of Labor iStats, as of December 2013 , the preliminary urlegmpent rate in the three major MSAs in
this market ranged from 5.1% to 5.3% , comparatiémnational unemployment rate of 6.5% and an ut@ymgent rate in the State of
Wisconsin of 5.8% . These unemployment rates imguid8% from December 2012 in all three major M82this market, compared to the
improvement in the national and Wisconsin averagb#gh was 1.1% and 0.8% , respectively, over #mesperiod.

Executive Officers of the Registrant

The following contains certain information about #xecutive officers of FBFS. There are no fanmghationships between any
directors or executive officers of FBFS.

Corey A. Chambasge 51, has served as a director of FBFS since July 2692héef Executive Officer since December 2006 ad a
President since February 2005. He served as Clpiefafing Officer of FBFS from February 2005 to ®ember 2006 and as Executive Vice
President from July 2002 to February 2005. He skageChief Executive Officer of FBB from July 19@9September 2006 and as President ¢
FBB from July 1999 to February 2005. He also cutyeserves as a director of our subsidiaries FBGQ Rirst Madison Investment Corp. Mr.
Chambas has over 25 years of commercial bankingrieqe. Prior to joining FBFS, he was a Vice Riesi of Commercial Lending with
M&I Bank, now known as BMO Harris Bank, in Madisaf¥jsconsin.

James F. Ropellage 54, has served as Senior Vice President ared Elhiancial Officer of FBFS since September 2000.Ropella
also serves as the Chief Financial Officer of ezfdinie Banks. He also currently serves as a diredtour subsidiaries First Madison
Investment Corp. and FBB - Milwaukee. Mr. Ropeltes lover 30 years of experience in finance and attay primarily in the banking
industry. Prior to joining FBFS, Mr. Ropella waedsurer of a consumer products company. Prioratp e was Treasurer of Firstar
Corporation, now known as U.S. Bancorp. On Febr@@r2014, Mr. Ropella announced his plans togdtwm his position during the fourth
quarter of 2014. In order to ensure a smooth tti@msiMr. Ropella will remain in his position at FB as we conduct a thorough search for his
replacement. We anticipate establishing a longen-tmnsulting arrangement with Mr. Ropella follogihis retirement.
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Michael J. Loseneggeage 56, has served as Chief Credit Officer of FBFS since/ [@@l1. Mr. Losenegger also serves as the Chief
Credit Officer of the Banks. He also currently senas a director for our subsidiaries First Madismestment Corp., FBCC and FBEF. Pria
being appointed Chief Credit Officer, Mr. Losenegserved as FBFS’s Chief Operating Officer sincpt&maber 2006. Mr. Losenegger joined
FBFS in 2003 and has held various positions witB FBcluding Chief Executive Officer, Chief Operagi Officer and Senior Vice Presiden:
Business Development. Mr. Losenegger has over atsya experience in commercial lending. Priordiaipng FBFS, Mr. Losenegger was
Senior Vice President of Lending at M&I Bank, nomokvn as BMO Harris Bank, in Madison, Wisconsin.

Barbara M. Conleyage 60, has served as FBFS’s General Counsel since Juiea?@las Senior Vice President/Corporate Secretar
since December 2007. Ms. Conley also serves asr@ldbeunsel, Senior Vice President and Corporateedary of the Banks. She has also
served as a Director of FBCC since June 2009. Mal&y has over 30 years of experience in commelbeiaking. Directly prior to joining
FBFS in 2007, Ms. Conley was a Senior Vice Predide@orporate Banking with Associated Bank. She been employed at Associated
Bank since May 1976.

Jodi A. Chandlerage 49, has served as Senior Vice President-Human Reso&raesninistration of FBFS since January 2010. Prior
to that, she held the position of Senior Vice Rtesi-Human Resources for several years. She hasabeamployee of FBFS for over 20 years

Mark J. Meloyage 52, has served as President and Chief Execddtiieer of FBB since December 2007. Mr. Meloy jethFBFS in
2000 and has held various positions including Etteew/ice President of FBB and President and Chiefcutive Officer of FBB-Milwaukee.
He currently serves as CEO of FBEF. He also cuyreefrves as a director of our subsidiaries FBBRERBEF. Mr. Meloy has over 25 years of
commercial lending experience. Prior to joining FBMr. Meloy was a Vice President and Senior Refestiip Manager with Firstar
Bank, NA, Cedar Rapids, lowa and Milwaukee, Wis@onisow known as U.S. Bank, working in their fingaldnstitutions group with mergers
and acquisition financing.

Joan A. Burkeage 62, has served as President of FBB’s Trussbivisince September 2001. Ms. Burke has over 85y
experience in providing trust and investment advirér to joining FBFS, Ms. Burke was the Prestdéief Executive Officer and
Chairperson of the Board of Johnson Trust Compawlycartain of its affiliates.

Charles H. Batsorage 60, has served as the President and Chief e Qifficer of FBCC since January 2006. He alsvagas a
director for FBCC. Mr. Batson has over 30 years)gierience in asset-based lending. Directly pagoining FBCC, Mr. Batson served as
Vice President and Business Development Managaifedls Fargo Business Credit, Inc. since 1990.

David J. Vettaage 59, has served as President and Chief Execddtiicer of FBB-Milwaukee since January 2007. Hgoaderves as a
director for FBB-Milwaukee. Prior to joining FBB-Mvaukee, Mr. Vetta was Managing Director at JP Mardsset Management since 1992
overseeing National Institutional Investment Saé@sns and the Regional Private Client Group, wdgleving as a member of the executive
committee. Mr. Vetta was affiliated with JP Morgahase and its predecessor companies in various ratles since 1976.

SUPERVISION AND REGULATION

Below is a brief description of certain laws andukations that relate to us and the Banks. Thisatiae does not purport to be
complete and is qualified in its entirety by refaze to applicable laws and regulations.

General

Financial institutions, their holding companies a&heir affiliates are extensively regulated undeteral and state law. As a result, our
growth and earnings performance may be affectedmigtby management decisions and general econconiditions, but also by the
requirements of federal and state statutes antébyegulations and policies of various bank regmaagencies, including the Division of
Banking of the Wisconsin Department of Financiaititutions (the “WDFI"), the Board of Governorstbke Federal Reserve System (the
“Federal Reserve”), the Federal Deposit Insuranmg@ration (the “FDIC”) and the Bureau of Consurigrancial Protection (the “CFPB”).
Furthermore, taxation laws administered by therfrdeRevenue Service and state taxing authordiesounting rules developed by the
Financial Accounting Standards Board and secuffigis administered by the SEC and state secusti#f®orities have an impact on our
business. The effect of these statutes, regulatiegslatory policies and accounting rules areifigant to our operations and results, and the
nature and




extent of future legislative, regulatory or othbanges affecting financial institutions are impbksto predict with any certainty.

Federal and state banking laws impose a compratesgstem of supervision, regulation and enforceraprihe operations of
financial institutions, their holding companies aftiliates that is intended primarily for the peotion of the FDIC-insured deposits and
depositors of banks, rather than shareholders.eMeeteral and state laws, and the regulationseobénk regulatory agencies issued under
them, affect, among other things, the scope oftass, the kinds and amounts of investments banksmake, reserve requirements, capital
levels relative to operations, the nature and armoticollateral for loans, the establishment ofrfafzes, the ability to merge, consolidate and
acquire, dealings with insiders and affiliates #melpayment of dividends. Moreover, turmoil in tredit markets in recent years prompted the
enactment of unprecedented legislation which altbthe U.S. Department of the Treasury (the “Treg3uo make equity capital available to
qualifying financial institutions to help restorerdidence and stability in the U.S. financial mask& his legislation imposes additional
requirements on institutions in which the Treaduag an investment.

This supervisory and regulatory framework subjéetisks and bank holding companies to regular examinhy their respective
regulatory agencies, which results in examinateports and ratings that are not publicly availalvld that can impact the conduct and growth
of their businesses. These examinations consideymy compliance with applicable laws and regulasi, but also capital levels, asset quality
and risk, management ability and performance, agmiliquidity, and various other factors. The flagnry agencies generally have broad
discretion to impose restrictions and limitatiomstbe operations of a regulated entity where tleneigs determine, among other things, that
such operations are unsafe or unsound, fail to &pmith applicable law or are otherwise inconsisteith laws and regulations or with the
supervisory policies of these agencies.

The following is a summary of the material elemeftthe supervisory and regulatory framework aggilie to us and the Banks. It
does not describe all of the statutes, regulatmtsregulatory policies that apply, nor does itatesall of the requirements of those that are
described. The descriptions are qualified in teatirety by reference to the particular statutargl eegulatory provision.

Financial Regulatory Reform

On July 21, 2010, President Obama signed the DoddkPNall Street Reform and Consumer Protection(tha “Dodd-Frank Act”)
into law. The Dodd-rank Act represents a sweeping reform of the BuBervisory and regulatory framework applicablértancial institution
and capital markets in the wake of the global foialncrisis, certain aspects of which are descriteddw in more detail. In particular, and
among other things, the Dodd-Frank Act: (i) creadenancial Stability Oversight Council as paraakgulatory structure for identifying
emerging systemic risks and improving interageragyperation; (ii) created the CFPB, which is authedito regulate providers of consumer
credit, savings, payment and other consumer fidpcoducts and services; (iii) narrowed the saoffederal preemption of state consumer
laws enjoyed by national banks and federal savasgsciations and expanded the authority of stadenays general to bring actions to enforce
federal consumer protection legislation; (iv) impdsnore stringent capital requirements on bankihgldompanies and subjected certain
activities, including interstate mergers and adtjoiss, to heightened capital conditions; (v) wispect to mortgage lending, (a) significantly
expanded requirements applicable to loans secyréditfamily residential real property, (b) imposedcditrules on mortgage servicing, and
required the originator of a securitized loan,he& $ponsor of a securitization, to retain at |18&stof the credit risk of securitized exposures
unless the underlying exposures are qualified esgidl mortgages or meet certain underwriting stadst (vi) repealed the prohibition on the
payment of interest on business checking accoqritsrestricted the interchange fees payable duitdeard transactions for issuers with $10
billion in assets or greater; (viii) prohibitedtime so-called “Volcker Rule Subject to numerous exceptions, depository ingtitstand affiliate
from making certain investments in, and sponsorshipedge funds and private equity funds and femgaging in proprietary trading; (ix)
provided for enhanced regulation of advisers togid funds and of the derivatives markets; (x) aokd oversight of credit rating agencies;
and (xi) prohibited banking agency requirementd teecredit ratings. These statutory changes shifie regulatory framework for financial
institutions, impacted the way in which they doibass and have the potential to constrain revenues.

Numerous provisions of the Dodd-Frank Act are regflito be implemented through rulemaking by theampate federal regulatory
agencies. Many of the required regulations have Issied and others have been released for pudstinent, but there remain a number that
have yet to be released in any form. Furthermohélewthe reforms primarily target systemically innamt financial service providers, their
influence is expected to filter down in varying degs to smaller institutions over time. Our managetwill continue to evaluate the effect of
the Dodd-Frank Act changes; however, in many rdspéte ultimate impact of the Dodd-Frank Act widlit be fully known for years, and no
current assurance may be given




that the Dodd-Frank Act, or any other new legiskatthanges, will not have a negative impact orrélalts of operations and financial
condition of FBFS and the Banks.

The Increasing Regulatory Emphasis on Capital

Regulatory capital represents the net assetsinfadial institution available to absorb lossesc&ese of the risks attendant to their
business, depository institutions are generallyireq to hold more capital than other businesség;wdirectly affects earnings capabilities.
While capital has historically been one of the kegasures of the financial health of both bank Imgjdiompanies and banks, its role is
becoming fundamentally more important in the wakthe global financial crisis, as the banking regois recognized that the amount and
quality of capital held by banks prior to the igias insufficient to absorb losses during perafdsevere stress. Certain provisions of the
Dodd-Frank Act and Basel Ill, discussed below, ldi&th strengthened capital standards for banksanét holding companies, require more
capital to be held in the form of common stock diséllow certain funds from being included in capiteterminations. Once fully
implemented, these standards will represent regyl@apital requirements that are significantly enstringent than those in place currently
historically.

FBFS and Bank Required Capital LevelBank holding companies have historically had to plymvith less stringent capital
standards than their bank subsidiaries and weeetalvhise capital with hybrid instruments suclrast preferred securities. The Dodd-Frank
Act mandated the Federal Reserve to establish mmirapital levels for bank holding companies omisolidated basis that are as stringent
as those required for insured depository instingicAs a consequence, the components of holdingg@oynpermanent capital known as “Tier 1
Capital” are being restricted to capital instrunsetitat are considered to be Tier 1 Capital forradulepository institutions. A result of this
change is that the proceeds of hybrid instrumesuish as trust preferred securities, are being drddrom Tier 1 Capital unless such securitie
were issued prior to May 19, 2010 by bank holdiampanies with less than $15 billion of assets,exttip certain restrictions. Because we
have assets of less than $15 billion, we are abteaintain our trust preferred proceeds, subjecettain restrictions, as Tier 1 Capital, but will
have to comply with new capital mandates in otlespects and will not be able to raise Tier 1 Chpitthe future through the issuance of trust
preferred securities.

Under current federal regulations, the Banks abgestito the following minimum capital standards:

* aleverage requirement, consisting of a mininmatio of Tier 1 Capital to total adjusted book ass# 3% for the most
highly-rated banks with a minimum requirement offeaist 4% for all others, and

» arisk-based capital requirement, consisting ofinimum ratio of Total Capital to total risk-whaigd assets of 8% and a
minimum ratio of Tier 1 Capital to total risk-weiggd assets of 4%.

For these purposes, “Tier 1 Capitalinsists primarily of common stock, noncumulatiegpgtual preferred stock and related sul
less intangible assets (other than certain loaricieg rights and purchased credit card relatiopshi“Total Capital’consists primarily of Tie
1 Capital plus “Tier 2 Capitalivhich includes other nonpermanent capital itemshsas certain other debt and equity instrumentsdbano
qualify as Tier 1 Capital, and a portion of the Bsinrespective allowance for loan and lease losBagher, “risk-weighted asset$dr the
purposes of the risk-weighted ratio calculatioresizalance sheet assets and off-balaheet exposures to which required risk weightirfg3%t
to 100% are applied.

The capital standards described above are minineguirements and will be increased under Basehdlidiscussed below. Bank
regulatory agencies are uniformly encouraging bamdsbank holding companies to be “well-capitalizaad, to that end, federal law and
regulations provide various incentives for bankimganizations to maintain regulatory capital aelevn excess of minimum regulatory
requirements. For example, a banking organizatiahis “well-capitalized” may: (i) qualify for exgmtions from prior notice or application
requirements otherwise applicable to certain tygfesctivities; (ii) qualify for expedited procesginf other required notices or applications;
(iii) accept brokered deposits. Under the cap#gutations of the FDIC and Federal Reserve, inraalbe “well-capitalized,” a banking
organization, under current federal regulationsstnmogaintain:

* aleverage ratio of Tier 1 Capital to total aset5% or greate
» aratio of Tier 1 Capital to total riskeighted assets of 6% or greater,
» aratio of Total Capital to total riskeighted assets of 10% or gree

The FDIC and Federal Reserve guidelines also peavidt banks and bank holding companies experignistarnal growth or making
acquisitions will be expected to maintain capitaifions substantially above the minimum superyidevels without significant reliance on
intangible assets. Furthermore, the guidelinesatdithat the agencies will continue to




consider a “tangible Tier 1 leverage ratio” (dedugtall intangibles) in evaluating proposals foparsion or to engage in new activities.

Higher capital levels may also be required if watea by the particular circumstances or risk pesfibf individual banking
organizations. For example, the Federal Resenagigal guidelines contemplate that additional adpitay be required to take adequate
account of, among other things, interest rate oslthe risks posed by concentrations of credittraalitional activities or securities trading
activities. Further, any banking organization eigraeing or anticipating significant growth would bepected to maintain capital ratios,
including tangible capital positions.€., Tier 1 Capital less all intangible assets), \ablbve the levels to be considered well-capitalized.

Prompt Corrective Action A banking organizatios capital plays an important role in connectiorhwégulatory enforcement as wi
Federal law provides the federal banking regulatétis broad power to take prompt corrective actmmesolve the problems of
undercapitalized institutions. The extent of thgulators’ powers depends on whether the instituticquestion is “well-capitalized,”
“adequately capitalized,” “undercapitalized,” “sificantly undercapitalized” or “critically undercaglized,” in each case as defined by
regulation. Depending upon the capital categomyticch an institution is assigned, the regulatomstective powers include: (i) requiring the
institution to submit a capital restoration plaii); I{miting the institution’s asset growth and testing its activities; (iii) requiring the instition
to issue additional capital stock (including aduitl voting stock) or to sell itself; (iv) restiiog transactions between the institution and its
affiliates; (v) restricting the interest rate thia¢ institution may pay on deposits; (vi) orderangew election of directors of the institution;iYvi
requiring that senior executive officers or direstbe dismissed; (viii) prohibiting the institutitrom accepting deposits from correspondent
banks; (ix) requiring the institution to divest tzn subsidiaries; (x) prohibiting the payment dhpipal or interest on subordinated debt; and
(xi) ultimately, appointing a receiver for the iigtion.
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As of December 31, 2013: (i) neither of the Banksewsubject to a directive from the FDIC to inceetts capital to an amount in
excess of the minimum regulatory capital requiretsieand (ii) the Banks were each “well-capitaliZea defined by FDIC regulations. As of
December 31, 2013, FBFS had regulatory capitak@ess of the Federal Reserve’s requirements anth@m@&odd-Frank Act requirements.

The Basel International Capital Accordg:he current risk-based capital guidelines descrdizule, which apply to the Banks and are
being phased in for FBFS, are based upon the 1888t accord known as “Basel I” adopted by thernational Basel Committee on Banking
Supervision, a committee of central banks and Isaiplervisors, as implemented by the U.S. federdtibgrregulators on an interagency
basis. In 2008, the banking agencies collaboratikeban to phase-in capital standards based ccoadeapital accord, referred to as “Basel
II,” for large or “core” international banks (geadly defined for U.S. purposes as having total &sse$250 billion or more, or consolidated
foreign exposures of $10 billion or more). Basediphasized internal assessment of credit, markkoperational risk, as well as supervisory
assessment and market discipline in determiningnmim capital requirements.

On September 12, 2010, the Group of Governors aatisiof Supervision, the oversight body of the B@senmittee on Banking
Supervision, announced agreement on a strengttsened capital requirements for banking organizegiaround the world, known as Basel
to address deficiencies recognized in connectidh thie global financial crisis. Basel 11l was inteed to be effective globally on January 1,
2013, with phase-in of certain elements continwingl January 1, 2019, and it is currently effeetim many countries.

U.S. Implementation of Basel IllAfter an extended rulemaking process that inclumlpdolonged comment period, in July 2013, the

U.S. federal banking agencies approved the impléatien of the Basel Ill regulatory capital reforingertinent part, and, at the same time,
promulgated rules effecting certain changes requisethe Dodd-Frank Act (the “Basel 11l Rule”). tontrast to capital requirements
historically, which were in the form of guidelindsasel 11l was released in the form of regulatibgsach of the agencies. The Basel Il Rul
applicable to all U.S. banks that are subject toimiim capital requirements, including federal aradesbanks and savings and loan
associations, as well as to bank and savings amdHolding companies other than “small bank holdiogpanies” (generally bank holding
companies with consolidated assets of less tha@ 88ilion). Generally, financial institutions (exatefor large, internationally active financial
institutions) become subject to the new rules audey 1, 2015. However, there will be separate @liaphase-out periods for: (i) the capital
conservation buffer; (ii) regulatory capital adjusints and deductions; (iii) nonqualifying capitatruments; and (iv) changes to the FDIC's
prompt corrective action rules (each as discusseldr below). The phase-in periods commence onalgri, 2016 and extend until 2019.

The Basel Ill Rule not only increases most of #aguired minimum capital ratios, but it introducke toncept of “Common Equity
Tier 1 Capital,"which consists primarily of common stock, relatedotus (net of Treasury stock), retained earniags, Common Equity Tier
minority interests subject to certain regulatorjuatinents. The Basel Ill Rule also




expanded the definition of capital as in effectrently by establishing more stringent criteria timstruments must meet to be considered
Additional Tier 1 Capital (Tier 1 Capital in additi to Common Equity) and Tier 2 Capital. A numbkingtruments that now qualify as Tier 1
Capital will not qualify, or their qualificationsilvchange. For example, cumulative preferred stac#t certain hybrid capital instruments,
including trust preferred securities, will no longgialify as Tier 1 Capital of any kind, with theception, subject to certain restrictions, of s
instruments issued before May 10, 2010 by bankihgldompanies with total consolidated assets af flean $15 billion as of December 31,
2009. For those institutions, trust preferred siéiesrand other nonqualifying capital instrumenisrently included in consolidated Tier 1
Capital are permanently grandfathered under thelBHsRule, subject to certain restrictions. Nonoulative perpetual preferred stock, which
now qualifies as simple Tier 1 Capital, will notadify as Common Equity Tier 1 Capital, but will difiaas Additional Tier 1 Capital. The
Basel Il Rule also constrains the inclusion of amity interests, mortgage-servicing assets, andrdad tax assets in capital and requires
deductions from Common Equity Tier 1 Capital in #vent such assets exceed a certain percentag@asikées Common Equity Tier 1 Capital.

The Basel Il Rule requires:

* anew required ratio of minimum Common EquitgrTl equal to 4.5% of riskreighted asset

e anincrease in the minimum required amount ef Ti Capital from the current level of 4% of tadabkets to 6% of risk-
weighted assets;

e acontinuation of the current minimum requiredoaint of Total Capital (Tier 1 plus Tier 2) at 8%urisk-weighted assets; a

e aminimum leverage ratio of Tier 1 Capital to tasets equal to 4% in all circumstan

In addition, institutions that seek the freedonmiake capital distributions (including dividends amgurchases of stock) and pay
discretionary bonuses to executive officers with@striction must also maintain 2.5% in Common Bqtiier 1 attributable to a capital
conservation buffer to be phased in over threesybaginning in 2016. The purpose of the consemdtidfer is to ensure that banks maintain :
buffer of capital that can be used to absorb lodsesg periods of financial and economic stresstéring in the fully phased-in conservation
buffer increases the minimum ratios depicted aliov&o for Common Equity Tier 1, 8.5% for Tier 1 @apand 10.5% for Total Capital. The
leverage ratio is not impacted by the conservatigffier.

The Basel Il Rule maintained the general structiréne current prompt corrective action framewarkijle incorporating the
increased requirements. The prompt corrective magfiodelines were also revised to add the Commauitdjier 1 Capital ratio. In order to be
a “well-capitalized” depository institution undéretnew regime, a bank or holding company must ra@ird Common Equity Tier 1 Capital
ratio of 6.5% or more, a Tier 1 Capital ratio of 8amore, a Total Capital ratio of 10% or more, aridverage ratio of 5% or more. It is
possible under the Basel lll Rule to be well-cdjatal while remaining out of compliance with thepital conservation buffer discussed above.

The Basel Ill Rule revises a number of the riskghitings (or their methodologies) for bank asseds$ éine used to determine the ca|
ratios. For nearly every class of assets, the Bdeule requires a more complex, detailed andbcated assessment of credit risk and
calculation of risk weightings. While Basel Il widuhave changed the risk weighting for residentialtgage loans based on loan-to-value
ratios and certain product and underwriting chamstics, there was concern in the United Statasthie proposed methodology for risk
weighting residential mortgage exposures and thkeririsk weightings for certain types of mortgageducts would increase costs to
consumers and reduce their access to mortgage. gkedi result, the Basel Il Rule did not effduistchange, and banks will continue to apply
a risk weighting of 50% or 100% to their exposumaf residential mortgages, with the risk weightitggpending on, among other things,
whether the mortgage was a prudently underwrititshlfen mortgage.

Furthermore, there was significant concern notethbyfinancial industry in connection with the Bla$lerulemaking as to the
proposed treatment of accumulated other comprefeirgtome (“AOCI”). Basel Ill requires unrealizedigs and losses on available-for-sale
securities to flow through to regulatory capitalog@osed to the current treatment, which neutrsiizeeh effects. Recognizing the problem for
community banks, the U.S. bank regulatory agerailepted the Basel Il Rule with a one-time elecfiansmaller institutions like FBFS and
the Banks to opt out of including most element&®fCl in regulatory capital. This opt-out, which mib& made in the first quarter of 2015,
would exclude from regulatory capital both unreatizains and losses on availablegate debt securities and accumulated net gaintoare:
on cash-flow hedges and amounts attributable tioel@benefit post-retirement plans. Our managerfisentrrently evaluating whether we will
make the opt-out election.
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FBFS

General.We are a bank holding company registered undeB#m Holding Company Act of 1956, as amended (“BHCAnd are
subject to regulation, supervision, and examinalipthe Federal Reserve. We are required to filararual report with the Federal Reserve
such other reports as the Federal Reserve mayeeduiaccordance with Federal Reserve policy,andow codified by the Dodd-Frank Act,
we are legally obligated to act as a source ofiéie strength to the Banks and to commit resout@esipport the Banks in circumstances
where we might not otherwise do so. Under the BH®A are subject to periodic examination by the FadReserve.

Acquisitions, Activities and Change in ControlThe primary purpose of a bank holding company isotatrol and manage banks. The
BHCA generally requires the prior approval of trexlEral Reserve for any merger involving a bankihgldompany or any acquisition by a
bank holding company of another bank or bank hgldiompany. Subject to certain conditions (includilegosit concentration limits
established by the BHCA and the Dodd-Frank Acg,Federal Reserve may allow us to acquire bankddddn any state of the United States.
In approving interstate acquisitions, the FederddRve is required to give effect to applicabléestaw limitations on the aggregate amount of
deposits that may be held by the acquiring bandlinglcompany and its insured depository institutdfiliates in the state in which the target
bank is located (provided that those limits dodistriminate against out-of-state depository in$itins or their holding companies) and state
laws that require that the target bank have beexistence for a minimum period of time (not to @xd five years) before being acquired by al
out-of-state bank holding company. Furthermore&deordance with the Dodd-Frank Act, bank holdingnpanies must be well-capitalized and
well-managed in order to effect interstate mergemcquisitions. For a discussion of the applicablgital requirements, see “The Increasing
Regulatory Emphasis on Capital” above.

The BHCA limits the amount of our investment in agmpany that is not a bank and our ability to gi@ga any business other than
that of banking, managing and controlling bankfuanishing services to banks and their subsidiafi&ss limitation is subject to a number of
exceptions. The principal exception allows banldir@ companies to engage in, and to own sharesropanies engaged in, certain businesse
found by the Federal Reserve prior to Novemberl 929 to be “so closely related to banking . .tcdse a proper incident thereto.” This
authority would permit us to engage in a varietypanfking-related businesses, including the ownprahd operation of a thrift, or any entity
engaged in consumer finance, equipment leasingypbeation of a computer service bureau (includiofjware development) and mortgage
banking and brokerage. The BHCA generally doesptaate territorial restrictions on the domestic\atits of nonbank subsidiaries of bank
holding companies.

Additionally, bank holding companies that meet @iereligibility requirements prescribed by the BH@Ad elect to operate as
financial holding companies may engage in, or olarass in companies engaged in, a wider range dfarking activities, including securities
and insurance underwriting and sales, merchantibgmnd any other activity that the Federal Resarveonsultation with the Secretary of the
Treasury, determines by regulation or order isrfaial in nature or incidental to any such finanaiefivity or that the Federal Reserve
determines by order to be complementary to any §nahcial activity and does not pose a substangalto the safety or soundness of
depository institutions or the financial system gratly. We have not elected to operate as a fimdhalding company.

Federal law also prohibits any person or compammfacquiring “control” of an FDIC-insured depositanstitution or its holding
company without prior notice to the appropriatesied bank regulator. “Control” is conclusively puesed to exist upon the acquisition of 25%
or more of the outstanding voting securities ohakor bank holding company, but may arise undeaitecircumstances between 10% and
24.99% ownership.

Capital RequirementsBank holding companies are required to maintairitabin accordance with Federal Reserve capitatjadey
requirements, as affected by the Dodd-Frank ActBaskl Ill. For a discussion of these capital rezgmients, see “-The Increasing Regulatory
Emphasis on Capital” above.

U.S. Government Investment in Bank Holding Compasi&vents in the U.S. and global financial marketslieg up to the global
financial crisis, including deterioration of the sidwide credit markets, created significant chades for financial institutions throughout the
country beginning in 2008. In response to thisig@éfecting the U.S. banking system and finangiatkets, on October 3, 2008,
the U.S. Congress passed, and the President sigioddw, the Emergency Economic Stabilization AE2008 (the “EESA”). The EESA
authorized the Secretary of the Treasury to implgnaarious temporary emergency programs designsttéagthen the capital positions of
financial institutions and stimulate the availalilof credit within the U.S. financial system. Firtéal institutions participating in certain of the
programs established under the EESA are requiraddpt the Treasury’s standards for executive coisgteon and corporate governance.
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On October 14, 2008, the Treasury announced agmotat provided Tier 1 Capital (in the form of petual preferred stock and
common stock warrants) to eligible financial ingiibns. This program, known as the Troubled AssdteiRProgram-Capital Purchase Progran
(the “CPP”), allocated $250 billion from the $700ibn authorized by EESA to the Treasury for theghase of senior preferred shares from
qualifying financial institutions (the “CPP Prefed Stock”). Eligible institutions were able to sadjuity interests to the Treasury in amounts
equal to between 1% and 3% of the institution’k-rieighted assets. We did not participate in th® CP

Dividend PaymentsOur ability to pay dividends to our shareholders/ba affected by both general corporate law comatams and
policies of the Federal Reserve applicable to bai#ing companiesAs a Wisconsin corporation, we are subject to itinéations of the
Wisconsin Business Corporation Law, which prohifstfrom paying dividends if such payment wouldréidder us unable to pay our debts as
they become due in the usual course of businegs) oesult in our assets being less than the etiour total liabilities plus the amount needed
to satisfy the preferential rights upon dissolutidrany shareholders with preferential rights sigrep those shareholders receiving the
dividend.

As a general matter, the Federal Reserve has tedithat the board of directors of a bank holdiogpany should eliminate, defer or
significantly reduce dividends to shareholdergijfthe bank holding company’s net income availdablshareholders for the past four quarters
net of dividends previously paid during that perimdnot sufficient to fully fund the dividendsi)(the prospective rate of earnings retention is
inconsistent with the bank holding company’s cdpitseds and overall current and prospective fireru@ndition; or (iii) such bank holding
company will not meet, or is in danger of not megtits minimum regulatory capital adequacy ratidse Federal Reserve also possesses
enforcement powers over bank holding companiegtagid nonbank subsidiaries to prevent or remedipastthat represent unsafe or unsound
practices or violations of applicable statutes seglilations. Among these powers is the abilityrmspribe the payment of dividends by banks
and bank holding companies.

Federal Securities RegulatiorOur common stock is registered with the SEC unldeiBxchange Act. Consequently, FBFS is subjec
to the information, proxy solicitation, insider diag and other restrictions and requirements of3B€ under the Exchange Act.

Corporate GovernanceThe Dodd-Frank Act addresses many investor pratectiorporate governance and executive compensatio
matters that will affect most U.S. publicly tradaempanies. The DodBrank Act will increase shareholder influence dveards of directors |
requiring companies to give shareholders a nonb@dote on executive compensation and so-callettiggoparachute” payments, and
authorizing the SEC to promulgate rules that wallolw shareholders to nominate and solicit voterglieir own candidates using a
company’s proxy materials. The legislation als@dis the Federal Reserve to promulgate rules gtivlglexcessive compensation paid to
executives of bank holding companies, regardlesghether such companies are publicly traded.

The Banks

General. The Banks are Wisconsin-chartered banks, the deposbunts of which are insured by the FDIC’s Déposurance Fund
(“DIF”) to the maximum extent provided under feddeav and FDIC regulations. As Wisconsin-charteF&IC-insured banks, the Banks are
subject to the examination, supervision, reporéind enforcement requirements of the WDFI, the ehiaig authority for Wisconsin banks, and
the FDIC, designated by federal law as the prinfiedgral regulator of insured state banks that,tieeBanks, are not members of the Federal
Reserve System (“nonmember bank¥Ne Banks are members of the Federal Home Loan Bgatem, which provides a central credit fac
primarily for member institutions.

As of January 1, 2012, FBB had reached total assepeater than $1 billion, and as a result becanfgect to further reporting
requirements under FDIC rules, specifically 12 R.RRart 363 (“Annual Independent Audits and RepgriRequirements”). Pursuant to these
rules, management prepares a report that contaiassessment by management of the effectivenens afternal control structure and
procedures for financial reporting as of the entheffiscal year. FBB is also required to obtairiratependent public accountant’s attestation
report concerning its internal control structur@ofinancial reporting that includes the Report€ohdition and Income (a so-called “Call
Report”) and/or our FR Y-9C report. In accordanéWDIC rules, we will satisfy these requiremeotsbehalf of FBB.

Deposit Insurance As FDIC-insured institutions, the Banks are requit@ pay deposit insurance premium assessmertig to t
FDIC. The FDIC has adopted a risk-based assessyst@m whereby FDIC-insured depository institugipay insurance premiums at rates
based on their risk classification. An institut®nisk classification is assigned based on itstaafevels and the level of supervisory concern
the institution poses to the regulators.
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On November 12, 2009, the FDIC adopted a final thdé required insured depository institutions tegay on December 30, 2009,
their estimated quarterly risk-based assessmenthddourth quarter of 2009 and for all of 201012, and 2012. As such, on December 31,
2009, the Banks prepaid their assessments basteiomespective actual September 30, 2009 assesfmases, adjusted quarterly by an
estimated 5% annual growth rate through the erDd2. The FDIC also used the institution’s totaddassessment rate in effect on Septemb
30, 2009, increasing it by an annualized threeshaaints beginning in 2011. The FDIC began to offsepaid assessments on March 30, 201(
representing payment of the regular quarterly biaked deposit insurance assessment for the fouatteq of 2009. Any prepaid assessments
not exhausted after collection of the amounts dudume 30, 2013 were returned to institutions amdhal quarterly payments resumed.

Amendments to the Federal Deposit Insurance Actraigise the assessment base against which aréhdapository institution’s
deposit insurance premiums paid to the DIF wilchkulated. Under the amendments, the assessasaibll no longer be the institution’s
deposit base, but rather its average consolidatatidssets less its average tangible equity. fhig shift the burden of deposit insurance
premiums toward those large depository institutithrad rely on funding sources other than U.S. diégpog@\dditionally, the Dodd-Frank Act
makes changes to the minimum designated resetieeofahe DIF, increasing the minimum from 1.15%1t85% of the estimated amount of
total insured deposits, and eliminating the regn@et that the FDIC pay dividends to depositoryiinsbns when the reserve ratio exceeds
certain thresholds. The FDIC has until Septemb@020 to meet the 1.35% reserve ratio target. i&kwvéthese provisions could increase the
Banks’ FDIC deposit insurance premiums.

The Dodd-Frank Act permanently increases the maxiramount of deposit insurance for banks, savingfititions and credit unions
to $250,000 per insured depositor, retroactiveataudry 1, 2009. Although the legislation providedtton-interest-bearing transaction
accounts had unlimited deposit insurance covetagé program expired on December 31, 2012.

FICO Assessments The Financing Corporation (“FICO”) is a mixed-osvehip governmental corporation chartered by theéo
Federal Home Loan Bank Board pursuant to the CatiygeEquality Banking Act of 1987 to function adimancing vehicle for the
recapitalization of the former Federal Savings bodn Insurance Corporation. FICO issued 30-yeacaltsble bonds of approximately $8.1
billion that mature in 2017 through 2019. FICO'staurity to issue bonds ended on December 12, 1S@ite 1996, federal legislation has
required that all FDIC-insured depository instibu$ pay assessments to cover interest paymentiC@idoutstanding obligations. These
FICO assessments are in addition to amounts asiskgtbe FDIC for deposit insurance. The FICO amsest rate is adjusted quarterly anc
the fourth quarter of 2013 was approximately 0.8864hich reflects the change from an assessmestdmamputed on deposits to an
assessment base computed on assets as requitesl Dgdd-Frank Act.

Supervisory Assessmentéll Wisconsin banks are required to pay supervismsyessments to the WDFI to fund the operatiotiseof
WDFI. The amount of the assessment is calculateti@basis of total assets. During the year endambMber 31, 2013, FBB and FBB -
Milwaukee paid supervisory assessments to the @tklihg $44,000 and $9,200, respectively

Capital RequirementsBanks are generally required to maintain capitetlein excess of other businesses. For a discus$icapital
requirements, see “-The Increasing Regulatory Emiptan Capital” above.

Dividend PaymentsUnder Wisconsin banking law, the Banks generally mat pay dividends in excess of their respectindividec
profits, and if dividends declared and paid in @itbf the two immediately preceding years exceeggdncome for either of those two ye
respectively, the Banks may not declare or pay dimidend in the current year that exceeds yeatat® net income. The various b
regulatory agencies have authority to prohibit Isankder their jurisdiction from engaging in an dasar unsound practice. Under cer
circumstances, the payment of a dividend by thekBaould be considered an unsafe or unsound peadtiche event that: (i) the FDIC or
WDFI increase minimum required levels of capitd);the total assets of the Banks increase sigaifily; (i) the income of the Bank decres
significantly; or (iv) any combination of the foreigg occurs, then the board of directors of thelBaay decide or be required by the FDI(
the WDFI to retain a greater portion of the Barg@snings, thereby reducing or eliminating dividends

The payment of dividends by any financial institatis affected by the requirement to maintain adésjaapital pursuant to applicable
capital adequacy guidelines and regulations, dimthacial institution generally is prohibited fropaying any dividends if, following payment
thereof, the institution would be undercapitalizAd.described above, the Banks exceeded the minioayital requirements under applicable
guidelines, and, as of December 31, 2013, apprdri;n&71.1 million was available to be paid as dérids by FBB. FBB - Milwaukee did not
have any capacity to pay dividends at
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that time. Notwithstanding the availability of funtbr dividends, however, the WDFI and FDIC mayhibd the payment of dividends by the
Banks if they determine such payment would cortstitun unsafe or unsound practice.

Insider TransactionsThe Banks are subject to certain restrictions iragdsy federal law on “covered transactions” betwiben
Banks and its “affiliates.” We are an affiliatethe Banks for purposes of these restrictions, avered transactions subject to the restrictions
include extensions of credit to us, investmentstinstock or other securities and the acceptanoam$tock or other securities as collateral for
loans made by the Banks. The Dodd-Frank Act entsatiheerequirements for certain transactions wifitiaes as of July 21, 2011, including
an expansion of the definition of “covered trangatt” and an increase in the amount of time foraktdollateral requirements regarding
covered transactions must be maintained.

Certain limitations and reporting requirementsas® placed on extensions of credit by the Bankstdirectors and officers, to our
directors and officers and our subsidiaries, toprincipal shareholders and to “related interestsSuch directors, officers and principal
shareholders. In addition, federal law and regoitetimay affect the terms upon which any personiwladirector or officer of FBFS or the
Banks, or a principal shareholder of FBFS, mayiolteedit from banks with which the Banks maintadnsorrespondent relationship.

Safety and Soundness Standards/Risk Managem@&he federal banking agencies have adopted guidelire establish operational
and managerial standards to promote the safetg@mudness of federally insured depository instigi The guidelines set forth standards for
internal controls, information systems, internadiagystems, loan documentation, credit underwgitinterest rate exposure, asset growth,
compensation, fees and benefits, asset qualityearmings.

In general, the safety and soundness guidelinesbe the goals to be achieved in each area, asfdiestitution is responsible for
establishing its own procedures to achieve thos¢sgtf an institution fails to comply with any tife standards set forth in the guidelines, the
institution’s primary federal regulator may requine institution to submit a plan for achieving andintaining compliance. If an institution
fails to submit an acceptable compliance planais in any material respect to implement a conmgiéaplan that has been accepted by its
primary federal regulator, the regulator is requite issue an order directing the institution teecthe deficiency. Until the deficiency cited in
the regulator’s order is cured, the regulator nesfrict the institution’s rate of growth, requireetinstitution to increase its capital, restria th
rates the institution pays on deposits or reqtiesitistitution to take any action the regulatorrde@ppropriate under the circumstances.
Noncompliance with the standards established bgaffiety and soundness guidelines may also comstjtounds for other enforcement act
by the federal banking regulators, including cemse desist orders and civil money penalty assedsmen

During the past decade, the bank regulatory ageieiee increasingly emphasized the importancewidadsk management proces
and strong internal controls when evaluating theviies of the institutions they supervise. Prdpenanaging risks has been identified as
critical to the conduct of safe and sound bankicti/gies and has become even more important asteelnologies, product innovation, and
the size and speed of financial transactions hhaeged the nature of banking markets. The ageheies identified a spectrum of risks facing
a banking institution including, but not limited, wredit, market, liquidity, operational, legal dareputational risk. In particular, recent
regulatory pronouncements have focused on opegdtitk, which arises from the potential that inquaigte information systems, operational
problems, breaches in internal controls, fraudyrdoreseen catastrophes will result in unexpeaissids. The Banks are expected to have acti
board and senior management oversight; adequatigsolprocedures, and limits; adequate risk messent, monitoring, and management
information systems; and comprehensive internatrotm

Branching Authority . The Banks have the authority under Wisconsin laestablish branches anywhere in the State of Wiopn
subject to receipt of all required regulatory aaie.

Federal law permits state and national banks t@enaith banks in other states subject to: (i) ratnrly approval; (ii) federal and state
deposit concentration limits; and (iii) state lamitations requiring the merging bank to have bieexistence for a minimum period of time
(not to exceed five years) prior to the merger. &sblishment of new interstate branches or thaisition of individual branches of a bank in
another state (rather than the acquisition of arobgtate bank in its entirety) has historicallem permitted only in those states with laws
expressly authorizing such expansion. HoweverDihéd-Frank Act permits well-capitalized and wellimaged banks to establish new
branches across state lines without these impedémen

State Bank Investments and ActivitieBhe Banks are permitted to make investments andgenip activities directly or through
subsidiaries as authorized by Wisconsin law. Howewader federal law and FDIC regulations, FDhSured state banks are prohibited, sul
to certain exceptions, from making or retainingiggimvestments of a type, or in an
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amount, that are not permissible for a nationakb&ederal law and FDIC regulations also prohiftiE&-insured state banks and their
subsidiaries, subject to certain exceptions, frogaging as principal in any activity that is notrpéted for a national bank unless the bank
meets, and continues to meet, its minimum reguatapital requirements and the FDIC determinesttimactivity would not pose a
significant risk to the DIF. These restrictions Ganot had, and are not currently expected to heweaterial impact on the operations of the
Banks.

Transaction Account ReserveBederal Reserve regulations require depositorjtiisins to maintain reserves against their tratisa
accounts (primarily NOW and regular checking actsuriFror 2014: (i) the first $13.3 million of otlvése reservable balances are exempt fror
the reserve requirements; (ii) for transaction aot® aggregating more than $13.3 million to $89ililan, the reserve requirement is 3% of
total transaction accounts; and (iii) for net tgt®n accounts in excess of $89.0 million, themes requirement is $2,271,000 plus 10% of th
aggregate amount of total transaction accountgdass of $89.0 million. These reserve requiremargssubject to annual adjustment by the
Federal Reserve. The Banks are in compliance Wwétidregoing requirements.

Federal Home Loan Bank Systerthe Banks are members of the Federal Home Loan B&€kicago (the “FHLB"), which serves
as a central credit facility for its members. ThéLB is funded primarily from proceeds from the safe@bligations of the FHLB system. It
makes loans to member banks in the form of FHLBaades. All advances from the FHLB are requiredetdully collateralized as determined
by the FHLB. Outstanding FHLB advances as of Deam3ii, 2013 amounted to $0.

Community Reinvestment Act Requiremenithie Community Reinvestment Act requires each Bartiave a continuing and
affirmative obligation in a safe and sound manoérelp meet the credit needs of its entire commuiitiuding low- and moderate-income
neighborhoods. Federal regulators regularly agbesBanks’ records of meeting the credit needfeif respective communities. Applications
for additional acquisitions would be affected bg #valuation of the Banks’ effectiveness in meetiragr respective Community Reinvestment
Act requirements.

Anti-Money Laundering.The Uniting and Strengthening America by Providikgpropriate Tools Required to Intercept and Obstruc
Terrorism Act of 2001 (the “Patriot Act”) is desigghto deny terrorists and criminals the abilityphgain access to the U.S. financial system ar
has significant implications for depository instituns, brokers, dealers and other businesses iegiatvthe transfer of money. The Patriot Act
mandates financial services companies to haveipsland procedures with respect to measures desigraeldress any or all of the following
matters: (i) customer identification programs; fiipney laundering; (iii) terrorist financing; (iildentifying and reporting suspicious activities
and currency transactions; (v) currency crimes;@&cdooperation between financial institutiongldaw enforcement authorities.

Commercial Real Estate Guidanc&he interagency Concentrations in Commercial Retdte Lending, Sound Risk Management
Practices guidance (“CRE Guidance”) provides supery criteria, including the following numericaildicators, to assist bank examiners in
identifying banks with potentially significant conencial real estate loan concentrations that mayamagreater supervisory scrutiny: (i)
commercial real estate loans exceeding 300% ofalagnd increasing 50% or more in the precedingetyears; or (ii) construction and land
development loans exceeding 100% of capital. ThE GRidance does not limit bank’s levels of commareal estate lending activities but
rather guides institutions in developing risk magragnt practices and levels of capital that are censmrate with the level and nature of their
commercial real estate concentrations. Based owuwuent loan portfolio, the Banks do not exceesbéhguidelines. Even though the Banks dc
not exceed these regulatory guidelines, we belieaewe have taken appropriate precautions to addhe risks associated with our
concentrations in commercial real estate lending.dd' not expect the CRE Guidance to adverselytabi@coperations or our ability to exec
our growth strategy.

Consumer Financial Services

There are numerous developments in federal anel Istas regarding consumer financial products andas that impact each Bask’
business. Importantly, the current structure oéfaticonsumer protection regulation applicablelltpraviders of consumer financial products
and services changed significantly on July 21, 20dfen the CFPB commenced operations to supermseaforce consumer protection laws.
The CFPB has broad rulemaking authority for a watege of consumer protection laws that apply t@adliders of consumer products and
services, including the Banks, as well as the aitthto prohibit “unfair, deceptive or abusive” aand practices. The CFPB has examination
and enforcement authority over providers with mbgn $10 billion in assets. Banks and savingstutgins with $10 billion or less in assets,
like the Banks, will continue to be examined byitlagplicable bank regulators. Below are additiciealent regulatory developments relatin
consumer mortgage lending activities. Due to auitéd consumer mortgage portfolio, we do not cutyeexpect these provisions to have a
significant impact on our operations; however, &iddal compliance resources will be needed to neorhanges.

15




Ability-to-Repay Requirement and Qualified Mortgadrule. The Dodd-Frank Act contains additional provisionattaffect consumer
mortgage lending. First, it significantly expandglarwriting requirements applicable to loans setilmel-4 family residential real property
and augments federal law combating predatory lengiactices. In addition to numerous new discloseggirements, the Dodérank Act
imposes new standards for mortgage loan originatimnall lenders, including banks and savings éasgogs, in an effort to strongly encoure
lenders to verify a borrower’s ability to repay,ilehalso establishing a presumption of compliararecértain “qualified mortgages.” In
addition, the Dodd-Frank Act generally requireddiens or securitizers to retain an economic intéreite credit risk relating to loans that the
lender sells and other asseacked securities that the securitizer issuesifdans have not complied with the ability-to-regégndards. The
risk retention requirement generally will be 5%t bauld be increased or decreased by regulation.

On January 10, 2013, the CFPB issued a final affective January 10, 2014, which implements thddBrank Act’s ability-torepay
requirements and clarifies the presumption of céemgk for “qualified mortgages.” In assessing adwer’s ability to repay a mortgage-
related obligation, lenders generally must conséigint underwriting factors: (i) current or reasolyaexpected income or assets; (ii) current
employment status; (iii) monthly payment on thejsabtransaction; (iv) monthly payment on any sitanéous loan; (v) monthly payment for
all mortgage-related obligations; (vi) current debligations, alimony, and child support; (vii) mbly debt-toincome ratio or residual incom
and (viii) credit history. The final rule also imdles guidance regarding the application of, andhadetiogy for evaluating, these factors.

Further, the final rule also clarifies that quadimortgages do not include “no-doc” loans anddoaith negative amortization,
interest-only payments, balloon payments, termexiess of 30 years, or points and fees paid bidh®wer that exceed 3% of the loan
amount, subject to certain exceptions. In additionqualified mortgages, the monthly payment nhestalculated on the highest payment tha
will occur in the first five years of the loan, atige borrower’s total debt-to-income ratio gengrallay not be more than 43%. The final rule
also provides that certain mortgages that satiefygeneral product feature requirements for qedalifnortgages and that also satisfy the
underwriting requirements of Fannie Mae and Fredithe (while they operate under federal conservhtprsr receivership) or the
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Developmeapddtment of Veterans Affairs, or Department ofiégjture or Rural Housing Service
are also considered to be qualified mortgages. §ddond category of qualified mortgages will phaisieas the aforementioned federal ager
issue their own rules regarding qualified mortgadfes conservatorship of Fannie Mae and Freddie &fas, and, in any event, after seven
years.

As set forth in the Dodd-Frank Act, subprime (aghtér-priced) mortgage loans are subject to thétwld-repay requirement, and the
final rule provides for a rebuttable presumptionesfder compliance for those loans. The final ai&® applies the ability-to-repay requirement
to prime loans, while also providing a conclusivegumption of compliancei.g., a safe harbor) for prime loans that are alsoifigel
mortgages. Additionally, the final rule generallppibits prepayment penalties (subject to certaoeptions) and sets forth a 3-year record
retention period with respect to documenting andalestrating the ability-to-repay requirement antkeotprovisions.

In general, qualified residential mortgage lendgg small component of our business. Managementak&n necessary actions to
ensure compliance with the new requirements ofrtiiess however, the implementation of this findlerdid not have a significant impact to our
operations.

Changes to Mortgage Loan Originator Compensatiddnder existing regulations, mortgage loan origiratoay not receive
compensation based on a mortgage transaction’s termonditions other than the amount of credieested under the mortgage loan. Further,
the new standards limit the total points and fées & bank and/or a broker may charge on conforatgjumbo loans to 3.0% of the total loar
amount. Mortgage loan originators may receive camspton from a consumer or from a lender, but ot bThese rules contain requirements
designed to prohibit mortgage loan originators ff@teering” consumers to loans that provide moréglagn originators with greater
compensation. In addition, the rules contain otegquirements concerning recordkeeping

Servicing.On January 17, 2013, the CFPB announced rulesglement certain provisions of the Dodd-Frank A¢atiag to
mortgage servicing. The new servicing rules regséneicers to meet certain benchmarks for loanicegzand customer service in general.
Servicers must provide periodic billing statemeartd certain required notices and acknowledgmernsytly credit borrowers’ accounts for
payments received and promptly investigate comfddig borrowers and take additional steps beforeh@msing insurance to protect the
lender’s interest in the property. The new sergainles also call for additional notice, review dimding requirements with respect to
delinquent borrowers, including early interventiongoing access to servicer personnel and spégsficmitigation and foreclosure procedures
The rules provide for an exemption from most okthesquirements for “small servicers.” A small s&#vis defined as a loan servicer that
services 5,000 or fewer mortgage loans and sereiglysmortgage loans that they or an affiliate mvdged or own. The new servicing rules t
effect on January 10, 2014. As we service fewen 800 mortgage loans, we are exempt from this
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requirement.

Foreclosure and Loan Modifications-ederal and state laws further impact foreclosanesloan modifications, with many of such
laws having the effect of delaying or impeding theeclosure process on real estate secured loatefanlt. Mortgages on commercial prop
can be modified, such as by reducing the princ@pabunt of the loan or the interest rate, or byrditeg the term of the loan, through plans
confirmed under Chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Chaleecent years, legislation has been introducdtlenJ.S. Congress that would amend the
Bankruptcy Code to permit the modification of maggs secured by residences, although at this kiemertactment of such legislation is not
presently proposed. The scope, duration and tefipstential future legislation with similar effecontinue to be discussed. We cannot predict
whether any such legislation will be passed orirtiygact, if any, it would have on our business.

Additional Constraints on FBFS and the Banks

Monetary Policy.The monetary policy of the Federal Reserve hagrafiant effect on the operating results of finahor bank
holding companies and their subsidiaries. Amongntleans available to the Federal Reserve to affieatnoney supply are open market
transactions in U.S. government securities, chairgége discount rate on member bank borrowingsdrashges in reserve requirements ag
member bank deposits. These means are used imgagymbinations to influence overall growth andribsition of bank loans, investments
and deposits, and their use may affect interessrettarged on loans or paid on deposits.

The Volcker Ruleln addition to other implications of the Dodd-Frahét discussed above, the act amends the BHCAquinethe
federal regulatory agencies to adopt rules thatipibbanks and their affiliates from engaging nogrietary trading and investing in and
sponsoring certain unregistered investment compdudiefined as hedge funds and private equity furidg} statutory provision is commonly
called the “Volcker Rule.” On December 10, 201% thderal regulatory agencies issued final rulémflement the prohibitions required by
the Volcker Rule. Thereafter, in reaction to indystoncern over the adverse impact to communitjkbar the treatment of certain
collateralized debt instruments in the final rubes federal regulatory agencies approved an inténiah rule to permit banking entities to retain
interests in collateralized debt obligations backegtharily by trust preferred securities (“TruPS G). Under the interim final rule, the
agencies permit the retention of an interest ispamsorship of covered funds by banking entitieden$15 billion in assets if the following
qualifications are met:

» the TruPS CDO was established, and the interestssasd, before May 19, 20:

» the banking entity reasonably believes thaiotifiering proceeds received by the TruPS CDO wevested primarily in
qualifying TruPS collateral; and

» the banking entity interest in the TruPS CDO was acquired on orredlecember 10, 201

Although the Volcker Rule has significant impliaats for many large financial institutions, we dd aerrently anticipate that
the Volcker Rule will have a material effect on tigerations or financial condition of FBFS or thenRs. We may incur costs if we are
required to adopt additional policies and systesrsnisure compliance with the Volcker Rule, but smgh costs are not expected to be matt
Until the application of the final rules is fullynderstood, the precise financial impact of the arais, the Banks, our clients or the financial
industry more generally, cannot be determined.

Iltem 1A. Risk Factors

You should carefully read and consider the follayvitsks and uncertainties. We may encounter risksldition to those described
below, including risks and uncertainties not cutlgeknown to us or that we currently deem to be atenial. The risks described below, as\
as such additional risks and uncertainties, mayinmgr materially and adversely affect our businessults of operations and financial
condition.

Risks Related to Our Busine:

If we do not effectively manage our credit risk, weay experience increased levels of delinquences)performing loans, and
charge-offs, which would require increases in ourqvision for loan and lease losses.

There are risks inherent in making any loan ordeacluding risks inherent in dealing with indival borrowers, risks of nonpayme
risks resulting from uncertainties as to the futumiie of collateral and cash flows available tviee debt and risks resulting from changes in
economic and market conditions. We cannot asswighat our credit risk approval and monitoring paares will identify all of these credit
risks, and they cannot be expected to completétyirgite our credit
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risks. If the overall economic climate in the Undit8tates, generally, or our market areas, speltyfidails to improve, or even if it does
improve, our borrowers may experience difficuliesepaying their loans and leases, and the leeboperforming loans and leases, charge-
offs and delinquencies could rise and require m®es in the provision for loan and lease losseihahould cause our net income and return
on equity to decrease.

Our allowance for loan and lease losses may notldequate to cover actual losses.

We establish our allowance for loan and lease $8rd maintain it at a level considered approphbgtmanagement based on an
analysis of our portfolio and market environmertiellowance for loan and lease losses representsstimate of probable losses inherent in
the portfolio at each balance sheet date and sdbagon relevant information available to us. T@asance contains provisions for probable
losses that have been identified relating to spexfationships, as well as probable losses inttéreour loan and lease portfolio that are not
specifically identified. Additions to the allowantm loan and lease losses, which are chargedrtonggs through the provision for loan and
lease losses, are determined based on a variégtofs, including an analysis of our loan andégasrtfolio by segment, historical loss
experience and an evaluation of current economiditions in our market areas. The actual amoutdarf and lease losses is affected by
changes in economic, operating and other condititign our markets, which may be beyond our cdntrod such losses may exceed curren
estimates.

At December 31, 2013, our allowance for loan aabé losses as a percentage of total loans ared lwas 1.42% and as a percentag
of total nonperforming loans and leases was 87.A%though management believes that the allowancéofn and lease losses is appropriate,
we may be required to take additional provisionddeses in the future to further supplement theanalnce, either due to management’s
decision to do so or requirements by our bankigglegors. In addition, bank regulatory agencie$ péltiodically review our allowance for
loan and lease losses and the value attributedrtaatrual loans or to properties acquired throogédosure. Such regulatory agencies may
require us to adjust our determination of the vétwahese items. Any significant increases toahewance for loan and lease losses may
materially decrease our net income, which may adrerffect our business, financial condition agsutts of operations.

A significant portion of our loan and lease portfolitss comprised of commercial real estate loans, whigvolve risks specific to re:
estate values and the real estate markets in gehera

At December 31, 2013 we had $645.1 million of comuia real estate loans, which represented 65.7%upfotal loan portfolio.
Because payments on such loans are often depeméme successful operation or development of thpeyty or business involved,
repayment of such loans is often more sensitive tiher types of loans to adverse conditions irrélad estate market or the general economy
which are outside the borrower’s control. In themvthat the cash flow from the property is redutied borrower’s ability to repay the loan
could be negatively impacted. The deteriorationraf or a few of these loans could cause a matedadase in our level of nonperforming
loans, which would result in a loss of revenue fitbese loans and could result in an increase ipiésion for loan and lease losses and an
increase in charge-offs, all of which could haveaterial adverse impact on our net income. Additilyn many of these loans have real estate
as a primary or secondary component of collatd@itat. market value of real estate can fluctuate Sagmitly in a short period of time as a result
of economic conditions. Adverse developments afigateal estate values in one or more of our mar&etlld impact collateral coverage
associated with the commercial real estate segofanir portfolio, possibly leading to increasedafe reserves or charge-offs, which would
adversely affect profitability.

A large portion of our loan and lease portfolio momprised of commercial loans secured by variousibess assets, the
deterioration in value of which could increase oexposure to future probable losses.

At December 31, 2013, approximately 29.9% , or33@9nillion , of our loan and lease portfolio wasrprised of commercial loans
to businesses collateralized by general businestsamcluding accounts receivable, inventory, @uipment. Our commercial loans are
typically larger in amount than loans to individeahsumers and, therefore, have the potentiabfgel losses on an individual loan basis.
Additionally, assetbased borrowers are usually highly leveraged arttiwe inconsistent historical earnings. Significahterse changes in
various industries could cause rapid declines Inasand collectability associated with those bessrassets resulting in inadequate collateral
coverage that may expose us to future losses. é&mrase in specific reserves and charge-offs mag hawaterial adverse impact on our result:
of operations.

Nonperforming assets take significant time to regeland adversely affect our results of operatiomslidinancial condition, and
could result in further losses in the future.

At December 31, 2013, our nonperforming loandéat$15.9 million , or 1.61% of our loan and leasetfolio, and our
nonperforming assets (which include nonperformoank and foreclosed properties) totaled $16.2anillior 1.28% of total assets.
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Our nonperforming assets adversely affect ourmmime in various ways. We do not record interestrime on nonaccrual loans or
foreclosed properties, thereby adversely affeatimgnet income and returns on assets and equingasing our loan administration costs and
adversely affecting our efficiency ratio. When \ake collateral in foreclosure and similar procegdjrwe are required to mark the collateral tc
its then net realizable value, less estimatedngplibsts, which may result in a loss. These noopmifg loans and foreclosed properties also
increase our risk profile and the capital our ratpris believe is appropriate in light of such riskise resolution of nonperforming assets
requires significant time commitments from managenaad can be detrimental to the performance of tiker responsibilities. If we
experience increases in nonperforming loans angerforming assets, our net interest income mayegatively impacted and our loan
administration costs could increase, each of whakld have an adverse effect on our net incomeelatked ratios, such as return on assets
equity.

Real estate construction and land development loans based upon estimates of costs and values @ssatwith the completed
project. These estimates may be inaccurate, andnag be exposed to significant losses on loans lfase projects

Real estate construction and land development loamprised approximately 7.0% of our total loan &ase portfolio as of
December 31, 2013, and such lending involves imadit risks because funds are advanced upon therapleted value of the project, whict
uncertain prior to its completion, and costs mageexi realizable values in declining real estatketar Because of the uncertainties inhere
estimating construction costs and the realizablketaralue of the completed project and the effe€governmental regulation of real
property, it is relatively difficult to evaluate @aarately the total funds required to complete ggmtoand the related loan-to-value ratio. As a
result, construction loans often involve the disiement of substantial funds with repayment depdndepart, on the success of the ultimate
project and the ability of the borrower to sellesse the property, rather than the ability ofiberower or guarantor to repay principal and
interest. If the appraisal of the completed progeealue proves to be overstated or market valugsrdgal rates decline, we may have
inadequate security for the repayment of the Iqgaonicompletion of construction of the project. K are forced to foreclose on a project prior
to or at completion due to a default, we may noalble to recover all of the unpaid balance of, acctued interest on, the loan and may incur
related foreclosure and holding costs. In additwea may be required to fund additional amountsotmlete the project and may have to hold
the property for an unspecified period of time while attempt to dispose of it.

Our business has been and may continue to be addgraffected by conditions in the financial markesd economic conditions
generally.

Although it has recently shown certain signs ofiay@ment, since late 2007, the U.S. economy hasrgly experienced challenging
economic conditions. Business activity across geaf industries and regions remains reduced fristofical levels under more favorable
economic conditions. Likewise, many local governtadrave been experiencing certain difficulties|uding lower tax revenues, which have
impacted their ability to cover costs. Unemploymaisb remains at elevated levels. Under conditsuth as these in the past, the financial
services industry has been affected by declinéisdvalues of various significant asset classedtamthck of opportunities to originate new
loans. While these challenges are generally lessrs¢oday than during certain periods in the repast, their impact continues to be felt,
particularly with respect to loan originations.

As a result of these economic conditions, manyitenahstitutions, including the Banks, have expecid declines in the performance
of their loans from historical norms in recent yeafloreover, competition among depository insting, particularly for quality loans, has
increased significantly. In addition, the valuesedl estate collateral supporting many loans rarbalow previous levels and may decline in
the future. There have been significant new lawsragulations regarding lending and funding prastiand liquidity standards, with a poter
for further regulation in the future, and bank redory agencies in general have been diligent$peading to concerns and trends identified in
examinations, including through formal or inforneaforcement actions or orders. The impact of ngslation in response to these
developments may negatively impact our operatignebtricting our business operations, including ahility to originate or sell loans, and
adversely impact our financial performance or dacls price.

In addition, if the overall economic climate in tbeited States, generally, or our market areas;igally, fails to continue to
improve, this may affect consumer confidence leaeld may cause adverse changes in payment pattausing increases in delinquencies
default rates, which may impact our charge-offs rmyisions for credit losses. A worsening of theseditions likely would exacerbate the
adverse effects on us and others in the finanei@ices industry noted above.
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Our business is concentrated in and largely depemidgpon the continued growth and welfare of the gaal geographical markets
in which we operate.

Our operations are heavily concentrated in thelS@eintral region of Wisconsin and to a lesser extenSoutheastern and
Northeastern regions of Wisconsin, and, as a resuttfinancial condition, results of operationsl @ash flows are significantly impacted
changes in the economic conditions in those af@assuccess depends to a significant extent ugbukiness activity, population, income
levels, deposits and real estate activity in thmaekets. Although our clients’ business and finahiciterests may extend well beyond these
market areas, adverse economic conditions thattaffese market areas could reduce our growthafest the ability of our clients to repay
their loans to us, affect the value of collatenadlerlying loans and generally affect our financiahdition and results of operations. Because o
our geographic concentration, we are less abledhtaar regional or national financial institutiotasdiversify our credit risks across multiple
markets. Although, in general, the Wisconsin ecopamd real estate market were not affected as slgvas some other areas of the United
States during the challenging economic environméntcent years, they are not immune to challengo@nomic conditions that affect the
United States and world economies.

Our financial condition and results of operationsoald be negatively affected if we fail to effectiyexecute our strategic plan or
manage the growth called for in our strategic plan.

Among other things, our strategic plan currentlyscir maintaining strong asset quality, geneigiimmarket core deposits to
improve our net interest margin and increasingrieeme. Our ability to increase profitability inardance with this plan will depend on a
variety of factors including the identification désirable business opportunities, competitive nespe from financial institutions in our market
areas and our ability to manage liquidity and fagdsources. While we believe we have the managerasotirces and internal systems in f.
to successfully execute our strategic plan, we cbagnarantee that opportunities will be availalid that the strategic plan will be successful
or effectively executed.

Although we do not have any current definitive glam do so, in implementing our strategic plan vaymxpand into additional
communities or attempt to strengthen our positioaudr current markets through opportunistic actjoiss of similar or complementary
financial services organizations. To the extent #@open new offices or undertake acquisitionsareelikely to experience the effects of
higher operating expenses relative to operatingnmefrom the new operations, which may have anradweffect on our levels of reported net
income, return on average equity and return onameesassets. Other effects of engaging in such brsirdtegies may include potential
diversion of our management’s time and attenticth@gneral disruption to our business.

To the extent that we grow through additional afapenings, we cannot assure you that we will e tabtadequately and profitably
manage this growth. Acquiring other banks and mssias will involve similar risks to those commoa$gociated with branching, but may alsc
involve additional risks, including potential expos to unknown or contingent liabilities of bank&ldusinesses we acquire and exposure to
potential asset quality issues of the acquired lmanklated business.

Monetary policies and regulations of the Federal 8&ve could adversely affect our business, finahcandition and results of
operations.

In addition to being affected by general econonoicditions, our earnings and growth are affectethieypolicies of the Federal
Reserve. An important function of the Federal Resés to regulate the money supply and credit dimrdi. Among the instruments used by
Federal Reserve to implement these objectivesaar market operations in U.S. government securgigisistments of the discount rate and
changes in reserve requirements against bank depdkese instruments are used in varying comlminatio influence overall economic
growth and the distribution of credit, bank loaingestments and deposits. Their use also affetasast rates charged on loans or paid on
deposits.

The monetary policies and regulations of the Fddeeaerve have had a significant effect on the atpeg results of commercial ban
in the past and are expected to continue to da Huei future. The effects of such policies upontmsiness, financial condition and results of
operations cannot be predicted.

We operate in a highly regulated industry and thens and regulations that govern our operations, porate governance, executive
compensation and accounting principles, or changeshem, or our failure to comply with them, may wadrsely affect us.

We are subject to extensive regulation and supgervibat govern almost all aspects of our operatitmtended to protect clients, th
laws and regulations, among other matters, presenipimum capital requirements, impose limitations
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on our business activities, limit the dividendgtributions that we can pay, restrict the abitifyinstitutions to guarantee our debt and impos
certain specific accounting requirements that maynore restrictive and may result in greater oliexacharges to earnings or reductions in ou
capital than generally accepted accounting priesipCompliance with laws and regulations can Hecdif and costly and changes to laws and
regulations often impose additional compliance £dstirther, our failure to comply with these lawsl @egulations, even if the failure was
inadvertent or reflects a difference in interprietat could subject us to restrictions on our bussnactivities, fines and other penalties, any of
which could adversely affect our results of operai capital base and the price of our securities.

Recent legislative and regulatory reforms applicalib the financial services industry may have arsfgcant impact on our
business, financial condition and results of opeiats.

The laws, regulations, rules, policies and regwaitaterpretations governing us are constantly engl and may change significantly
over time as Congress and various regulatory agemenct to adverse economic conditions or othééensaThe global financial crisis of 2008-
09 served as a catalyst for a number of significhanges in the financial services industry, inclgdhe Dodd-Frank Act, which reformed the
regulation of financial institutions in a comprebim manner, and the Basel Il regulatory capigébmms, which will increase both the amount
and quality of capital that financial institutiomaist hold.

The Dodd-Frank Act, together with the regulatioeseloped and to be developed thereunder, affegts End small financial
institutions alike, including several provisionatlimpact how community banks, thrifts and smatikand thrift holding companies will
operate in the future. Among other things, the DBdahk Act changes the base for FDIC insurancesassents to a bank’s average
consolidated total assets minus average tangihiigyegather than its deposit base, permanentiesathe current standard deposit insurance
limit to $250,000, and expands the FDIC’s authatdtyaise the premiums we pay for deposit insurafbe legislation allows financial
institutions to pay interest on business checkigpants, contains provisions on mortgage-relatetiemsa(such as steering incentives,
determinations as to a borrower’s ability to repag prepayment penalties) and establishes the @BRIB independent entity within the
Federal Reserve. This entity has broad rulemalsmgervisory and enforcement authority over consuimancial products and services,
including deposit products, residential mortgadpesne-equity loans and credit cards. Moreover, thddFrank Act includes provisions that
affect corporate governance and executive compensai all publicly traded companies.

In addition, in July 2013, the U.S. federal bankinghorities approved the implementation of theeBHs Rule. The Basel Ill Rule is
applicable to all U.S. banks that are subject toimmiim capital requirements as well as to bank awthg and loan holding companies, other
than “small bank holding companies” (generally baokding companies with consolidated assets oftlees $500 million). The Basel Il Rule
not only increases most of the required minimunulagry capital ratios, it introduces a new Comnimuity Tier 1 Capital ratio and the
concept of a capital conservation buffer. The Bis&ule also expands the current definition opital by establishing additional criteria that
capital instruments must meet to be considered thutdil Tier 1 Capital (i.e., Tier 1 Capital in atidh to Common Equity) and Tier 2 Capital.
A number of instruments that now generally quadi§yTier 1 Capital will not qualify or their quatifitions will change when the Basel Ill Rule
is fully implemented. However, the Basel Ill Rulermits banking organizations with less than $1koilin assets to retain, through a dimae
election, the existing treatment for accumulatdgeptomprehensive income, which currently doesaffett regulatory capital. The Basel Il
Rule has maintained the general structure of theestiprompt corrective action thresholds whileoiorating the increased requirements,
including the Common Equity Tier 1 Capital ratin.drder to be a “well-capitalized” depository itstion under the new regime, an institution
must maintain a Common Equity Tier 1 Capital rati®.5% or more, a Tier 1 Capital ratio of 8% orrmya Total Capital ratio of 10% or
more, and a leverage ratio of 5% or more. Instihgimust also maintain a capital conservation beff@sisting of Common Equity Tier 1
Capital. Generally, financial institutions will beme subject to the Basel Il Rule on January 1520ith a phase-in period through 2019 for
many of the changes.

The implementation of these provisions, as welimg other aspects of current or proposed regulatolggislative changes to laws
applicable to the financial industry, will impabgtprofitability of our business activities and nw@nange certain of our business practices,
including the ability to offer new products, obtdimancing, attract deposits, make loans, and aelsatisfactory interest spreads, and could
expose us to additional costs, including increasadpliance costs. These changes also may requiceimgest significant management
attention and resources to make any necessary eham@perations in order to comply, and coulddfuee also materially and adversely affect
our business, financial condition and results @ragions. Our management is actively reviewingpfivisions of the Dodd-Frank Act and the
Basel lll Rule, many of which are to be phasedsiardhe next several months and years, and asgebsiprobable impact on our operations.
However, the ultimate effect of these changes erfittancial services industry in general, and ysarticular, is uncertain at this time.
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We are periodically subject to examination and stiny by a number of banking agencies and, dependimgpn the findings and
determinations of these agencies, we may be reqlitemake adjustments to our business that coulderdely affect us.

Federal and state banking agencies periodicalldettrexaminations of our business, including coarge with applicable laws and
regulations. If, as a result of an examinatiored@efal banking agency was to determine that ttenéiral condition, capital resources, asset
quality, asset concentration, earnings prospecasagement, liquidity, sensitivity to market riskather aspects of any of our operations has
become unsatisfactory, or that we or our manageméntviolation of any law or regulation, it couldke a number of different remedial acti
as it deems appropriate. These actions includpdher to enjoin “unsafe or unsound” practices gguire affirmative actions to correct any
conditions resulting from any violation or practite issue an administrative order that can becjatly enforced, to direct an increase in our
capital, to restrict our growth, to change the sssmposition of our portfolio or balance sheetassess civil monetary penalties against our
officers or directors, to remove officers and dioes and, if it is concluded that such conditioasmot be corrected or there is an imminent risk
of loss to depositors, to terminate our depositriasce. If we become subject to such regulatoripagt our business, results of operations anc
reputation may be negatively impacted.

The repeal of federal prohibitions on payment oftémest on demand deposits could increase our ingéexpense.

On July 21, 2011, all federal prohibitions on tibdity of financial institutions to pay interest @emand deposit accounts were
repealed as part of the Dodd-Frank Act. As a resatne financial institutions have commenced dffginterest on these demand deposits to
compete for clients. Although this development hasmeaningfully impacted our interest expensdédurrent low-interest-rate, high-
liquidity environment in which competition amongdincial institutions for deposits is generally lmompetitive pressures in the future may
require us to pay increased interest on these degposits to attract and retain business cli@émighich case our interest expense would
increase and our net interest margin would decr&dss could have a material adverse effect onboginess, financial condition and results of
operations.

Liquidity risks could affect operations and jeop&aes our business, financial condition, and resultt§ operations.

Our ability to implement our business strategy dé@pend on our liquidity and ability to obtain fumg for loan originations, working
capital and other general purposes. An inabilityeiee funds through deposits, borrowings, the sfleans and other sources could have a
substantial negative effect on our liquidity. Oueferred source of funds consists of customer depeghich we supplement with other sour
such as brokered deposits. Such account and ddyadsitces can decrease when clients perceive aiternnvestments as providing a better
risk/return tradeoff. If clients move money outhaink deposits and into other investments, we mergase our utilization of brokered deposits
FHLB advances and other wholesale funding soureesssary to fund desired growth levels. Becausethands generally are more sensitive
to interest rate changes than our core deposég,gte more likely to move to the highest rate latée. In addition, the use of brokered depc
without regulatory approval is limited to bankstthee “well capitalized” according to regulations Af December 31, 2013 , 40.6% of FBB'’s
total deposits and 7.7% of FBB-Milwaukee’s totapdsits were brokered deposits. If the Banks arélerta maintain their capital levels at
“well capitalized” minimums, we could lose a sigo#nt source of funding, which would force us tiize different wholesale funding or
potentially sell assets at a time when pricing fbayinfavorable, increasing our funding costs addeimg our net interest income and net
income.

Our access to funding sources in amounts adequéiteahce or capitalize our activities or on tertimst are acceptable to us could be
impaired by factors that affect us directly or fimancial services industry or economy in genesath as disruptions in the financial markets o
negative views and expectations about the prosparctse financial services industry. Regional @edmunity banks generally have less
access to the capital markets than do nationabapdrregional banks because of their smaller size anitidd analyst coverage. During
periods of economic turmoil or decline, the finaaervices industry and the credit markets gelyenzdy be materially and adversely affected
by declines in asset values and by diminisheddi¢yi As demonstrated by the recent financial srishder such circumstances the liquidity
issues are often particularly acute for regional @ammunity banks, as larger financial institutiomsy curtail their lending to regional and
community banks to reduce their exposure to thes id other banks. Correspondent lenders may alboce or even eliminate federal funds
lines for their correspondent clients in difficeltonomic times.

As a result, we rely on our ability to generateadts and effectively manage the repayment andnityaschedules of our loans and
investment securities, respectively, to ensurewlghave adequate liquidity to fund our operatidasy decline in available funding could
adversely impact our ability to originate loanssdgt in securities, meet our expenses, pay divislémdur shareholders or fulfill obligations
such as repaying our borrowings or meeting depatiidrawal demands, any of which could have a ntadverse impact on our liquidity,
business, financial condition and results of openat
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We rely on our management, and the loss of one arenof those managers may harm our business.

Our success has been and will be greatly influebgsaur continuing ability to retain the servicdsoar existing senior management
and, if we expand, to attract and retain additianallified senior and middle management. The ueetgul loss of key management personnel
or the inability to recruit and retain qualifiedrpennel in the future could have an adverse effieaiur business and financial results. In
addition, our failure to develop and/or maintainediective succession plan will impede our abitiyquickly and effectively react to
unexpected loss of key management and in turn raag hn adverse effect on our business.

On February 20, 2014, Mr. James F. Ropella, ouro&fice President and Chief Financial Officer annoed his plans to retire from
his position during the fourth quarter of 2014. . Ropella will remain in his position as we condad¢horough search for his replacement and
we anticipate establishing a longer-term consuléimgngement with Mr. Ropella following his retirent. There can be no guarantee that we
will find a suitable successor to Mr. Ropella bg fourth quarter of 2014. Additionally, the seafehMr. Ropella’s successor will require
significant time and focus from our senior managetnaed board of directors, which could adversefgafour business if we fail to pursue
other beneficial opportunities due to the demarid®nducting such a search.

Interest rate shifts may reduce net interest incoared otherwise negatively impact our financial catidn and results of operation:

Shifts in short-term interest rates may reducdntetest income, which is the principal compondniwr earnings. Net interest income
is the difference between the amounts receivedshynuour interesiarning assets and the interest paid by us omeenestbearing liabilities.
In certain scenarios, when interest rates riserdtesof interest we pay on our liabilities mayerimore quickly than the rate of interest that we
receive on our interesbearing assets, which could cause our profits toedese. However, the structure of our balance stmektesultant
sensitivity to interest rates in various scenamag change in the future.

Additionally, interest rate increases often regularger payment requirements for our borrowetsiclvincreases the potential for
default. At the same time, the marketability of eriging collateral may be adversely affected by eeduced demand resulting from higher
interest rates. In a declining interest rate emvitent, there may be an increase in prepaymentsriairc loans as borrowers refinance at lower
rates.

Changes in interest rates also can affect the \adli@ans. An increase in interest rates that esblgraffects the ability of borrowers to
pay the principal or interest on loans may leadrtancrease in nonperforming assets and a reduatimtome recognized, which could have a
material adverse effect on our results of operatamd cash flows. Further, when we place a loamomiaccrual status, we reverse any accrued
but unpaid interest receivable, which decreasesast income. Subsequently, we continue to hawstte fund the loan, which is reflected as
interest expense, without any interest income feedthe associated funding expense. Thus, anaser@ the amount of nonperforming assets
would have an adverse impact on net interest income

Rising interest rates may also result in a dedlinealue of our fixed-rate debt securities. Theaatized losses resulting from holding
these securities would be recognized in other cehmarsive income and reduce total stockholdegsity. If debt securities in an unrealized
position are sold, such losses become realizeavilheduce our regulatory capital ratios.

The risk of net interest margin compression isagty heightened during prolonged periods of lowrstterm interest rates, such as
that which the financial service industry has beeperiencing in recent years and is expected ttragnto face in the near future. This may
have a material adverse effect on our net intémesime and our results of operations.

We could recognize losses on securities held in securities portfolio, particularly if interest rags increase or economic and
market conditions deteriorate.

As of December 31, 2013, the fair value of ouusigies portfolio was approximately $180.1 milliofractors beyond our control can
significantly influence the fair value of securgtim our portfolio and can cause potential advehsmges to the fair value of these securities
example, fixed-rate securities acquired by us areglly subject to decreases in market value witenest rates rise. Additional factors
include, but are not limited to, rating agency dgvates of the securities, defaults by the issu@rdividual mortgagors with respect to the
underlying securities, and instability in the ctadarkets. Any of the foregoing factors could cao®r-than-temporary impairment in future
periods and result in realized losses. The praoessetermining whether impairment is other-thamyperary usually requires difficult,
subjective judgments about the future financiafgrenance of the issuer and any collateral undeglyite security in order to assess the
probability of
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receiving all contractual principal and interesypants on the security. Because of changing ecanamd market conditions affecting interest
rates, the financial condition of issuers of theusities and the performance of the underlyingatetial, we may recognize realized and/or
unrealized losses in future periods, which couldehen adverse effect on our financial condition sesilts of operations.

The Company is a bank holding company and its sas®f funds necessary to meet its obligations aratéd.

The Company is a bank holding company, and itsaifmers are primarily conducted by the Banks, wlgich subject to significant
federal and state regulation. Cash available toddagends to our shareholders, pay our obligatemd meet our debt service requirements is
derived primarily from our existing cash flow soes¢ our third party line of credit, dividends reesl from the Banks, or a combination
thereof. Future dividend payments by the Banksstwill require generation of future earnings by Banks and are subject to certain
regulatory guidelines. If the Banks are unabledy g@ividends to us, we may not have the resounceash flow to pay or meet all of our
obligations.

Competition from other financial institutions coul@dversely affect our profitability.

We encounter heavy competition in attracting conuiaétoan, equipment finance and deposit clientwealf as trust and investment
clients. We believe the principal factors thatased to attract quality clients and distinguish finencial institution from another include
value-added relationships, interest rates and ratesurfiretypes of accounts, service fees, flexibilapd quality of service.

Our competition includes banks, savings institigianortgage banking companies, credit unions, ieammpanies, equipment
finance companies, mutual funds, insurance compahiekerage firms and investment banking firms.alde compete with regional and
national financial institutions that have a subs#presence in our market areas, many of whiale lggeater liquidity, higher lending limits,
greater access to capital, more established megkegnition and more resources and collective égpee than we do. In addition, some largetr
financial institutions that have not historicallyrapeted with us directly have substantial excegsgdity and have sought, and may continue to
seek, smaller lending relationships in our targetkets. Furthermore, tax-exempt credit unions dparamost of our market areas and
aggressively price their products and servicesléwge portion of the market. Finally, technologshalso lowered the barriers to entry and
made it possible for nonbanks to offer products serdices we have traditionally offered, such aeraatic funds transfer and automatic
payment systems. Our profitability depends, in,pgsbn our ability to successfully maintain andréase market share.

We may be adversely affected by the soundnesshafrdinancial institutions.

Financial services institutions are interrelated assult of trading, clearing, counterparty, drestrelationships. We have exposure to
many different industries and counterparties amtimely execute transactions with counterpartiethafinancial services industry, including
commercial banks, brokers and dealers, investmamkd) and other institutional clients. Many of gnéiginsactions expose us to credit risk in
the event of a default by a counterparty or cliégmy such losses could have a material adversetedfeour financial condition and results of
operations.

Our framework for managing risks may not be effeatiin mitigating risk and loss to us.

Our risk management framework seeks to mitigatearisl loss to us. We have established processesraceldures intended to
identify, measure, monitor, report and analyzetyipes of risk to which we are subject, includirguidity risk, credit risk, market risk, interest
rate risk, operational risk, compensation riskaleand compliance risk, and reputational risk, agnothers. However, as with any risk
management framework, there are inherent limitattonour risk management strategies as there misay exdevelop in the future, risks that
we have not appropriately anticipated or identifi@dr ability to successfully identify and managgks facing us is an important factor that car
significantly impact our results. If our risk mamagent framework proves ineffective, we could suffeexpected losses and could be mate
adversely affected.

We are subject to certain operational risks, incind, but not limited to, clients or employee fraahd data processing system
failures and errors.

Employee errors and employee and client misconctuaid subject us to financial losses or regulasamctions and seriously harm
reputation. Misconduct by our employees could idelhiding unauthorized activities from us, impropeunauthorized activities on behalf of
our clients or improper use of confidential infortioa. It is not always possible to prevent emploge®rs and misconduct, and the precaution
we take to prevent and detect this activity mayb®effective in all cases. Employee errors or onigieict could also subject us to financial
claims for negligence.
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We maintain a system of internal controls and iasoe coverage to mitigate our operational riskdugling data processing system
failures and errors and client or employee fratidut internal controls fail to prevent or detent@ccurrence, or if any resulting loss is not
insured or exceeds applicable insurance limitspuid have a material adverse effect on our busjrig®ncial condition and results of
operations.

If we are unable to keep pace with technologicalvadces in our industry, our ability to attract anetain clients could be adversely
affected.

The banking industry is constantly subject to tedbgical changes with frequent introductions of rteshnologydriven products an
services. In addition to better serving clients, ¢ffective use of technology increases our efficjeand enables us to reduce costs. Our future
success will depend in part on our ability to addrihe needs of our clients by using technologydvide products and services that will
satisfy client demands for convenience as wellreate additional efficiencies in our operationsiinber of our competitors have substant
greater resources to invest in technological impnoents, as well as significant economies of sddlere can be no assurance that we will be
able to implement and offer new technolegdyiven products and services to our clients. Iffaieto do so, our ability to attract and retain
clients may be adversely affected.

A breach in security of our systems or our thirdarty service providers’ communications and infortian technologies, including
with respect to our internet banking activities, @l have a material adverse effect on our business.

We rely heavily on communications and informatieohinology to conduct our business and internetibgrdctivities. Any failure or
interruption due to a breach in security, deniadervice attack, malware and spyware or other piisre activity by hackers could result in
failures or disruptions in our general ledger, d#pdoan, investment management, debit card managesystem, electronic banking and o
systems or those of our internet banking clientspArt of our business, we collect, process amirnrsensitive and confidential client
information on our behalf and on behalf of otherdiparties. Advances in computer capabilities thieo developments could result in a breach
of our systems designed to protect client dataitketige security measures we have in place. We palieies and procedures designed to
prevent or limit the effect of such a failure otarruption due to a security breach or other evehtair information systems; however, there
be no assurance that any such events will not aocufrthey do, that they will be adequately added. The occurrence of any failures,
interruptions or security breaches of our or oterimet banking clients’ information systems coudanéhge our reputation, result in a loss of
clients, subject us to additional regulatory serytior expose us to litigation and possible finahkability which could have an adverse effect
on our operating results and financial conditiomildfe in any of these situations subjects usgksrthat may vary in size and scope.

In addition, we rely on thirebarty service providers for a substantial portibowur communications, information, operating and
financial control systems technology. While we hagtected these thirgarty service providers carefully, we do not cohtineir actions. If
any of these thiréparty service providers experience financial, op@nal or technological difficulties, security bakees, or if there is any
disruption in our relationships with them, we mayrbquired to locate alternative sources for tiseseices. There can be no assurance that w
could negotiate terms as favorable to us or olgt@imices with similar functionality as we currenttigve without the expenditure of substantial
resources. Any of these circumstances could hawmaterial adverse effect on our business.

Our business continuity plans could prove to be deuate, resulting in a material interruption in adisruption to, our business ar
a negative impact on our results of operations.

We rely heavily on communications and informatigatems to conduct our business, and our operati@dependent on our ability
to protect our systems against damage from firegpdoss or telecommunication failure. The compstatems and network infrastructure we
use could be vulnerable to unforeseen problemssé heoblems may arise in both our internally dgwetbsystems and the systems of our
third—party service providers. Any failure or interruptiof these systems, whether due to severe weaideiral disasters, acts of war or
terrorism, criminal activity or other factors, cdukesult in failures or disruptions in general ledgleposit, loan, client relationship manager
and other systems. While we have a business cdtytiplan and other policies and procedures desigogaevent or limit the effect of a failu
interruption or security breach of our informatiystems, there can be no assurance that any slwskdar interruptions will not occur or, if
they do occur, that they will be adequately addrés$he occurrence of any failures or interruptiohsur information systems could damage
our reputation, result in a loss of clients, subjexto additional regulatory scrutiny, or exposeaucivil litigation and possible financial
liability, any of which could have a material adseeffect on our results of operations.
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Our trust and investment services operations maynegatively impacted by changes in economic and keaiconditions.

Our trust and investment services operations mayegeatively impacted by changes in general econoomditions and the conditiol
in the financial and securities markets, including values of assets held under management. Owgearent contracts generally provide for
fees payable for services based on the market wdlassets under management. Because most of niracts provide for a fee based on
market values of securities, declines in securjiiéses will generally have an adverse effect onreaults of operations from this business.
Market declines and reductions in the value ofai@nts’ trust and investment services accountsdcmsult in us losing trust and investment
services clients, including those who are also lanklients.

We are subject to claims and litigation pertainirig our fiduciary responsibilities.

Some of the services we provide, such as trustrarsdtment services, require us to act as fiduesafor our clients and others. From
time to time, third parties make claims and talgalection against us pertaining to the performaricrur fiduciary responsibilities. If fiducia
investment decisions are not appropriately docuatktd justify action taken or trades are placedirectly, among other possible claims, and
if these claims and legal actions are not resoinedmanner favorable to us, we may be exposeigihifisant financial liability and/or our
reputation could be damaged. Either of these resudty adversely impact demand for our productssandces or otherwise have a harmful
effect on our business and, in turn, on our finahodndition and results of operations.

Negative publicity could damage our reputation aadversely impact our business and financial results

Reputation risk, or the risk to our earnings anpitehdue to negative publicity, is inherent in dwsiness. Negative publicity can
result from our actual or alleged conduct in a nandf activities, including lending practices, inftation security, management actions,
corporate governance, and actions taken by goverhregulators and community organizations in respdo those activities. Negative
publicity can adversely affect our ability to kespd attract clients, and can expose us to litigadiod regulatory action, all of which could have
a material adverse effect on our business, finhooiadition and results of operations.

Potential acquisitions may disrupt our business adillite stockholder value.

While we remain committed to organic growth, weoaisay consider acquisition opportunities involvoamplementary financial
service organizations if the right situation wevatise. Various risks commonly associated wittugitions, include, among other things:

» Potential exposure to unknown or contingent ligibsi of the target compai

» Exposure to potential asset quality issues ofdhget compan

» Potential disruption to our busine

» Potential diversion of our managemserttme and attentio

» Possible loss of key employees and clients ofahget compan

» Difficulty in estimating the value of the targetrnpany

» Potential changes in banking or tax laws or reguiatthat may affect the target compi

Acquisitions may involve the payment of a premiueobook and market values, and, therefore, sofnéati of our tangible book
value and net income per common share may ocaorinection with any future transaction. Furtherméa#ure to realize the expected
revenue increases, cost savings, increases inaaagror product presence, and/or other projecte@tits from an acquisition could have a
material adverse effect on our business, finargabition and results of operations.

We are subject to changes in accounting principlpslicies or guidelines.

Our financial performance is impacted by accoungirigciples, policies and guidelines. Some of thesl&cies require the use of
estimates and assumptions that may affect the dloer assets or liabilities and financial resuBsme of our accounting policies are critical
because they require management to make diffisulfjective and complex judgments about mattersateainherently uncertain and because |
is likely that materially different amounts would beported under different conditions or usingetéht assumptions. If such estimates or
assumptions underlying our financial statementsray@rrect, we may experience material losses.
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From time to time, the Financial Accounting Stami3aBoard and the SEC change the financial accayatid reporting standards or
the interpretation of those standards that govserpteparation of our financial statements. Thésages are beyond our control, can be
difficult to predict and could materially impact\wave report our financial condition and result©pérations. Changes in these standards are
continuously occurring, and given recent econorpitditions, more drastic changes may occur. Theémphtation of such changes could t
a material adverse effect on our financial conditamd results of operations.

Our internal controls may be ineffective.

Management regularly reviews and updates its iaterantrols, disclosure controls and procedured,camporate governance policies
and procedures. Any system of controls, howevel dedigned and operated, is based in part on neatsumptions and can provide only
reasonable, not absolute, assurances that thetibpeof the controls are met. Any failure or cimoeention of our controls and procedures or
failure to comply with regulations related to catgrand procedures could cause us to report a imatexakness in internal control over
financial reporting and conclude that our conteotsl procedures are not effective, which could eaweaterial adverse effect on our business,
results of operations, and financial condition.

Risks Related to Investing in Our Common Stc
Our stock is thinly traded and our stock price célactuate.

Although our common stock is listed for tradingtbe NASDAQ Global Select Market, low volume of tiragl activity and volatility ir
the price of our common stock may make it diffidolt our shareholders to sell common stock whelreldsnd at prices they find attractive.
Our stock price can fluctuate significantly in reepe to a variety of factors including, among othérgs:

* actual or anticipated variations in our quartedguits of operation

* recommendations by securities anal

» operating and stock price performance of other aigs that investors deem comparable t

e news reports relating to trends, concerns and @gbaes in the financial services indus

» perceptions in the marketplace regarding us ocomrpetitors and other financial services compa
* new technology used, or services offered, by coitgpst anc

» changes in government regulatic

General market fluctuations, industry factors aadegal economic and political conditions and evenish as economic slowdowns
recessions, interest rate changes or credit lessl$r could also cause our stock price to decregsedless of our operating results.

To maintain adequate capital levels, we may be rieggl to raise additional capital in the future, buhat capital may not be
available when it is needed and/or could be dilatito our existing shareholders.

We are required by regulatory authorities to mamsalequate levels of capital to support our opanat In order to ensure our ability
to support the operations of the Banks we may teédchit or terminate cash dividends that can bigl pa our shareholders. In addition, we r
need to raise capital in the future. Our abilitydése capital, if needed, will depend in part an financial performance and conditions in the
capital markets at that time, and accordingly, wenot guarantee our ability to raise capital omseacceptable to us. In addition, if we decide
to raise equity capital in the future, the intesesftour shareholders could be diluted. Any isseasfccommon stock would dilute the ownershif
percentage of our current shareholders and angnssuof common stock at prices below tangible h@die would dilute the tangible book
value of each existing share of our common stodtt bg our current shareholders. The market priceusfcommon stock could also decrease
as a result of the sale of a large number of sharssnilar securities, or the perception that ssales could occur. If we cannot raise capital
when needed, our ability to serve as a source@fgth to the Banks, pay dividends, maintain adexcapital levels and liquidity, or further
expand our operations could be materially impaired.

If equity research analysts publish research or mets about our business with unfavorable commentanydowngrade our commo
stock, the price and trading volume of our commawak could decline

The trading market for our common stock could Beciéd by whether equity research analysts pubdisharch or reports about us
and our business and what is included in such relsea reports. If equity analysts publish reseaggorts about us containing unfavorable
commentary, downgrade our stock or cease publistépgrts about our business, the price of our stockd decline. If any analyst electing to
cover us downgrades our stock, our stock pricedcdatline rapidly. If any
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analyst electing to cover us ceases coverage @faispuld lose visibility in the market, which mrh could cause our common stock price or
trading volume to decline and our common stockedelss liquid.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
None

Item 2. Properties

The following table provides certain summary infation with respect to the principal properties imietr we conduct our operations,
all of which were leased, as of December 31, 2013 :

Expiration
Location Function Date
401 Charmany Drive, Madison, WI Full service banking location of FBB and officekBFS 2028
18500 W. Corporate Drive, Brookfield, WI Full service banking location of FBB - Milwaukee 2020
3913 West Prospect Avenue, Appleton, WI Loan production office of FBB 2017
230 Ohio Street, Oshkosh, WI Loan production office of FBB 2018
300 N. Broadway, Green Bay, WI Loan production office of FBB 2014

For the purpose of generating business developaoppdrtunities in assdtased financing and equipment financing, officecepa als
leased in the following metropolitan areas: Minraegy) Minnesota; Cleveland, Ohio; St. Louis, MisgpDetroit, Michigan; Denver, Colorad
Chicago, lllinois and Kansas City, Kansas underteinderm lease agreements, which generally hawvestef less than one year.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

We believe that no litigation is threatened or pegdn which we face potential loss or exposurechtdould materially affect our
consolidated financial position, consolidated ressaf operations or cash flows. Since our subselaact as depositories of funds, lenders and
fiduciaries, they are occasionally named as defetsda lawsuits involving a variety of claims. Tlard other litigation is incidental to our
business.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable.

PART II.

Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Edty Securities
Holders, Price Range and Dividends Decla

The common stock of the Corporation is traded @NASDAQ Global Select Market under the symbol “EBIAs of February 28,
2014, there were 386 registered shareholders ofdesf the Corporation’s common stock. Certainh& €orporation’s shares are held in
“nominee” or “street” name and the number of besiafiowners of such shares is approximately 592.
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The following table presents the range of high lamdsale prices of our common stock for each quavtthin the two most recent
fiscal years, according to information providedMSDAQ, and cash dividends declared in such years.

High Low Dividend Declared

2013

1st Quarter $ 27.9¢ $ 22.8¢ % 0.14
2nd Quarter 30.1C 25.51 0.14
3rd Quarter 33.9¢ 29.0¢ 0.14
4th Quarter 38.6¢ 29.9i 0.14
2012

1st Quarter $ 19.0C $ 1481 $ 0.07
2nd Quarter 23.5C 16.2( 0.07
3rd Quarter 24.5] 20.0C 0.07
4th Quarter 26.3( 22.3¢ 0.07

Dividend Policy

It has been our practice to pay a dividend to comsiareholders. Dividends historically have beariaded in the month following
the end of each calendar quarter. However, thexrahd amount of future dividends are at the digmref the Board of Directors of the
Corporation (the “Board”) and will depend upon tomsolidated earnings, financial condition, ligtydand capital requirements of the
Corporation and its subsidiaries, the amount ofi cigidends paid to the Corporation by its subsid& applicable government regulations an
policies, supervisory actions and other factorssiered relevant by the Board. Refer to Item 1 siBess - Supervision and Regulation - FBF
- Dividend Payments for additional discussion regay the limitations on dividends and other capitahtributions by the Banks to the
Corporation. The Board anticipates it will continoeedeclare dividends as appropriate based ontibeesfactors.

Equity Compensation Plan Informati

The following table summarizes certain informatwith respect to compensation plans under whichtgaeicurities of the
Corporation are authorized for issuance as of Déeerd1, 2013 .

Number of securities
remaining available for
future issuance under

Number of securities to Weighted-average equity compensation
be issued upon exercise exercise price of plans (excluding
of outstanding options, outstanding options, securities reflected in
Plan category warrants and rights warrants and rights column (a))
@ (b) (©
Equity compensation plans approved by securityérsid 51,000 $ 24.2¢ 198,94¢

Equity compensation plans not approved by sechotglers — — —
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Issuer Purchases of Securiti

The following tables sets forth information abdu Corporation's purchases of its common stockduhie three months ended
December 31, 2013 .

Approximate
Total Number of  Dollar Value of
Shares Purchased Shares that May

Total Number of _ ~ as Part of Publicly Yet Be Purchased
St?a?es grlTrc?l;(s)e( Average Price Pai Announced Plans Under the Plans or
Period o) Per Share or Programs Programs
October 1, 2013 - October 31, 2013 4,148  $ 32.4¢ — % —
November 1, 2013 - November 30, 2013 6,11¢ 35.52 — —
December 1, 2013 - December 31, 2013 2,14¢ 38.0( = —
Total 12,41( —

(1) All of the shares in this column representti{e 7,128hares that were surrendered to us to satisfy indamwithholding obligations
connection with the vesting of restricted sharest @) 5,282 shares used to exercise stock opthsnzart of a cashless exercise.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data
Five Year Comparison of Selected Consolidated Finaml Data

As of and for the Year Ended December 31,
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
(Dollars In Thousands, Except Per Share Data)

INCOME STATEMENT:
Interest income $ 53,81( $ 54,76¢  $ 56,217 % 56,62¢ $ 56,35¢
Interest expense 11,70¢ 16,88¢ 20,75¢ 24,67¢ 28,32:
Net interest income 42,10 37,88: 35,46 31,95: 28,03
Provision for loan and lease losses (959 4,24: 4,25( 7,044 8,22¢
Non-interest income 8,44z 8,69¢ 7,06( 6,74: 6,45(
Non-interest expense 29,18¢ 28,07¢ 25,97% 25,46t 23,81(
Endowment to First Business Charitable

Foundation 1,30(¢ — — — —
Goodwill impairment — — — 2,68¢ —
Net (gain) loss on foreclosed properties (117) 58t 42C 20¢€ 691
Income tax expense 7,38¢ 4,75( 3,44¢ 2,34¢ 717
Net income $ 13,74¢  $ 8,92¢ % 8,42t % 941 % 1,041
Yield on earning assets 4.52% 4.8t% 5.22% 5.3%% 5.57%
Cost of funds 1.1&% 1.75% 2.2(% 2.51% 3.02%
Interest rate spread 3.3% 3.11% 3.02% 2.82% 2.5%
Net interest margin 3.54% 3.3t% 3.2¢% 3.04% 2.7%
Return on average assets 1.1(% 0.7%% 0.7%% 0.0%% 0.1(%
Return on average equity 13.12% 12.6% 14.0% 1.67% 1.9(%
ENDING BALANCE SHEET:
Total assets $ 1,268,65 $ 1,226,100 $ 1,177,16! $ 1,107,05 $ 1,117,43
Securities 180,11¢ 200,59¢ 170,38t 153,37¢ 122,28t
Loans and leases, net 967,05( 896,56( 836,68 860,93! 839,80
Deposits 1,129,85! 1,092,25. 1,051,31: 988,29¢ 984,37:
FHLB advances and other borrowings 11,93¢ 12,40¢ 40,29: 41,50¢ 57,51t
Junior subordinated notes 10,31¢ 10,31t 10,31¢ 10,31¢ 10,31t
Stockholders’ equity 109,27! 99,53¢ 64,21« 55,33¢ 54,39

FINANCIAL CONDITION ANALYSIS:
Allowance for loan and lease losses to yeal

end loans 1.42% 1.6%% 1.6€% 1.85% 1.65%
Allowance to non-accrual loans and leases 87.6¢% 109.0!% 65.02% 42.3% 50.7¢%
Net charge-offs to average loans and lease 0.0€% 0.35% 0.74% 0.57% 0.6¢%
Non-accrual loans to gross loans and leases 1.61% 1.55% 2.5¢% 4.31% 3.2%
Average equity to average assets 8.3% 5.9¢% 5.3% 5.11% 5.1%
STOCKHOLDERS’ DATA:

Basic earnings per common shére $ 35C % 33C % 32 $ 0.37 0.41
Diluted earnings per common shéte 3.4¢ 3.2¢ 3.2¢8 0.37 0.41
Book value per share at end of period 27.71 25.41 24.4¢ 21.3C 21.4%
Tangible book value per share at end of period 27.71 25.41 24.4¢ 21.2¢ 20.3¢
Dividend declared per share 0.5€ 0.2¢ 0.2¢ 0.2¢ 0.2¢
Dividend payout ratio 16.0€% 8.51% 8.61% 75.68% 68.2¢%
Shares outstanding 3,943,99 3,916,66 2,625,56! 2,597,82 2,539,30!

(1) Basic and diluted earnings per share reflaatiags per common share as calculated under thelags method due to the existence of particigatin
securities.
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Item 7. Management'’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial @dition and Results of Operations
Forward-Looking Statements

When used in this report the words or phrases “ifaguld,” “should,” “hope,” “might,” “believe,” “expect,” “plan,” “assume,”
“intend,” “estimate,” “anticipate,” “project,” “lilely,” or similar expressions are intended to idgrifiorward-looking statements.” Such
statements are subject to risks and uncertaintielsiding, without limitation, changes in economanditions in the market areas of FBB or
FBB - Milwaukee, changes in policies by regulatagencies, fluctuation in interest rates, demandofams in the market areas of FBB or FBB
Milwaukee, borrowers defaulting in the repaymentoains and competition. These risks could causebrtsults to differ materially from wt
we have anticipated or projected. These risk fackod uncertainties should be carefully considbyedur shareholders and potential investors
Seeltem 1A—Risk Factorsfor discussion relating to risk factors impactirgy lnvestors should not place undue reliance orsanlg forward-
looking statements, which speak only as of the detde. The factors described within this Form 16ekild affect our financial performance
and could cause actual results for future periodfiffer materially from any opinions or statemeespressed with respect to future periods.

Where any such forward-looking statement includetatement of the assumptions or bases underlyicly forward-looking
statement, we caution that, while our managemdi@Jas such assumptions or bases are reasonab@nthde in good faith, assumed facts
or bases can vary from actual results, and thereéiffces between assumed facts or bases and asuléd can be material, depending on the
circumstances. Where, in any forward-looking staetnan expectation or belief is expressed asttwduesults, such expectation or belief is
expressed in good faith and believed to have anedde basis, but there can be no assurance thatatement of expectation or belief will be
achieved or accomplished.

We do not intend to, and specifically disclaim afpjigation to, update any forward-looking statensent

The following discussion and analysis is intendea@ aeview of significant events and factors affecthe financial condition and
results of operations for the periods indicatece @itscussion should be read in conjunction withGbesolidated Financial Statements and the
Notes thereto and the Selected Consolidated FiabDeita presented in this Form-K.

OVERVIEW

We are a registered bank holding company incorpdrahder the laws of the State of Wisconsin anagagaged in the commercial
banking business through our wholly-owned bankiungsgliaries, FBB and FBB-Milwaukee. All of our opgons are conducted through the
Banks and certain subsidiaries of FBB. We opersi® lausiness bank focusing on delivering a fu## iih commercial banking products and
services tailored to meet the specific needs oflsarad medium-sized businesses, business ownersutives, professionals and high net
worth individuals. Products include commercial liengl asset-based lending, equipment financingpfaw, trust and investment services,
treasury management services and a broad rangmposid products. We do not utilize a branch networattract retail clients. Our operating
philosophy is focused on local decision-making kodl client service from each of our primary bantklocations in Madison, Brookfield and
Appleton, Wisconsin combined with the efficiencyoaintralized administrative functions such as sugfoeo information technology, loan and
deposit operations, finance and accounting and huesources. We believe we have a unique nicheéssbanking model and we
consistently operate within this niche. This allawyesto provide a great deal of expertise in offgfinancial solutions to our clients with an
experienced staff who serve our clients on an arggbasis.

Our 2013 strategic initiatives included, but weet limited to, maintaining strong asset qualityas| as increasing full-service
banking relationships with commercial and industlgnts in order to increase our in-market def&nhancing our loan and lease portfolio
and growing our non-interest income. We have agudesuccess on all points of this strategic plapdsting record net income and record pre:
tax adjusted earnings while continuing to growhih&ance sheet, maintaining strong asset qualityjraproving our overall operating
efficiency. In 2014, we plan to continue to diliglgrfocus on maintaining asset quality, increadimg number and volume of transaction
accounts in an effort to support ongoing effortgttrease fee revenue associated with treasury geament services and maintaining our
efficiency ratio. We believe this strategy will ate opportunities to capitalize on economic expanas well as any current disruption to our
competitors' businesses in our core Wisconsin nisrkée continue to believe significant opportuméynains for this type of organic growth in
our commercial business lines, particularly witbir Milwaukee and Northeast Wisconsin markets.
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OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

» Our total assets increased to $1.269 billionfd3ecember 31, 2013, a 3.5% increase from $1k##6n at December 31, 2012

* Netincome for the year endDecember 31, 2013 was a record $13.7 million ,%4h@yher than the previous record of $8.9 million
earned for the year ended December 31, 2012 .

» Diluted earnings per common share were $3.4¢hyear ended December 31, 2013 compared to $ar2@d in the prior yei

* Net interest margin we3.54% for the year ended December 31, 2013, inipgol8 basis points compared to the year ended
December 31, 2012 .

e Top line revenue, which consists of net intenesbme and non-interest income, of $50.5 millionthe year endeBecember 31, 201
increased 8.5% compared to $46.6 million for theesgeriod in 2012 .

» Return on average assets and return on avegaify éor the year ended December 31, 2013 wer@%.and 13.12% respectively,
compared to 0.75% and 12.65% for 2012 .

* Pre-tax adjusted earnings, defined as pre-teonie excluding the effects of provision for loamnl dease losses, other identifiable costs
of credit and other discrete items unrelated toppiumary business activities, increased 15.4%recard level of $21.4 million for the
year endeDecember 31, 2013 as compared to $18.5 milliontferyear ended December 31, 2012 .

* We recorded a negative $959,000 provision fanland lease losses for the year ended Decemb20383 as compared to an expense
of $4.2 million for the year ended December 31,201

* Netloans and leasesDecember 31, 2013 increased $70.5 million , or 7,984967.1 million from $896.6 million as of
December 31, 2012 .

* Non-performing assets were $16.2 million and 1.28%ot#l assets as of December 31, 2013 , compargtisd million and 1.28%s
of December 31, 2012 .

* Net charg-offs as a percentage of average loans was 0.06#%dqear ended December 31, 2013 compared t&d0fBbthe year
ended December 31, 2012 .

» Trust assets under management and administrasiafh December 31, 2013 were a record $959.0amijlan increase of $174.7
million , or 22% , from December 31, 2012 .

* Average in-market deposits of $712.3 milliorr 6d.4% of total deposits, for the year ended D31, 2013 increased 9.8% ,
compared to $649.0 million , or 61.8% of total d&ifx) for the same period in 2012 .

»  During the fourth quarter of 2013 we donated$tillion to the First Business Charitable Founaiatf‘the Foundation”), establishing
an endowment for charitable giving in our markets.

RESULTS OF OPERATION

Top Line Revenue

Top line revenue is comprised of net interest ine@nd non-interest income. This measurement iscalsomonly referred to as
operating revenue. In 2013 , top line revenue exed by approximately 8.5% from the prior year. Eiponents of top line revenue were as
follows:

For the Year Ended December 31,

2013 2012 Change
(Dollars In Thousands)
Net interest income $ 42,108 $ 37,88: 11.2%
Non-interest income 8,44: 8,69¢ (3.0
Total top line revenue $ 50,547 $ 46,58( 8.5

33




Table of Contents
Pre-Tax Adjusted Earnings

Pre-tax adjusted earnings is comprised of our gxeéricome adding back (1) our provision for load &ases losses, (2) other
identifiable costs of credit and (3) other discriggens that are unrelated to our primary businessities. In our judgment, the presentation of
pre-tax adjusted earnings allows our management, tieaestors and analysts to better assess thetlyafvour business by removing the
volatility that is associated with costs of cregfid other discrete items and facilitates a moesasttined comparison of growth to our
benchmark peers. Pre-tax adjusted earnings is-&AgkP financial measure that does not representshiodld not be considered as an
alternative to net income derived in accordancé WIAAP. Our pre-tax adjusted earnings metric imprbly 15.4% when comparing the year
ended December 31, 2013 to the year ended Dece8hb2012 .

For the Year Ended December 31,

2013 2012 Change
(Dollars in Thousands)

Net income before taxes $ 21,13 % 13,67¢ 54.5%
Add back:

Provision for loan and lease losses (959) 4,24: NM

Net (gain) loss on foreclosed properties (117) 58t NM

Endowment to First Business Charitable Foundation 1,30(¢ — NM
Pre-tax adjusted earnings $ 21,35¢ % 18,50« 15.4

NM = Not meaningfu
Return on Average Assets and Return on Average Eqtyi

Return on average assets (“ROAA") was 1.10% foryder ended December 31, 2013 compared to 0.75%dagrear ended
December 31, 2012 . The increase in ROAA was pilyndue to the improvement in net income. Net ineoimcreased 54.0% year over year,
primarily due to improved net interest income aedative provision for loan and lease losses, wieflects continued overall asset quality
improvement. ROAA is a critical metric used by asrteasure the profitability of our organization dnwv efficiently our assets are deployed.
ROAA also allows us to better benchmark our profltey to our peers without the need to considdfedent degrees of leverage which can
ultimately influence return on equity measures.

Return on average equity (“ROAE”) for the year eh@=cember 31, 2013 was 13.12% compared to 12.65%¢ year ended
December 31, 2012 . ROAE increased as a resultmfoived net income outpacing the increase in cowvtlr in average equity. In December
2012, we successfully raised $29.1 million throtlghissuance and sale of 1,265,000 common sha$@8410 per share. The $27.1 million of
net proceeds was used to immediately repay a poofiour outstanding subordinated debt and incbase overall equity levels. In spite of -
increase in our average equity due to this, 20R®#E was greater than 2012. We view ROAE as an ilappbmeasurement for monitoring
profitability, and continue to focus on improvingraeturn to our shareholders by enhancing theadverofitability of our client relationships,
controlling our expenses and minimizing our cos$tsredit.

Net Interest Income

Net interest income levels depend on the amourasdiyields on interest-earning assets as comparthe amounts of and rates paid
on interest-bearing liabilities. Net interest inadia sensitive to changes in market rates of istened the asset/liability management processe
to prepare for and respond to such changes. Thedalthe next page shows our average balancesedtt average rates, net interest margin
and the spread between combined average ratedearrir interest-earning assets and cost of isitdxearing liabilities for the periods
indicated. The average balances are derived frarage daily balances.
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For the Year Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
Average Average Average
Average yield/ Average yield/ Average yield/
balance Interest cost balance Interest cost balance Interest cost
(Dollars In Thousands)

Interest-earning assets
Commercial real estate and other

mortgage loan® $ 633,60! $ 32,02: 5.00% $ 583,59: $ 31,667 5.4% 608,66! $ 33,19: 5.45%
Commercial and industrial loafs 268,37¢ 16,73¢ 6.22% 245,70\ 17,91¢ 7.2% 219,75: 16,95¢ 7.72%
Direct financing lease8 17,41 844 4.85% 15,87: 88¢ 5.5¢% 16,97« 1,03¢ 6.12%
Consumer and other loafis 16,44¢ 634 3.86% 16,89¢ 654 3.81% 18,59: 74z 3.9%
Total loans and leases receivable 935,84( 50,23¢ 5.31% 862,07: 51,12¢ 5.9% 863,98¢ 51,93: 6.01%
Mortgage-related securiti€s 159,18¢ 2,841 1.7¢% 171,04 3,16¢ 1.85% 162,81° 4,15¢€ 2.55%
Other investment securiti€s 33,99( 474 1.3% 17,53: 24¢ 1.42% 41C 1C 2.36%
FHLB stock 1,40z 4 0.2% 1,537 4 0.2¢% 2,361 2 0.1(%
Short-term investments 59,737 252 0.42% 74,49¢ 22( 0.3(% 48,39t 117 0.24%
Total interest-earning assets 1,190,15 53,81( 4.52% 1,126,67 54,76¢ 4.86% 1,077,97. 56,217 5.22%
Non-interest-earning assets 58,53¢ 56,31¢ 51,07¢
Total assets $ 1,248,69: $ 1,182,99 1,129,05:
Interest-bearing liabilities
Transaction accounts $ 62,57¢ 12¢ 02% $ 34,18( 94 0.28% 25,38¢ 7C 0.28%
Money market 450,55¢ 2,39¢ 0.52% 395,25! 3,02¢ 0.76% 300,65: 2,971 0.9%
Certificates of deposit 60,27¢ 611 1.01% 82,43( 96¢& 1.17% 80,32: 1,10¢ 1.3¢%
Brokered certificates of deposit 393,72t 6,60¢ 1.68% 400,69! 8,941 2.22% 486,59- 12,96¢ 2.6€%
Total interest-bearing deposits 967,13t 9,73¢ 1.01% 912,56:- 13,02¢ 1.4%% 892,95¢ 17,11t 1.92%
FHLB advances 6,471 13 0.1% 2,03¢ 32 1.5% 65€ 38 5.82%
Other borrowings 12,19¢ 84z 6.9(% 39,38¢ 2,71 6.8%% 41,48¢ 2,491 6.0(%
Junior subordinated notes 10,31t 1,111 10.7&%6 10,31t 1,11¢ 10.8% 10,31¢ 1,112 10.7&%
Total interest-bearing liabilities 996,12( 11,70¢ 1.18% 964,29 16,88¢ 1.7%% 945,41° 20,75¢ 2.2(%
Non-interest-bearing demand

deposit accounts 138,92( 137,11 112,89¢
Other non-interest-bearing

liabilities 8,90¢ 11,01¢ 10,67¢
Total liabilities 1,143,94! 1,112,43 1,068,991
Stockholders’ equity 104,74 70,55’ 60,06:
Total liabilities and stockholders’

equity $ 1,248,69 $ 1,182,99 1,129,05.
Net interest income $ 42,10: $ 37,88: $ 35,46:
Net interest spread 3.3% 3.11% 3.02%
Net interest-earning assets $ 194,03 $ 162,38 132,55¢
Net interest margin 3.5%% 3.36% 3.2%
Average interest-earning assets

average interest-bearing

liabilities 119.4&% 116.89% 114.02%
Return on average assets 1.1(% 0.75% 0.75%
Return on average equity 13.12% 12.65% 14.02%
Average equity to average assets 8.3% 5.9¢% 5.32%
Non-interest expense to average

assets 2.4%% 2.42% 2.3&%

(1) The average balances of loans and leasesimalon-performing loans and leases. Interest ingetaged to non-performing loans and leases isgrized when

collected.

(2) Includes amortized cost basis of assets availablsdie
(3) Yields on tax-exempt municipal obligations act presented on a t@quivalent basis in this tak
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The following table provides information with regpéo (1) the change in interest income attribigdblchanges in rate (changes in
rate multiplied by prior volume), (2) the changériterest income attributable to changes in voloh@nges in volume multiplied by prior ra
and (3) the change in rate/volume (changes inmatéplied by changes in volume) for the year enBetdember 31, 2018 mpared to the ye
ended December 31, 2012 and for the year endednidere31, 2012 compared to the year ended Decemb@031 .

Rate/Volume Analysis

Increase (Decrease) for the Year Ended December 31,

2013 compared to 2012 2012 compared to 2011
Rate/ Rate/
Rate Volume Volume Net Rate Volume Volume Net

(In Thousands)
Interest-earning assets
Commercial real estate and other

mortgage loans $ 217) $ 2,712 $ (187) $ 354 $ (165 $ (1,367) $ 7 $ (1,529
Commercial and industrial loans (2,597) 1,65: (239) (1,177) (93%) 2,00z (111 957
Direct financing leases (119 86 (12 (44 (89) (67) 5 (157
Consumer and other loans (©)] (18) 1 (20) (23 (68) 3 (89)

Total loans and leases receivable  (4,88¢€) 4,43¢ (43€) (887) (1,212 501 (96) (807)
Mortgage-related securities (1279) (220 10 (327) (1,140 21C (58) (98¢)
Other investment securities (5) 234 4 22t 4 41¢€ (17%) 23¢
FHLB Stock — — — — 4 (2) (2) 2
Short-term investments 94 (49) a7 33 26 63 14 102

Total net change in income on

interest-earning assets (4,919 4,40¢ (447) (95¢) (2,32¢6) 1,191 (31€) (1,45))
Interest-bearing liabilities
Transaction accounts (25) 78 (22) 32 — 24 — 24
Money market (919 427 (129 (625) (672) 93t (211 52
Certificates of deposit (132) (260) 35 (357) (16%) 29 4 (140)
Brokered certificates of deposit (2,220 (15€) 39 (2,339 (2,109 (2,289 372 (4,025

Total deposits (3,296 85 (76) (3,287 (2,945 (1,307 157 (4,089
FHLB advances (28 70 (62) (19 (28) 80 (58) (6)
Other borrowings 4 (1,872 2 (1,870 36€ (12¢) (19 221
Junior subordinated notes — — 4 (4) 3 — — 3

Total net change in expense on

interest-bearing liabilities (3,320 (1,717 (14%) (5,180 (2,604 (1,347 80 (3,87))

Net change in net interest income$ (1,599 $ 6,122 $ (309 $ 4,22« % 27¢ $ 2,53t $ (396) $ 242

Net interest income increased by $4.2 million 112% , for the year ended December 31, 2013 ccedparthe same period in 2012
The increase in net interest income during the yeer primarily attributable to favorable rate vadas from lower cost brokered certificates of
deposit, lower cost money market deposits and &blervolume-related variances due to the paydowattedr borrowings, partially offset by
an overall unfavorable variance affiliated with thecline in interest income on the loan and leasdqgiio. The yield on average earning assets
for the year ended December 31, 2013 was 4.52% am@dgo 4.86% for the year ended December 31, 20h2 decline in the yield on
average earning assets was related to the ovexdihd in the yield on the loan and lease portfelfach declined 56 basis points to 5.37% for
the year ended December 31, 2013 from 5.93% foyehe ended December 31, 2012 .

A significant portion of the commercial real estpttfolio is comprised of fixed rate loans withrtes generally up to five years. As
these loans reached their maturity in 2013 and 204y were renewed at current market rates, whiete\generally lower than the original rate
of the loan, and subject to competitive pricingsstees. As a result, the overall yield on the conaiakreal estate portfolio continued to
decline in 2013. The marketplace for commercial iaddistrial loans also continues to be subjecbtopetitive pressures, contributing to the
decline in yield on this portfolio. Irregular prgmaent activity and the associated fees collectdiinof interest partially offset the decline in
yields. Growth within the overall loe
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and lease portfolio has partially offset the deziiminterest income caused by the declining yieldshe loan and lease portfolio.

Over the course of 2013, we were successful inaiedithe average balance of excess cash held iacmount at the Federal Reserve
Bank. Excess cash was utilized to fund loan anselggowth, invest in agency and other investmerurgiges, increase our holdings of
commercial paper, and repay maturing brokeredfatiés of deposit. The average balance of thet4bom investment portfolio was $59.7
million with a yield of 0.42% for the year endedd@enber 31, 2013 as compared to the $74.5 milliah aiyield of 0.30% for the year ended
December 31, 2012 . As we strive to reduce on-lsataieet liquidity to target levels, we may on sama use other sources available to us to
fund asset growth. Other sources may include tearparse of FHLB short-term advances and orderlyasse of long-term brokered
certificates of deposit designed to mitigate interate risk as we provide fixed rate loan altawestto our clients. The improvement in yield in
our short-term investments was related to the @msgelin 2013 of additional commercial paper and énedk certificates of deposits from other
issuers with yields in excess of the target fedifurate.

The overall weighted average rate paid on intdrearing liabilities was 1.18% for the year endedddeber 31, 2013 , a decrease of
57 basis points from 1.75% for the year ended Déesr81, 2012 . The decrease in the overall rath®interest-bearing liabilities was
primarily caused by the replacement of certain miadgucertificates of deposit, principally brokereettificates of deposit, at lower current
market rates, lower rates paid on our money magebunts and favorable volume-related variancegapaydown of other borrowings. The
continued low rate environment combined with theurity structure of our brokered certificates opdsit provided us the opportunity to be
able to manage our liability structure in both migguterms and rate to deliver an enhanced netéstenargin during 2013 relative to 2012.
Further, our continued success of attracting inketadeposits through new business relationshipsramdased client deposit balances
contributed to the overall decline in our costwids. Average in-market client deposits - comprigkall transaction accounts, money market
accounts, and non-brokered certificates of depasitreased 9.8% to $712.3 million for the yearesh®ecember 31, 2013 fro$$49.0 million
for the year ended December 31, 2012 . Correspghydiwe also continued to reduce our overall rel&aon highecost brokered certificates
deposit by $7.0 million , or 1.7% , lowering avesdmplances to $393.7 million for the year endedeeser 31, 2013 from $400.7 million for
the year ended December 31, 2012 . Applying theraeteeds of our December 2012 common stock offedrrepay approximately $27.1
million of our subordinated debt combined with athaydowns caused our average balance of othenwimgs to decline by $27.2 million , or
69.0% , to $12.2 million for the year ended Decen#de 2013 from $39.4 million for the year endeccBraber 31, 2012 .

Net interest margin increased 18 basis points34%.for the year ended December 31, 2013 from 328%he year ended
December 31, 2012 . Changing the mix of our depxzsie reduced our overall cost of funds and pesjtigffected our net interest margin by
approximately 34 basis points. In addition, repgyarportion of our subordinated debt positivelyeaféd our net interest margin by
approximately 18 basis points. These positive iterae offset by an unfavorable impact of 32 basists in net interest margin due to the net
decline of interest income on our loan and leasd@im and a two basis point unfavorable impadatiag to the reinvestment of our cash flows
from our mortgage-related securities portfolioaatér current market rates.

Provision for Loan and Lease Losses

We recorded a negative provision for loan and léasses in the amount of $959,000 for the year @fkcember 31, 2013 as
compared to an expense of $4.2 million for the yemted December 31, 2012 . We determine our pmvisir loan and lease losses based
upon credit risk and other subjective factors pansuo our allowance for loan and lease loss metlogy, the magnitude of current and
historical net charge-offs recorded in the perind the amount of reserves established for impadirads that present collateral shortfall
positions.
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During the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2E2factors influencing the provision for loan dedse losses were the
following:

For the Year Ended December 31,
2013 2012
(In Thousands)

Changes in the provision for loan and lease lossassociated with:

Addition (release) of specific reserves on impalgaths, net $ (381) $ 1,901
Net decrease in allowance for loan and lease &srve due to subjective factor changes (492) —
Charge-offs in excess of specific reserves 18C 2,20¢
Recoveries (374 (481)
Change in inherent risk of the loan and lease platf 10¢ 617
Total provision for loan and lease losses $ (959 $ 4,24:

The addition (release) of specific reserves on inepgdoans represents new specific reserves estedolion impaired loans for which,
although collateral shortfalls are present, wedweliwe will be able to recover our principal andf@epresents the release of previously
established reserves that are no longer requiretbchease in allowance for loan and lease lossesves due to subjective factor changes
reflects management’s evaluation of the level g within the portfolio based upon the level arahtt of certain criteria such as delinquencies
volume and average loan size, average risk rautnical defaults, geographic concentrations,daard leases on management attention
watch lists, unemployment rates in our market areggerience in credit granting functions, and deasnin underwriting standards. As overall
asset quality metrics improve and the level anddref the factors improve for a sustainable peabtime, the level of general reserve due to
these factors may be reduced causing an overaittied in the level of the required reserve deetodak appropriate by management.
Conversely, increases in the level and trend afdtactors may warrant an increase to our ovelfalvance for loan loss. Chargefs in exces
of specific reserves represent an additional prowifor loan and lease losses required to mairiterallowance for loan and leases at a level
deemed appropriate by management. This amount &f tiee release of any specific reserve that nesetalready been provided. Charge-offs
in excess of specific reserves can occur in sitnativhere: (i) a loan has previously been partiatiften down to its estimated fair value and
continues to decline, (ii) rapid deterioration afradit requires an immediate partial or full cteaff, or (iii) the specific reserve was not
adequate to cover the amount of the required chaffg€hange in the inherent risk of the portfatian be influenced by growth or migration in
and out of an impaired loan classification whespecific evaluation of a particular credit may bquired rather than the application of a
general reserve ratio. ReferAgset Qualityfor further information regarding the overall cregiiality of our loan and lease portfolio.

Non-Interest Income

Non-interest income, consisting primarily of fe@sreed for trust and investment services, servieeggs on deposits, loan fee income
and income from bank-owned life insurance, decibaye$257,000 , or 3.0% , to $8.4 million for theay ended December 31, 2013, from
$8.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2012 .

Trust and investment services fee income increbge’B29,000 , or 28.3% , to $3.8 million for theayended December 31, 2013
compared to $2.9 million for the year ended DecamBfie2012 . Trust and investment services feenmecis primarily driven by the amount of
assets under management and administration angecpositively or negatively influenced by the tigiiand magnitude of volatility within the
capital markets. Fee income derived from assetenadministration is influenced by the volume afsactions processed for our clients.

At December 31, 2013, our trust assets under negmeagt were $763.9 million , or 24.5% more thantthst assets under
management of $613.5 million at December 31, 204Rile our assets under administration grew appnaexely 14.3% , to $195.1 million at
December 31, 2013 from $170.7 million at Decemler2®12 . The continued increase in assets undeageaent and under administration
reflects our success in hiring additional trust anestment officers and establishing new clietdtienships, while rising market values further
supported growth. We expect to increase our asselisr management and administration, but trusfrarestment services fee income will be
affected by any market volatility.

Loan fees decreased by approximately $731,0086.d1% , to $1.3 million for the year ended Decen8ier2013 from $2.0 million
for the year ended December 31, 2012 . The detlit@an fees is primarily attributable to certaimna
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recurring transactions included in the 2012 res@pecifically, in 2012, we completed a large Isgndication in the fourth quarter along with
the collection of administrative loan fees basedrugexits of certain credit relationships.

Increase in cash surrender value of bank-ownedn#fierance increased by $142,000 , or 20% , to $®05for the year ended
December 31, 2013 from $703,000 for the year efmmbmber 31, 2012 . In December 2012, we purchasedv $4.0 million bank-owned
life insurance policy and the increase in this aotas directly related to the earnings generatechfthis additional policy.

Other non-interest income decreased by $536,0066.4% , to $275,000 for the year ended Decembg?@13 from $811,00fdr the
year endeDecember 31, 2012 . The decrease in other incoménmrily due to a non-recurring item recordedhia fourth quarter of 2012
relating to the initial recognition of fair valueoi interest rate swap transactions. Additionall2012, we experienced a greater volume and
magnitude of gains associated with lease end tetinimactivity.

Non-Interest Expense

Non-interest expense increased by $1.7 million§.6%6 , to $30.4 million for the year ended Deceniie 2013 from $28.7 million for
the comparable period of 2012 primarily due torarease in other expenses where we recognize@arllion contribution to the First
Business Charitable Foundation (“the Foundatiorgfiected in other expenses, and increases in cesagien related expenses and profess
fees, partially offset by decreases in FDIC insoeatosts, gains on foreclosed properties and eddlbliquidation costs.

Compensation expense increased by $1.3 milliorv,4% , to $18.3 million for the year ended Decenide 2013 from $17.0 million
for the year ended December 31, 2012 . The inclieasampensation expense was primarily due to dmaeait increases and hiring in support
of strategic initiatives. The number of full-timguévalent employees as of December 31, 2013 and 8@% 145 and 140 , respectively.

Professional fees expense increased by $334,0000.44% , to $2.0 million for the year ended DebenB1, 2013 from $1.6 million
for the year ended December 31, 2012 . The incriegs®fessional fees was primarily due to incréasedit and tax fees associated with new
regulatory requirements for 2013 and fees incufoegrofessional and consulting services in suppbsdtrategic initiatives.

During the year ended December 31, 2013 , we rézedm net gain on foreclosed properties of $11 @@npared to a loss of
$585,000 for the year ended December 31, 2@abilizing market valuations and sales actiwfityoreclosed properties resulted in net gair
2013.

Other non-interest expense increased by $1.9 milar 70.2% , to $4.7 million for the year endeecBmber 31, 2013 compared to
$2.7 million for the same time period of 2012 . Therease in other non-interest expense was pilyrduke to a one-time endowment to the
Foundation in the amount of $1.3 million. While hvave regularly supported local charities and haeegnized related expense at the time of
the donations, during the fourth quarter of 2013agement elected to establish the endowment todrigture philanthropic causes are
supported for the foreseeable future through ancwributions from the Foundation rather thandhgoing operations of the Corporation.

FDIC insurance expense decreased by $991,0007,2%®b, to $0.7 million for the year ended Decenger2013 compared to $1.7
million for the year ended December 31, 2012 . Fibi€lirance expense is based upon a formula thatparates a variety of factors, including
but not limited to, average total assets, averagegible equity and the overall risk profile of ihatitution. A change in any one of these risk
elements during the comparative reporting periodg nause the underlying assessment base ratectodta and therefore influence the total
expense accrued.

Collateral liquidation costs decreased by $459,080070.1% , to $196,000 for the year ended Decedbe2013 from $655,000 for
the year ended December 31, 2012 . Collateraldafion costs are expenses incurred by us to faeiliesolution of impaired commercial
loans. The amount of collateral liquidation costsarded in any particular period is influenced gy timing and level of effort required for ei
individual loan. Our ability to recoup these cdsten our clients is uncertain and therefore expdraseincurred through our consolidated
results of operations. To the extent we are sutiddssrecouping these expenses from our clietis recovery of expense is shown as a net
reduction to this line item.
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Income Taxes

Income tax expense was $7.4 million for the yeaeenDecember 31, 2013 compared to $4.8 milliom tHe year ended
December 31, 2012 . The overall increase in taxeese is primarily due to the increased level oftareincome in comparison to the prior
year. The effective tax rate for the year enDecember 31, 2013 was 35.0% compared to 34.7%éoyear ended December 31, 2012 . The
effective tax rate differs from the federal statytoorporate tax rate as follows:

For the Year Ended December

31,
2013 2012

Statutory federal tax rate 34.L% 34.C%
State taxes, net of federal benefit 4.€ 4.7
FIN 48 expense, net of federal benefit — —
Bank owned life insurance (1.9 1.7
Tax-exempt security and loan income, net of TEFRistments (3.9 (3.9
Discrete items 0.1 0.2
Other 0.t 0.€

35.(% 34.7%

FINANCIAL CONDITION

General

At December 31, 2013 our total assets were $1.26@nb, an increase of $42.5 million , or 3.5%¢ifh $1.226 billion at
December 31, 2012 .

Short-term investments

Short-term investments increased by $4.1 millio8.1 million at December 31, 2013 from $64.0 imillat December 31, 2012 .
Our short-term investments primarily consist oknest-bearing deposits held at the Federal Reg&amk (“FRB”), commercial paper and
deposits purchased from domestic financial instihg through brokers. We value the safety and soesslprovided by the FRB and therefore
we incorporate short-term investments in our orahat-sheet liquidity program. In general, the lefaur short-term investments is
influenced by the timing of deposit gathering, shiled maturities of brokered deposits, fundingoaii and lease growth when opportunities
are presented, and the level of our available-fe-securities portfolio. Although the bulk of arortierm investments consist of deposits \
the FRB, the increase in short-term investmentsalaspartially driven by an increase in our inwestt in commercial paper. As of
December 31, 2013, our total investment in comiakpaper was $11.0 million as compared to $5.%ionilat December 31, 2012 . We
approach our decisions to purchase commercial peipteisimilar rigor and underwriting standards apglto our loan and lease portfolio. The
original maturities of the commercial paper aradgfy sixty days or less and provide an attractiiedd in comparison to other short-term
alternatives. These investments also assist usiintaining a shorter duration of our overall invesnt portfolio which we believe is necessary
to take advantage of an anticipated rising ratérenment. Please refer taquidity and Capital Resourcesfor further discussion.

Securities

Securities available-for-sale decreased by $20lmto $180.1 million at December 31, 2013 fro20$.6 million at December 31,
2012 . As of December 31, 2013, our overall seiegriportfolio had a duration of approximately 3e&ags. During the year ended December 3!
2013, we invested a portion of the cash flows resgkfrom our securities portfolio to support growritour loan and lease portfolio and
purchased commercial paper. In addition, the ol/eadlie of our securities portfolio has declinedegi recent increases in long-term interest
rates which negatively affected the value of thedsowe hold. Our available-for-sale investmentfptid primarily consists of collateralized
mortgage obligations and agency obligations angésl to provide a source of liquidity, including thbility to pledge securities for possible
future cash advances, while contributing to thaiegs potential of the Banks. The overall duratibthe securities portfolio is established and
maintained to further mitigate interest rate risggent within our balance sheet as identified thhoour asset/liability simulations. We purch
investment securities intended to protect our metrést margin while maintaining an acceptable pisiile. In addition, we will purchase
investments to utilize our cash position effectyweithin appropriate policy guidelines and estinsadé future cash demands. While
collateralized mortgage obligations present prepayrrisk and
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extension risk, we believe the overall credit isisociated with these investments is minimal, asrthjority of the obligations we hold are
guaranteed by the Government National Mortgage dason (“GNMA”"), a U.S. government agency. Theimsited prepayment streams
associated with this portfolio also allow us toteetnatch our short-term liabilities. The Banks/éstment policies allow for various types of
investments, including tax-exempt municipal se@sitThe ability to invest in tax-exempt municigakturities provides for further opportunity
to improve our overall yield on our securities jpaib. We evaluate the credit risk of the municipaligations prior to purchase and generally
limit our exposure to general obligation issuarfcesy municipalities, primarily in Wisconsin.

As we evaluate the level of on-balance-sheet ligigve continue to purchase U.S. Government agebtigations, primarily those
obligations issued by Federal Home Loan Mortgage@uation (“FHLMC”) and Federal National Mortgagagociation (“FNMA”"). We have
structured these purchases to have final maturitigsn two to four years from the issue date. Sahthe securities contain either quarterly or
one-time call features. The maturity structure wf gecurities portfolio allows us to effectively nage the cash flows of these securities along
with the collateralized mortgage obligations toale to meet loan demand in the near future wittlmeineed to immediately borrow funds
from our various funding sources and proactivelysicthe portfolio should interest rates rise witttie next two to four years. Our
management deems these securities to be crediynamthbelieves they exhibit appropriate marketdgdbr the risks assumed. We expect to
continue to purchase these types of approved $ieswiith appropriate maturity terms when theyarailable in the market.

During the year ended December 31, 2013, we rezedmunrealized holding losses of $4.1 million befmcome taxes through other
comprehensive income. Such declines were the rektiie increases in longer term interest rateschabove. The majority of the securities we
hold have active trading markets, therefore we mmte=xperienced difficulties in pricing our setias. We use a third-party pricing service as
our primary source of market prices for our se@siportfolio. On a quarterly basis, we validate thasonableness of prices received from thi
source through independent verification of a repmégtive sample of the portfolio, data integrityidation through comparison of current price
to prior period prices, and an expectation-basedyais of movement in prices based upon the chaingtee related yield curves and other
market factors. On a periodic basis, we reviewthivel-party pricing vendor’s methodology for prigimelevant securities and the results of its
internal control assessments. Our securities gartfosensitive to fluctuations in the intereseranvironment and has limited sensitivity to
credit risk due to the nature of the issuers aratantors of our securities as previously discusdéterest rates decline and the credit quality
of the securities remains constant or improvesfahievalue of our debt securities portfolio wolikkly improve, thereby increasing our total
comprehensive income. If interest rates increadettaa credit quality of the securities remains ¢amisor deteriorates, the fair value of our ¢
securities portfolio would likely decline and thkme decrease our total comprehensive income. Tagnitude of the fair value change will be
based upon the duration of the portfolio. A se@siportfolio with a longer average duration withéit greater market price volatility
movements than a securities portfolio with a shaterage duration in a changing rate environnméatsecurities within our portfolio were
deemed to be other-than-temporarily impaired e8eafember 31, 2013 . There were no sales of sexudtiring the years ended December 31
2013 and 2012 . As of December 31, 2013 and 201 8eaurities were classified as held to maturityrading securities.

At December 31, 2013, $42.3 million of our mortgaglated securities were pledged to secure oimuspbligations including
outstanding advances or unused borrowing capaditytive FHLB and interest rate swap contracts.

The table below sets forth information regarding @mortized cost and fair values of our investmantsmortgage-related securities
at the dates indicated.

As of December 31,
2013 2012 2011

Amortized cos Fair value Amortized cos Fair value Amortized cos Fair value

(In Thousands)
Securities available-for-sale
U.S. Government agency obligations - government-

sponsored enterprises $ 16,38 $ 16,24« $ 19667 $ 19,72 $ — 3 —
Municipal obligations 16,207 15,48¢ 11,891 12,03: 2,73¢ 2,831
Asset-backed securities 1,517 1,49 % — % — — —
Collateralized mortgage obligations - governmesi el 111,01( 111,96¢ 148,36¢ 151,64! 161,44: 165,40:
Collateralized mortgage obligations - government-

sponsored enterprises 35,56! 34,92: 17,12¢ 17,197 2,16¢ 2,15¢

$ 180,67¢ $ 180,11¢ $ 197,06 $ 200,59¢ $ 166,34 $ 170,38t
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U.S. Government agency obligations - governmentisped enterprises represent securities issuetebiyHLMC and FNMA.
Collateralized mortgage obligations - governmestiésl represent securities guaranteed by GNMA. tedadlized mortgage obligations -
government-sponsored enterprises include secugtiaganteed by FHLMC and the FNMA. Asset-backedisées represent securities issued
by the Student Loan Marketing Association (“SLMASN)d are 97% guaranteed by the U.S. government.difiahiobligations include
securities issued by various municipalities locatgcharily within the State of Wisconsin and areyarily general obligation bonds that are
tax-exempt in nature. As of December 31, 2013 sBaeér's securities exceeded 10% of our total stdd&ls' equity.

The following table sets forth the contractual misguand weighted average yield characteristictheffair value of our debt securities
at December 31, 2013, classified by remainingre@tial maturity. Actual maturities may differ frazontractual maturities because issuers
have the right to call or prepay obligations withoall or prepayment penalties. Yields on tax-exeaigigations have not been computed on
tax equivalent basis.

Less than One Year One to Five Years Five to Ten Years Over Ten Years
Weighted Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average Average
Balance Yield Balance Yield Balance Yield Balance Yield Total

(Dollars In Thousands)
Available-for-sale securities

Agency obligations $ — —% $ 14,24 1.99% $ 1,99 17% $  — —% $ 16,24

Municipal obligations — = 28E 1.0C 11,29: 1.9¢ 3,91¢ 1.97 15,48¢

Asset-backed securities — —% — —% 1,49¢ 1.42% — —% 1,49/
Collateralized mortgage obligations —

government issued — — 12t 1.9t 14,30¢ 2.2¢ 97,53¢ 2.3C 111,96¢
Collateralized mortgage obligations —

government sponsored enterprises — — 371 2.4C 11,92¢ 1.97 22,61¢ 2.2¢ 34,92;

$ = $ 15,03¢ $ 41,01¢ $ 124,06 $ 180,11¢

Derivative Activities

The Banks’ investment policies allow the Banks actigipate in hedging strategies or use financialres, options or forward
commitments or interest rate swaps with prior Bagydroval. The Banks utilize, from time to timeridative instruments in the course of their
asset/liability management. As of December 31, 28182012 , the Banks did not hold any derivatharuments that were designated as cas
flow or fair value hedges. The derivative portfationsists of interest rate swaps offered directlgualified commercial borrowers which
allowed the Banks to provide a fixed rate altenetd their clients while mitigating interest ratek by keeping a variable rate loan in their
portfolios. The Banks economically hedge clientddive transactions by entering into equal angetiting interest rate swap contracts
executed with dealer counterparties. The econosrtgé with the dealer counterparties allows the Baalprimarily offset the fixed rate
interest rate risk. Derivative transactions exeduiteough this program are not designated as aticguinedge relationships and are marked to
market through earnings each period.

As of December 31, 2013, the aggregate amortizatgpnal value of interest rate swaps with varioasmercial borrowers was
approximately $31.4 million . We receive fixed m#end pay floating rates based upon LIBOR on thepswith commercial borrowers. These
swaps mature between January 2014 and February. Z0#8&mercial borrower swaps are completed indepathdwith each borrower and are
not subject to master netting arrangements. Thesenercial borrower swaps were reported on the Ginlaged Balance Sheets as a derivative
asset of $528,000 , included in accrued interestivable and other assets, and as a derivatividityatf $918,000 , included in accrued interest
payable and other liabilities. On the offsettingapveontracts with dealer counterparties, we pasdfiates and receive floating rates based
LIBOR. These interest rate swaps also have matdatgs between January 2014 and February 2023er@®anterparty swaps are subject to
master netting agreements among the contractsnagtich of our banks and are reported on the Calasetl Balance Sheets as a derivative
asset of $418,000 and a net derivative liabilit$s28,000 . The value of these swaps was includeddrued interest receivable and other asse
and accrued interest payable and other liabilitiespectively, on the Consolidated Balance Sheeté Becember 31, 2013 .

Loans and Leases Receivable

Loans and leases receivable, net of allowanceofor nd lease losses, increased by $70.5 milbor7,9% , to $967.1 million at
December 31, 2013 from $896.6 million at Decemler2®12 . We principally originate commercial andustrial loans and commercial real
estate loans. The overall mix of our portfolio rémea fairly consistent in 2013 when compared to20As of December 31, 2013 and 2012 ,
approximately 65.7% and 68.4% of our loan and Igastolio, respectively, was
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concentrated in commercial real estate loans pifyriarour owner-occupied and non-owner-occupieakses. We were successful in growing
both our commercial real estate and commercialirghastrial portfolios. Our commercial real estatetfolio increased by $21.1 million , or
3.4% , to $645.1 million at December 31, 2013 fi®8624.0 million at December 31, 2012 . Our comméwui@ industrial portfolio increased
$37.1 million , or 14.5% , to $293.6 million at @ecber 31, 2013 from $256.5 million at DecemberZBL2 . We have emphasized actively
pursuing commercial and industrial loans as thigremnt of our loan and lease portfolio provides tractive yield commensurate with an
appropriate level of credit risk and generates arkat deposit and trust and investment relatiorssivipich may also translate into additional
fee revenue. Given the measured pace of improveimeaonomic conditions and what we believe to hénareased source of confidence
within our marketplace, there is nascent evideri¢eareased loan demand. While we continue to egpee greater competition as banks
operating in our primary geographic area attempleqoloy excess liquidity, we remain committed to onderwriting standards and will not
deviate from those standards for the sole purpbgeowing our loan and lease portfolio. We expaat mew loan and lease activity to be more
than adequate to replace normal amortization ardntinue to grow in future quarters.

Credit underwriting through a committee process k&y component of our operating philosophy. Bussrievelopment officers have
relatively low individual lending authority limitgnd thus a significant portion of our new credie@sions require approval from a loan
approval committee regardless of the type of laale@se, amount of the credit, or the related cexipés of each proposal. In addition, we
make every effort to ensure that there is apprtgpdallateral at the time of origination to protect interest in the related loan or lease. To
monitor the ongoing credit quality of our loans d@alses each credit is evaluated for proper riskgaising a nine grade risk rating system at
the the time of origination, subsequent renewa)weation of updated financial information from dagorrowers, or as other circumstances
dictate.

The following table presents information concerniing composition of the Banksbnsolidated loans and leases held for investnie

the dates indicated.

As of December 31,
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

(Dollars in Thousands)
Commercial real estate

loans
Commercial real estate —

owner occupied $ 141,16 14.% $ 144,98t 15% $ 150,52¢ 17.7% $  152,56( 174 $  168,21! 19.7%
Commercial real estate —

non-owner occupied 341,69! 34.¢ 323,66( 35.5 304,59 35.¢ 307,30 35.C 273,59: 32.C
Construction and land

development 68,70¢ 7.C 64,96¢ 7.1 38,12« 4.t 61,64! 7.C 64,19 7.5
Multi-family 62,75¢ 6.4 58,45¢ 6.4 43,90¢ 5.2 43,01: 4.¢ 43,95¢ 5.1
1-4 family 30,78t 3.1 31,94: 3.t 43,51: 5.1 53,84¢ 6.1 56,13: 6.€
Total commercial real

estate loans 645,11: 65.7 624,01: 68.4 580,66 68.2 618,37. 70.2 606,09( 70.€
Commercial and industrial

loans 293,55; 29.¢ 256,45¢ 28.1 237,09¢ 27.¢ 225,92: 25.7 199,66: 23.4
Direct financing leases, ne 26,06¢ 2.7 15,92¢ 1.7 17,12¢ 2.C 19,28¢ .z 27,607 3.2
Consumer and other
Home equity loans and

second mortgage loans 5,272 0.t 4,642 0.t 4,97( 0.€ 5,091 0.€ 7,87¢ 0.€
Other 11,97 1.2 11,67 1.3 11,68: 14 9,31t 1.1 13,26( 1.€
Total consumer and other 17,244 1.7 16,31 1.8 16,65: 2.C 14,40¢ 1.€ 21,13¢ 2.5
Total gross loans and lease

receivables 981,97: 100.(% 912,70t 100.(% 851,54 100.(% 877,98 100.(% 854,49 100.(%
Less:
Allowance for loan and

lease losses 13,90: 15,40( 14,15t 16,27: 14,12«
Deferred loan fees 1,021 74¢ 704 782 56€
Loans and lease

receivables, net $ 967,05( $ 896,56( $ 836,68 $ 860,93 $ 839,80
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The following table shows the scheduled contraatuaiurities of the Banks’ consolidated gross loamd leases held for investment,
as well as the dollar amount of such loans ancckasich are scheduled to mature after one yearhwave fixed or adjustable interest rates,
as of December 31, 2013 .

Interest Terms On Amounts Due

Amounts Due after One Year
After One
In One Year Year through After Five
or Less Five Years Years Total Fixed Rate Variable Rate

(In Thousands)
Commercial real estate

Owner-occupied $ 2653 $ 8143 $ 3319« $ 141,16¢ $ 84,19¢ $  30,43:
Non-owner occupied 61,39 182,26: 98,04 341,69! 229,96 50,33¢
Construction and land development 35,38: 22,57" 10,74¢ 68,70¢ 16,19: 17,13t
Multi-family 18,45: 21,85¢ 22,45 62,75¢ 37,91¢ 6,391
1-4 family 13,12: 14,51: 3,15 30,78¢ 15,61 2,05:
Commercial and industrial 89,82: 169,90( 33,83( 293,55! 73,85¢ 129,87t
Direct Financing Leases 1,54: 13,45: 11,07: 26,06: 24,52 —
Consumer and other 7,86: 9,381 — 17,24¢ 8,81¢ 56&

$ 254,100 $ 51537t $ 212,48¢ $ 981,97. $ 491,07t $ 236,78

Commercial Real Estate Loan$he Banks originate owner-occupied and non-ownetypied commercial real estate loans which
have fixed or adjustable rates and generally teringp to five years and amortizations of up to ttyefive years on existing commercial real
estate and new construction. The Banks also otigileans to construct commercial properties andpdera land development projects.

The Banks’ construction loans generally have tesfrex to 24 months with fixed or adjustable intreates and fees that are due at
the time of origination. Loan proceeds are dishdiiedncrements as construction progresses andogecpinspections warrant. Multi-family
loans are primarily secured by apartment buildiswgd are mostly located in Dane and Waukesha cau@iee-to-four family first mortgage
loans are generally secured by properties helthf@stment and primary and secondary residencearaflients.

Commercial real estate lending typically involvagger loan principal amounts than that for resi@¢ntortgage loans or consumer
loans. The repayment of these loans generallypgemtdent on sufficient income from the propertiesisag the loans to cover operating
expenses and debt service. Because payments onesoialneal estate loans are often dependent @mreadtmarket conditions impacting the
successful operation or development of the propartyusiness involved, repayment of such loandté&anore sensitive than other types of
loans to adverse conditions in the real estate ebankthe general economy, which are outside theob@r's control. In the event that the cash
flow from the property is reduced, the borrowettdity to repay the loan could be negatively imgattThe deterioration of one or a few of
these loans could cause a material increase itewelr of nonperforming loans, which would resul&ifoss of revenue from these loans and
could result in an increase in the provision f@ar@nd lease losses and an increase in chargefi§ which could have a material adverse
impact on our net income. Additionally, many ofgtbdoans have real estate as a primary or secondargonent of collateral. The market
value of real estate can fluctuate significantlaishort period of time as a result of economiad@@mns. Adverse developments affecting real
estate values in one or more of our markets confrhct collateral coverage associated with the caialeeal estate segment of our portfolio,
possibly leading to increased specific reservasharge-offs, which would adversely affect profitaii

Commercial and Industrial LoansThe Banks’commercial and industrial loan portfolio is compdsof loans for a variety of purpos
which principally are secured by inventory, acceueaiceivable, equipment, machinery and other catpassets and are advanced within li
prescribed by our loan policy. The majority of slighns are secured and typically backed by perspmaiantees of the owners of the
borrowing business. Of the $293.6 million of comaigrand industrial loans, including asset-baseado outstanding as of December 31,
2013, $112.3 million were originated by FBCC, asset-based lending subsidiary and $974,000 wageated by FBF, our factored
receivable business line. These asset-based loamgpically secured by the borrower’s accountereable and inventory. These loans
generally have higher interest rates and non-aat@n fees collected in lieu of interest and thkkateral supporting the credit is closely
monitored. Asset-based loans secured by owner-ietupal estate amounted to $18.4 million as ofdbduer 31, 2013 and are included in the
owner-occupied commercial real estate loan podfoli
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Our commercial loans are typically larger in amatinain loans to individual consumers and, therefoage the potential for larger
losses on a per loan basis. Additionally, adsased borrowers are usually highly leveraged arigige inconsistent historical earnings.
Significant adverse changes in various industrasdccause rapid declines in values and colledtalasisociated with those business assets
resulting in inadequate collateral coverage that exgose us to future losses. An increase in dpeeerves and charge-offs may have a
material adverse impact on our results of operation

LeasesLeases initiated through FBEF are originated wiftxed rate and typically a term of seven yeartess. It is customary in the
leasing industry to provide 100% financing, howeWBEF will, from time-to-time, require a down pagmt or lease deposit to provide a credi
enhancement. All equipment leases must have atiauliinsured endorsement and a loss payableeiaube interest of FBEF and must
carry sufficient physical damage and liability insnice.

FBEF leases machinery and equipment to clientsrdedses which qualify as direct financing leasegihancial reporting and as
operating leases for income tax purposes. Undedliteet financing method of accounting, the minimiease payments to be received under
the lease contract, together with the estimatediarateed residual value (approximating 3 to 20%h@fcost of the related equipment), are
recorded as lease receivables when the leasenisdsand the lease property is delivered to thatliehe excess of the minimum lease
payments and residual values over the cost ofghg@ment is recorded as unearned lease income rilgease income is recognized ovel
term of the lease on a basis which results in el late of return on the unrecovered lease investrhease payments are recorded when due
under the lease contract. Residual value is thmated fair market value of the equipment on lestdease termination. In estimating the
equipment’s fair value, FBEF relies on historicgberience by equipment type and manufacturer, ghed sources of used equipment pricing
internal evaluations and, when available, valuatioy independent appraisers, adjusted for knowrlge

Our commercial leases are typically larger in antdlan leases to individual consumers and, thezefuave the potential for larger
losses on an individual basis. Significant adversnges in various industries could cause rapitirdscin values of leased equipment resul
in inadequate collateral coverage that may expege tuture losses. An increase in specific researal charge-offs may have a material
adverse impact on our results of operations.

Consumer and Other Loand'he Banks originate a small amount of consumerda@amsisting of home equity, second mortgage,
credit card and other personal loans for profesdiand executive clients of the Banks.

Impaired Assets

Non-performing loans increased $1.7 million , or3P2 , to $15.9 million at December 31, 2013 comp&oe$14.1 million at
December 31, 2012 . Management continues to exaatiteiplined credit resolution process and hasessfully managed exits of certain
previously identified non-performing credits. Timeriease in non-accrual loans and leases at Dec&hp2013 was primarily related to one
relationship. Management does not believe thisrelaionship is indicative of a future continuingnd of increasing non-accrual loans and
leases.
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Our total impaired assets consisted of the follgnas of the dates indicated.

As of December 31,
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

(Dollars In Thousands)

Non-accrual loans and leases
Commercial real estate:

Commercial real estate — owner occupied $ 33¢ $ 76 $ 297 $ 6,28 % 7,99¢
Commercial real estate — non-owner occupied 28¢ 2,871 2,24¢ 5,14¢ 48€
Construction and land development 5,42: 4,94¢ 7,22¢ 9,27¢ 3,31
Multi-family 31 46 2,00¢ 4,18¢ 1,76(
1-4 family 521 1,00¢ 3,50¢ 4,237 3,01t
Total non-accrual commercial real estate 6,59¢ 9,63¢ 17,96¢ 29,12¢ 16,57«
Commercial and industrial 8,011 2,84: 1,55¢ 6,43¢ 7,08¢
Direct financing leases, net — — 18 — 1
Other:
Home equity and second mortgage 45% 612 1,00z 93¢ 872
Other 79t 1,03( 1,22 1,90¢ 3,29
Total non-accrual other loans 1,24¢ 1,64: 2,22¢ 2,84t 4,164
Total non-accrual loans and leases 15,85¢ 14,12 21,76¢ 38,40¢ 27,82¢
Foreclosed properties, net 338 1,57¢ 2,23¢ 1,75(C 1,671
Total non-performing assets 16,18¢ 15,69¢ 24,00: 40,15¢ 29,49¢
Performing troubled debt restructurings 371 1,10t 111 71¢ —
Total impaired assets $ 16,55¢ $ 16,80 $ 24,11 $ 40,87: $ 29,49¢
Total non-accrual loans and leases to gross laash¢cases 1.61% 1.55% 2.56% 4.31% 3.2€%
Total non-performing assets to total gross loamksleases plus
foreclosed properties, net 1.6% 1.7z 2.81% 4.57% 3.45%
Total non-performing assets to total assets 1.2¢% 1.28% 2.0% 3.6% 2.64%
Allowance for loan and lease losses to gross laaddeases 1.42% 1.6<% 1.6€% 1.85% 1.65%
Allowance for loan and lease losses to non-acdozels and leases 87.6¢% 109.0%% 65.03% 42.3% 50.7¢%

As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, $8.1 million $8@ million of the non-accrual loans are consderoubled debt restructurings,
respectively. As noted in the table above, nongrering assets consisted of non-accrual loans ars#$eand foreclosed properties totaling
$16.2 million , or 1.28% of total assets, as of ®@aber 31, 2013, an increase in non-performingtiasse3.1% , or $492,000 , from
December 31, 2012 . We experienced a modest ireiramn-performing assets, despite successfultefio executing a disciplined credit
resolution process, due to the addition of onedaedationship to non-performing assets. Manageineligves the increase in this ratio due to
the addition of one relationship is not systemiaature or indicative of a future continuing tresfdncreasing non-performing assets.
Management expects the outcome to be consisteimthdtresults experienced throughout 2013 due smgressive and disciplined credit
resolution process. Impaired loans and leases Bea#mber 31, 2013 and 2012 also included $37186601.1 million of loans that are
performing troubled debt restructurings which asasidered impaired, due to the concession in telotsare not on non-accrual status.
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A summary of our current period non-accrual load kase activity is as follows:

(In Thousands)

Non-accrual loans and leases as of December 32, 201 $ 14,12:
Loans and leases transferred into non-accrualsstatu 10,33:
Non-accrual loans and leases returned to accrataisst (670
Non-accrual loans and leases transferred to fasedlproperties (1,38))
Non-accrual loans and leases partially or fullyrgled-off (71€)
Cash received and applied to principal of non-aadaans and leases (5,832
Non-accrual loans and leases as of December 3B, 201 $ 15,85¢

We use a wide variety of available metrics to as#ies overall asset quality of the portfolio andome metric is used independently to
make a final conclusion as to the asset qualithefportfolio. Non-performing assets as a percentddotal assets remained flat at 1.28% at
both December 31, 2013 and 2012 . Total non-peifgyrassets to total loans and leases and foreclusgerties as of December 31, 2013 an
December 31, 2012 were 1.65% and 1.72% , respicthie will pursue a variety of legal remedies astf our disciplined credit resolution
process to recover our outstanding principal inicigdut not limited to foreclosure action, repossas, deed in lieu of foreclosure action, sale:
of underlying collateral or negotiated settlemeWhile our total non-performing assets ratio reradifiat our total non-performing assets to
total loans and leases and foreclosed propertiesinaproved. This improvement provides furtherighg to our success in working problem
assets through the entire process and eliminatirigdr losses and improving overall asset quality.

We also monitor early stage delinquencies to pmindight into potential future problems. As of Betber 31, 2013, the payment
performance did not point to any new areas of conaes approximately 99.5% of the loan and leas#gdio was in a current payment status.
This metric can change rapidly however, if factangnown to us change. We also monitor our assditytiarough our established categories
as defined iNote 4of our Consolidated Financial Statements.We armggmsitive trends with improving percentagesoafris and leases in
our higher quality loan categories which is indieatf overall credit quality improvement. Whileerall asset quality has improved, we will
continue to actively monitor the credit qualityafr loan and lease portfolios. Through this momigpeffort, we may identify additional loans
and leases for which the borrowers or lesseesaiadndifficulties making the required principaldamterest payments based upon factors
including, but not limited to, the inability to $&he underlying collateral, inadequate cash flownf the operations of the underlying busines
liquidation events, or bankruptcy filings and tHere, we expect to continue to experience addittonrson-accrual loans. We are proactively
working with our impaired loan borrowers to find améngful solutions to difficult situations that drethe best interests of the Banks. Given
current level of non-accrual loans, any improvememéeducing this balance will likely be at a slovpace than what has been accomplished
over the last several years. We expect to demdastraoverall declining trend of n@etcrual loan balances, however, we may experienoe
volatility in this trend from time to time.

In 2013, as well as in the previous four fiscadnge there were no loans over 90 days past dustdlnaccruing interest. Loans and
leases greater than 90 days past due are considgraitted and are placed on non-accrual statush aived while a loan or a lease is on
non-accrual status is generally applied solelyragjdhe outstanding principal. If collectability thie contractual principal and interest is not in
doubt, payments received may be applied to bo#rest due on a cash basis and principal.
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Additional information about impaired loans as pfldor the years indicated was as follows:

As of December 31,

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
(In Thousands)
Impaired loans and leases with no impairment reserv $ 820 $ 11,00¢ $ 18,88¢ $ 19,74¢ $ 13,24!
Impaired loans and leases with impairment resenegsired 8,02¢ 4,221 2,98¢ 19,37¢ 14,58:
Total impaired loans and leases 16,22¢ 15,22 21,87: 39,12/ 27,82¢
Less:
Impairment reserve (included in allowance for laaal lease
losses) 40z 1,517 88¢ 3,45¢ 1,84¢
Net impaired loans and leases $ 1582: $ 13,71 $ 20,98 $ 3566 $ 2597¢
Average impaired loans and leases $ 12,08 $ 17,94 $ 33,790 $ 29,71« $ 20,39
For the years ended December 31,
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
(In Thousands)
Interest income attributable to impaired loans eades $ 887 $ 1432 $ 268. $ 2,70z $  1,75¢
Less: Interest income recognized on impaired |@anikleases 221 321 787 10z 14¢
Net foregone interest income on impaired loansleases $ 666 $ 1,111 $ 1,898 $§ 260C $ 1,60¢

Loans with no specific reserves required repreisepéired loans where the collateral, based uporentiinformation, is deemed to be
sufficient or that have been partially chargedtoffeflect our net realizable value of the loan.atanalyzing the adequacy of collateral, we
obtain external appraisals. Our policy regardingioercial real estate appraisals requires the atiitim of appraisers from our approved list,
performance of independent reviews to monitor thality of such appraisals and receipt of new agtaifor impaired loans at least annually,
or more frequently as circumstances warrant. Weenaalustments to the appraisals for appropriatasgelosts. In addition, the ordering of
appraisals and review of the appraisals are peddroy individuals who are independent of the bissrdevelopment process. Based on the
specific evaluation of the collateral of each immpdiloan, we believe the reserve for impaired lomas appropriate at December 31, 2013 .
However, we cannot provide assurance that the éaxtircumstances surrounding each individual iregddoan will not change and that the
specific reserve or current carrying value will betdifferent in the future which may require agbdil charge-offs or specific reserves to be
recorded.

Foreclosed properties are recorded at the loweostfor net realizable value. If, at the time akfdosure, the fair value less cost to
sell is lower than the carrying value of the lotng difference, if any, is charged to the allowafurdoan and lease losses prior to transfer to
foreclosed property. The fair value is based orraipagls, discounted cash flow analysis (the majafitwhich is based on current occupancy
and lease rates) or verifiable offers to purchA#er foreclosure, valuation allowances or futunéte«downs to net realizable value are charge
directly to non-interest expense. Foreclosed ptaewere $333,000 , a decrease of 78.8% , at Disee81, 2013 from $1.6 million at
December 31, 2012 . The decrease in foreclosecepiep is primarily attributable to dispositionmbperties. We recorded impairment losses
of approximately $59,000 for the year ended DecerBlhe2013 . Net gains on sales of existing foreetbproperty inventory were $176,000
for the year ended December 31, 2013 . We contme®aluate possible exit strategies on our impdwans when foreclosure action may be
probable and our level of foreclosed assets magase in the future. Loans are transferred to fosed properties when we claim legal title to
the properties.
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A summary of foreclosed properties activity for trears ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 is asvfollo

For the Year Ended December 31,

2013 2012
(In Thousands)
Balance at the beginning of the period $ 1,57¢ $ 2,23¢
Transfer of loans to foreclosed properties, at logfecost or fair value 1,381 1,511
Payments to priority lien holders of foreclosedpmuies — 367
Impairment adjustments (59) (600
Net book value of properties sold (2,567%) (1,940
Balance at the end of the period $ 33 % 1,57¢

Allowance for Loan and Lease Losses

The allowance for loan and lease losses as a gageenf gross loans and leases was 1.42% as ofhibere31, 2013 and 1.69% as of
December 31, 2012 . Non-accrual loans and leasapascentage of gross loans and leases increade@ilts at December 31, 2013 compare
to 1.55% at December 31, 2012 . During the yeaeémkcember 31, 2013 , we recorded net chargesofisipaired loans and leases of
approximately $540,000 , comprised of $914,000hafrge-offs and $374,000 of recoveries. During tb@ryended December 31, 2012 , we
recorded net charge-offs on impaired loans andfeasapproximately $3.0 million , comprised of%illion of charge-offs and $481,000 of
recoveries.

As of December 31, 2013 and 2012 , our allowancéofm and lease losses to total non-accrual laaddeases was 87.68% and
109.05% , respectively. Impaired loans and leask#i weaknesses that inhibit repayment in conmg@with the original terms of the note or
lease. However, the measurement of impairment amsland leases may not always result in a spees&rve included in the allowance for
loan and lease losses. As part of the underwrjinogess, as well as our ongoing monitoring effars try to ensure that we have appropriate
collateral to protect our interest in the relatean or lease. As a result of this practice, a fgamt portion of our outstanding balance of non-
performing loans or leases either does not reqaditional specific reserves or requires only aimé amount of required specific reserve, as
we believe the loans and leases are adequatefterallized as of the measurement period. In additt@nagement is proactive in recording
charge-offs to bring loans to their net realizald&ie in situations where it is determined withtamty that we will not recover the entire
amount of our principal. This practice may leatiower allowance for loan and lease loss to namtadt loans and leases ratio as compared 1
our peers or industry expectations. As asset gquadintinues to improve, our allowance for loan &abe loss is measured more through
general characteristics, including historical lexperience, of our portfolio rather than througbdfic identification and we therefore expect to
see this ratio continue to rise. Conversely, ifidentify further impaired loans, this ratio coultlfif the impaired loans are adequately
collateralized and therefore require no specifigemeral reserve. Given our business practiceg@aadation of our existing loan and lease
portfolio, we believe this coverage ratio is appraje for the probable losses inherent in our laad lease portfolio as of December 31, 2013 .

To determine the level and composition of the atlove for loan and lease losses, we break out ttfolmby segments and risk
ratings. First, we evaluate loans and leases fampial impairment classification. We analyze ekan and lease determined to be impaired o
an individual basis to determine a specific reséaged upon the estimated value of the underlyatigteral for collateral-dependent loans, or
alternatively, the present value of expected chshst We apply historical trends from establishisl factors to each category of loans and
leases that has not been individually evaluatedh®purpose of establishing the general portiothefallowance. Established risk factors
include delinquencies, volume and average sizeaf telationships, average risk rating, techniefhudlts, geographic concentrations, loans
and leases on management attention watch listsppiogment rates in our market areas, experiendesircredit granting functions, changes in
underwriting standards and level of non-performiisgets and related fair value of underlying caltaté-urther, we complete a historical
charge-off migration analysis utilizing the mosteat three years of net charge-offs and trace igeation of the risk rating from origination
through charge-off. The historical percentage efdmounts charged-off for each risk rating is ayedafor the three-year period giving greater
weight in the calculation to the recent years. Wantapply these percentages to the current loateasd portfolio as an indicator of probable
losses within the portfolio. In 2013, based onrémults of our continuous risk assessment and wramit process, we refined our methodology
of establishing the general portion of the allowaafar loan and lease losses attributable to thefiial loss migration by shortening the
historical loss period from five years to threengeand increasing the historical loss factor ajgpieeCategory Il loans. Both changes were
implemented to more accurately reflect the estiméatacurred losses for the collectively evalualieahs as of the balance sheet date. Givel
asset quality improvements and a continuing redoatf net charge-offs as a percentage of totaldpan
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our prescribed methodology warranted a reducticghénoverall level of allowance for loan and lekseses as of the measurement date. This
component of our methodology was the primary fattaeducing the level of allowance for loan angske losses to total loans to 1.42% at
December 31, 2013 as compared to 1.69% at Dece®ihen12 .

When it is determined that we will not receive eatire contractual principal or the loss is conBdnwe record a charge against the
allowance for loan and lease loss reserve to liiadoan or lease to its net realizable value. Westimated proceeds from the sales of pro|
securing collateral dependent loans are deemeffigient to repay the related debt, we confirm mability to receive our entire contractual
principal on certain commercial real estate loafeny of the impaired loans as of December 31, 20&Xollateral dependent. It is part of our
routine process to obtain appraisals on all impllioans at least annually, or more frequently esuaistances warrant. As we have completed
new appraisals and/or market evaluations, we hawed that in general real estate values have &tedbjlhowever, in specific situations curr
fair values collateralizing certain impaired loamsre inadequate to support the entire amount obtittanding debt. Foreclosure actions may
have been initiated on certain of these commereallestate and other mortgage loans.

As a result of our review process, we have condubat an appropriate allowance for loan and léasereserve for the existing loan
and lease portfolio was $13.9 million or 1.42% aisy loans and leases, at December 31, 2013 . akimconsideration net charge-offs of
$540,000 , the required provision for loan andédasses was $(959,000) for the year ended DeceBih@013 . However, given ongoing
complexities with current workout situations and theasured pace of improvement in economic comditifurther charge-offs and increased
provisions for loan losses may be recorded if &olulitt facts and circumstances lead us to a diftevenclusion. In addition, various federal
state regulatory agencies review the allowancéofom and lease losses. These agencies could reguiegn loan and lease balances to be
classified differently or charged off when theiedit evaluations differ from those of managemeaséa on their judgments about information
available to them at the time of their examination.
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A summary of the activity in the allowance for loand lease losses follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
(Dollars In Thousands)
Allowance at beginning of period $ 15400 $ 14,15¢ $ 16,270 $ 14,12« $ 11,84¢
Charge-offs:
Commercial real estate
Commercial real estate — owner occupied — (119 (1,376 (25¢) —
Commercial real estate — non-owner occupied (792) — (1,617) — —
Construction and land development (72) 47 (2,097 (2,110 (2,68))
Multi-family — (130 (312 (1,059 (424)
1-4 family (33) (322) (942) (59€) (542
Commercial and industrial (14) (2,739 (47%) (352 (2,03))
Direct financing leases — — — — (231)
Consumer and other
Home equity and second mortgage — (72 (113 (142 (157)
Other 4) (56) (309 (693%) (36)
Total charge-offs (919 (3,479 (7,230 (5,210 (6,102)
Recoveries:
Commercial real estate
Commercial real estate — owner occupied 1 5 — — —
Commercial real estate — non-owner occupied 61 192 — — —
Construction and land development 281 101 13 23 —
Multi-family — — 28¢ — —
1-4 family 10 77 — 16 —
Commercial and industrial 11 6€ 472 26¢ 147
Direct financing leases 5 — 19 8 —
Consumer and other
Home equity and second mortgage 5 11 68 1 8
Other — 29 2 — —
Total recoveries 374 481 864 313 15¢
Net charge-offs (540) (2,999) (6,36€) (4,897) (5,947
Provision for loan and lease losses (959) 4,243 4,25( 7,044 8,22t
Allowance at end of period $ 1390 $ 15400C $ 14,158 $ 16,27 $ 14,12
Net charge-offs as a % of average gross loanseasegs 0.0€% 0.35% 0.74% 0.57% 0.6%%

We review our methodology and periodically adjuktcation percentages of allowance by segmentefiected in the following table
based upon historical results. Within the spedéitegories, certain loans or leases have beerifiddrior specific reserve allocations as wel
the whole category of that loan type or lease begwgewed for a general reserve based on the farggmalysis of trends and overall balance
growth within that category.
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The table below shows our allocation of the alloeeafor loan and lease losses by loan portfolio ssdsat the dates indicated.

As of December 31,

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
Percent of Percent of Percent of Percent of Percent of
Allowance loans in Allowance loans in Allowance loans in Allowance loans in Allowance loans in
for loan each for loan each for loan each for loan each for loan each
and lease categoryto andlease categoryto andlease categoryto andlease categoryto andlease category to
losses total loans losses total loans losses total loans losses total loans losses total loans

(Dollars In Thousands)

Loan segments:

Commercial real estate  $ 9,05¢ 65.7% $ 10,69! 68.31% $ 9,55¢ 68.1% $ 11,26 704% $ 8,89( 70.9%
Commercial and

industrial 4,23¢ 29.8% 4,12¢ 28.1(% 3,971 27.8% 4,271 25.7% 4,131 23.3%
Direct financing leases,

net 33¢ 2.65% 207 1.74% 24C 2.01% 24% 2.2(% 357 3.2%
Consumer and other 273 1.7% 371 1.7% 384 1.9€% 482 1.6% 74€ 2.47%
Total $ 13,90 99.9% $  15,40( 100.0% $ 14,15t 100.0% $ 16,27: 100.0% $ 14,12« 100.0%

Although we believe the allowance for loan and édlasses was appropriate based on the currentdéledn delinquencies, non-
accrual loans, trends in charge-offs, economic itimms and other factors as of December 31, 2Qk8re can be no assurance that future
adjustments to the allowance will not be necess&igadhere to high underwriting standards in otdenaintain strong asset quality and
continue to pursue practical and legal methodbéction, repossession and disposal of any sueibted assets.

Deposits

As of December 31, 2013, deposits increased by6$8illion to $1.130 billion from $1.092 billion &@ecember 31, 2012 . The
increase in deposits was due to an increase irebedlcertificates of deposit, which increased bg.$illion to $393.5 million at
December 31, 2013 from $374.4 million at DecemlerZ®12 and by an increase in the level of in-miadieposits of $18.5 million to $736.3
million at December 31, 2013 from $717.9 millionC®cember 31, 2012 . Deposits continue to be timegoy source of the Bank&indings fo
lending and other investment activities. A varietyaccounts are designed to attract both shorti@mgtterm deposits. These accounts include
non-interest-bearing transaction accounts, intdreating transaction accounts, money market accamatsime deposits. Deposit terms offe
by the Banks vary according to the minimum balamecgiired, the time period the funds must remaideposit, the rates and products offered
by competitors and the interest rates charged logr @burces of funds, among other factors. Withsesarately chartered banks within our
Corporation, we have the ability to offer our ctieadditional FDIC insurance coverage by maintgrseparate deposits with each Bank.

Our strategic efforts continue to be focused oriragloh-market relationships and related transaatieposit accounts. We measure the
success of imparket deposit gathering efforts based on the nuiauhie average balances of our deposit accountsmagared to ending balanc
due to the volatility of some of our larger relatships. Our Banks’ in-market deposits are obtapréadarily from the South Central,
Northeastern and Southeastern regions of Wisco@fiour total average deposits for the year erDecember 31, 2013 , approximately
$712.3 million , or 64.4% , were considered in-neartkeposits. This compares to in-market deposi#64€.0 million , or 61.8% , for 2012 .
Refer toNote 7 - Depositsn our Consolidated Financial Statements for addél information regarding our deposit composition.

The Banks’ liquidity policies limit the amount ofdkered certificates of deposit to 75% of total al&ts, with an operating goal of
50% or less of brokered certificates of depostbtal deposits. At December 31, 2013, the ratibrokered certificates of deposit to total
deposits was 34.8% . We will continue to use brelteteposits in specific maturity periods needegicslly three to five years, to effectively
mitigate the interest rate risk measured throughagset/liability management process and suppeet @agowth initiatives while taking into
consideration our operating goals and desired lefvetage of brokered certificates of deposit. B#pending balances associated with in-
market relationships will fluctuate based upon migtwf time deposits, client demands for the uktheir cash, our ability to service and
maintain client relationships and new client depasationships.
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The following table sets forth the amount and mtas of the Banks’ certificates of deposit, indlugl brokered deposits, at
December 31, 2013 .

Over six months

Three months and Over three months through twelve Over twelve
Interest rate less through six month months months Total
(In Thousands)
0.00% to 0.99% $ 25,66: $ 29,01¢ $ 41,267 $ 118,05t $ 214,00:
1.00% to 1.99% 11,19 12,10¢ 15,87¢ 77,83¢ 117,01:
2.00% to 2.99% 7,45¢ 10,92¢ 8,911 76,54: 103,83t
3.00% to 3.99% 14k 20C 10,297 — 10,64:
4.00% to 4.99% 14 — — — 14

5.00% and greater — — — — —
$ 44,46¢ $ 52,25¢ % 76,35¢ $ 272,43 $ 445,51:

At December 31, 2013, time deposits included $28IRon of certificates of deposit in denominatgreater than or equal to
$100,000. Of these certificates, $3.2 million areesluled to mature in three months or less, $5lbmin greater than three through six
months, $3.9 million in greater than six througlelve months and $10.4 million in greater than twetvonths.

Of the total time deposits outstanding as of Deaandi, 2013, $173.1 million are scheduled to neatur2014 , $117.4 million in
2015, $58.1 million in 2016 , $31.6 million in 201$23.4 million in 2018 , and $42.0 million thafer. As of December 31, 2013, we have
$71.2 million of brokered certificates of depostieh the Banks have the right to call prior to sieheduled maturity. These certificates have
original maturities ranging from 3-17 years withtiops to call after the first six to twelve montbisholding the certificates with monthly,
quarterly, or semi-annually call options thereafter

Borrowings

We had total borrowings of $22.3 million as of Dexteer 31, 2013, a decrease of $469,000 , or 2{t6tn, $22.7 million at
December 31, 2012 . The decline in total borrowisg®lated to the maturity of long-term FHLB aduas.

The following table sets forth the outstanding baks, weighted average balances and weighted a&veri@gest rates for our
borrowings (short-term and long-term) as indicated.

December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011
Weighted  Weighted Weighted  Weighted Weighted Weighted
average average average average average average
Balance balance rate Balance balance rate Balance balance rate

(Dollars In Thousands)

Federal funds purchased $ — 3 26C 0.7 $ — 3 237 0.82% $ — 3 252 0.9(%
FHLB advances — 6,471 0.1¢ 46¢ 2,03¢ 1.5¢ 482 65€ 5.8%
Line of credit 1C 1C 3.41 1C 1,66¢€ 4.07 81C 2,23¢ 4.0€%
Subordinated notes payable  11,92¢ 11,92¢ 6.9z 11,92¢ 37,48 7.0z 39,00( 39,00¢( 6.12%
Junior subordinated notes 10,31t 10,31t 10.7¢ 10,31t 10,31t 10.81 10,31t 10,31t 10.7¢%
$ 2225 $ 28,98. 6.7¢ $ 22,72( $ 51,73: 7.46 $ 50,607 $ 52,45¢ 6.92%
Short-term borrowings $ 1C $ 47¢ $ 81C
Long-term borrowings 22,24 22,24 49,797
$ 22,25 $ 22,72( $ 50,607
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The following table sets forth maximum amounts tartding at each month-end for specific types ofdwings for the periods
indicated.

Year Ended December 31,
2013 2012 2010

(In Thousands)
Maximum month-end balance:
FHLB advances $ 26,50( $ 15,47 $ 49¢
Federal funds purchased — — —

Stockholders’ Equity

As of December 31, 2013, stockholders’ equity $589.3 million , or 8.6% of total assets, comparestockholders’ equity of $99.5
million , or 8.1% of total assets, as of Decembir2p12 . Stockholders’ equity increased by $9.Maniduring the year ended December 31,
2013 primarily attributable to record net incomeb@B.7 million for the year ended December 31, 20d&tially offset by dividend
declarations of $2.2 million .

Non-bank Consolidated Subsidiaries

First Madison Investment Corp. FMIC is a wholly-owned operating subsidiary of FBEt was incorporated in the State of Nevada
in 1993. FMIC was organized for the purpose of ngama portion of FBB's investment portfolio. FMi@vests in marketable securities. As
an operating subsidiary, FMIC’s results of operagiare consolidated with FBB’s for financial andukatory purposes. FBB’s investment in
FMIC was $148.1 million at December 31, 2013 . FMi&i net income of $1.7 million for the year en@&tember 31, 2013 . This compares
to a total investment of $148.5 million at DecemBg&r 2012 and net income of $1.7 million for thawyended December 31, 2012 .

First Business Capital Corp.FBCC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of FBB formedl®95 and headquartered in Madison, Wisconsin
FBCC is an asset-based financing company establishmeet the financing needs of companies thagamerally unable to obtain traditional
bank financing. FBCC underwrites its loans withiiddal emphasis placed on collateral coveragdhagompanies it finances are growing
rapidly, highly leveraged, or undergoing a turneart period. Through its FBF division, FBCC purclsaaecounts receivable on a full recourse
basis as one additional alternative to meet thenfimg needs of its client base. FBB'’s investmefBCC at December 31, 2013 was $24.7
million , gross loans outstanding were $131.7 wrilland net income for the year ended December®B ®as $2.4 million . This compares to
a total investment of $22.1 million , gross loah$b16.5 million and net income of $2.1 millionatd for the year ended December 31, 2012

First Business Equipment Finance, LLCFBEF, headquartered in Madison, Wisconsin, was éorin 1998 for the purpose of
originating leases and extending credit in the fofrtoans to small- and medium-sized companie®naitide and is a wholly-owned subsidiary
of FBB. FBB'’s total investment in FBEF at DecemB&r 2013 was $6.5 million , gross loans and leaséstanding were $53.4 million and
FBEF had net income of $27,000 for the year endeceBhber 31, 2013 . This compares to a total investwf $6.5 million , gross loans and
leases outstanding of $43.4 million and net incof®60,000 at and for the year ended December@®I12 2

FBB Real Estate, LLC. FBBRE is a wholly-owned subsidiary of FBB and vi@sned in 2009 for the purpose of holding and
liquidating real estate and other assets acquimediggh foreclosure or other legal proceedings. EBBtal investment in FBBRE at
December 31, 2013 was $688,000 and FBBRE had lassebf $11,000 for the year ended December 313 20his compares to a total
investment of $1.0 million and a net loss of $25,@0and for the year ended December 31, 2012 .

FBB-Milwaukee Real Estate LLC.FBBMRE is a wholly-owned subsidiary of FBB — Milwkae and was formed in 2009 for the
purpose of holding and liquidating real estate atier assets acquired through foreclosure or dtiged proceedings. FBB-Milwaukee’s total
investment in FBBMRE was $355,000 at December 8132nd FBBMRE had a net income of $16,000 forytrer ended December 31,
2013 . This compares to a total investment of $8X1 and net loss of $197,000 at and for the yede@mDecember 31, 2012 .
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

We expect to meet our liquidity needs through @xistash on hand, established cash flow sourceshimd party senior line of credit
and dividends received from the Banks. While thal®aare subject to certain regulatory limitatioagarding their ability to pay dividends to
the Corporation, we do not believe that the Corpomawill be adversely affected by these divideimiiations. The Corporation’s principal
liquidity requirements at December 31, 2013 weeeititerest payments due on subordinated and jgnioordinated notes. During 2013 and
2012, FBB declared and paid dividends totaling $8illon and $6.0 million, respectively. The capitatios of the Corporation and its
subsidiaries continue to meet all applicable remujacapital adequacy requirements and have eitdmeained stable or improved from
December 31, 2012 . The Corporation’s and the Barkpective Boards of Directors and managememsezdhere to the appropriate
regulatory guidelines on decisions which affecirtbapital positions, including but not limited tecisions relating to the payment of divide
and increasing indebtedness.

The Banks maintain liquidity by obtaining fundsrfreeveral sources. The Banks’ primary sourcesraddiare principal and interest
payments on loans receivable and mortgage-relamaisies, deposits and other borrowings, suctedsrl funds and FHLB advances. The
scheduled payments of loans and mortgage-relatetises are generally a predictable source of umkposit flows and loan prepayments,
however, are greatly influenced by general inter@tsts, economic conditions and competition.

We view on-balance-sheet liquidity as a criticaneént to maintaining adequate liquidity to meetaash and collateral obligations.
We define our on-balance-sheet liquidity as thaltot our short-term investments, our unencumbeesdrrities available-for-sale and our
unencumbered pledged loans. As of December 31, 20d2012 , our immediate on-balance-sheet liquidiiis $272.6 million and $260.4
million , respectively. At December 31, 2013 and 20 the Banks had $53.0 million and $53.1 millandeposit with the FRB, respectively.
Any excess funds not used for loan funding or Batig other cash obligations were maintained as$ glaour on-balance-sheet liquidity in our
interest-bearing accounts with the FRB, as we viilaesafety and soundness provided by the FRB. Mfetp utilize excess liquidity to fund
loan and lease portfolio growth, pay down matudedt, allow run off of maturing brokered certifieatof deposit, or invest in securities to
maintain adequate liquidity at an improved margin.

We had $393.5 million of outstanding brokered dépa@t December 31, 2013 , compared to $374.4amiliif brokered deposits as of
December 31, 2012 , which represented 34.8% ar8¥B4respectively, of ending balance total depo¥its are committed to our continued
efforts to raise in-market deposits and maintainawerall mix of brokered certificates of depositian-market deposits. Brokered certificates
of deposit continue to be an efficient source oiding for the Banks and allow them to gather fuac®ss a larger geographic base at price
levels and maturities that are more attractive #iagle service deposits when required to raigendas level of in-market deposits within a
short time period. Access to such deposits allosvtha flexibility to refrain from pursuing singlersice deposit relationships in markets that
have experienced unfavorable pricing levels. Intamid the administrative costs associated wittkbred certificates of deposit are
considerably lower than those that would be inaitoeadminister a similar level of local depositighva similar maturity structure. During the
time frames necessary to accumulate brokered dsposin orderly manner, we will use FHLB shortsteadvances to meet our temporary
funding needs. The FHLB short-term advances willdslly have terms of one week to one month to ctive overall expected funding
demands.

Our in-market relationships remain stable; howedeposit balances associated with those relatipashill fluctuate. We expect to
establish new client relationships and continueketamg efforts aimed at increasing the balancesxisting clients’ deposit accounts.
Nonetheless, we will continue to use brokered digposspecific maturity periods, typically threzfive years, needed to effectively mitig:
the interest rate risk measured through our agdstity management process or in shorter timequkxiif in-market deposit balances decline. Ir
order to provide for ongoing liquidity and fundiral of our brokered deposits are certificates epakit which do not allow for withdrawal at
the option of the depositor before the stated nitgturhe Banks’ liquidity policies limit the amounf brokered deposits to 75% of total
deposits, with an operating goal of 50% or leslsrokered deposits to total deposits. The Banks wecempliance with the policy limits and
the operating goal as of December 31, 2013 and 2012

The Banks were able to access the brokered catéfiof deposit market as needed at rates and tenmgarable to market standards
during the year ended December 31, 2013 . In thatdhat there is a disruption in the availabitifypbrokered deposits at maturity, the Banks
have managed the maturity structure, in compliavite our approved liquidity policy, so at least gremr of maturities could be funded
through on-balance-sheet liquidity. These poteffitiatling sources include deposits with the FRB lamglowings with the FHLB or Federal
Reserve Discount Window utilizing currently unendered securities and acceptable loans as collafesaf December 31, 2013, the
available liquidity was in excess of the statedimium and was equal to approximately 28 months atumities. As on-balance-sheet liquidity
is utilized to fund growth,
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asset quality continues to improve and the ratim-oharket deposits to total deposits remains witin acceptable range, management may
continue to be comfortable reducing the number oifitins of maturity coverage slightly while remaincanfident in its ability to manage the
maturities of brokered certificates of depositthia event of a disruption in the brokered markes. Welieve the Banks will also have access to
the unused federal funds lines, cash flows fronndweer repayments, and cash flows from security nitéegs. The Banks also have the ability
raise local market deposits by offering attractaies to generate the level required to fulfillithiguidity needs.

The Banks are required by federal regulation tontaé sufficient liquidity to ensure safe and sowperations. We believe that the
Banks have sulfficient liquidity to match the balamt net withdrawable deposits and short-term laigs in light of present economic
conditions and deposit flows.

During the year ended December 31, 2013, operatitigities resulted in a net cash inflow of $1Bm#lion . Operating cash flows
included net income of $13.7 million . Net cashdiseinvesting activities for the year ended Decentil, 2013 was approximately $54.9
million which consisted primarily of cash outflofrem net purchases of securities available for aakfunding of net loan growth. Net cash
provided by financing activities for the year end®etember 31, 2013 was $34.7 million primarily fraet increases in deposits.

Refer toNote 9 - Stockholders’ Equity and Regulatory Capithfor a summary of the Corporation’s and the Bankgital ratios and
the ratios required by their federal regulatorBatember 31, 2013 and 2012 .

Off-Balance-Sheet Arrangements

As of December 31, 2013, the Banks had outstarmbngmitments to originate $282.6 million of loam&laommitments to extend
funds to or on behalf of clients pursuant to starlékters of credit of $19.6 million . As of Deceant81, 2013, the Banks had $150.3 millain
commitments to extend funds which extend beyondyaae. We do not expect any losses as a resuiesttfunding commitments. We have
evaluated outstanding commitments associated wéthd that were identified as impaired loans andlcded that there are no additional los
required to be recorded with these unfunded comatitsias of December 31, 2013 . We believe thatiaddl commitments will not be
granted or additional collateral will be providedstupport any additional funds advanced. The Bafda utilize interest rate swaps for the
purposes of interest rate risk management, asideddurther inNote 15 — Derivative Financial Instrumentgo the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Additionally the Corporation has committed to paeian additional $960,000 to Aldine Capital Funé,(LAldine”) and $3.8 million
to Aldine Capital Fund Il, LP (“Aldine 11"), whiclare private equity mezzanine funding limited parshgs in which we have invested. Aldine
began its operations in October 2006 and Aldireetian its operations in March 2013.

We believe adequate capital and liquidity are aldd from various sources to fund projected commiitts.
Contractual Obligations

The following table summarizes our contractual aalsligations at December 31, 2013 :

Payments Due by Period

Lessthan 1 More than 5
Total Year 1-3 Years 4-5 Years Years

(In Thousands)

Operating lease obligations $ 8,08t $ 70€ % 1,32 $ 1,171 $ 4,88t
Time deposits 445,51 173,07¢ 175,47( 54,92¢ 42,031
Line of credit 10 10 — — —
Subordinated notes 11,92¢ — — — 11,92¢
Junior subordinated notes 10,31t — — — 10,31t
FHLB advances — — — — —
Total contractual obligations $ 47584 $ 173,79: $ 176,79: $ 56,09¢ $ 69,16
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith GAAP requires management to make estimatesassumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilitiesdasclosure of contingent assets and liabilitiekhatdate of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses dugngplorting period. By their nature, changes is¢hessumptions and estimates could
significantly affect the financial position or rdisuof operations for FBFS. Actual results coulffedifrom those estimates. Discussed below ar
certain policies that are critical to FBFS. We vienitical accounting policies to be those which kighly dependent on subjective or complex
judgments, estimates, and assumptions, and whargek in those estimates and assumptions couldahsigaificant impact on the financ
statements.

Allowance for Loan and Lease LosseBhe allowance for loan and lease losses represantgcognition of the risks of extending
credit and our evaluation of the quality of thed@ad lease portfolio and as such, requires the@fiselgment as well as other systematic
objective and gquantitative methods which may ineladditional assumptions and estimates. The riskgtending credit and the accuracy of
our evaluation of the quality of the loan and lepsefolio are neither static nor mutually exclusand could result in a material impact on our
Consolidated Financial Statements. We may ovemeséi the quality of the loan and lease portfolguiéng in a lower allowance for loan and
lease losses than necessary, overstating net inanthequity. Conversely, we may under-estimatetiadity of the loan and lease portfolio,
resulting in a higher allowance for loan and ldasses than necessary, understating net incomeaurity. The allowance for loan and lease
losses is a valuation allowance for probable cledies, increased by the provision for loan aadddosses and decreased by charge-offs, ne
of recoveries. We estimate the allowance reserlanba required and the related provision for load lzase losses based on monthly
evaluations of the loan and lease portfolio, wigitigular attention paid to loans and leases thaetbeen specifically identified as needing
additional management analysis because of the fatéor further problems. During these evaluatiorsnsideration is also given to such
factors as the level and composition of impaired atiher norperforming loans and leases, historical loss egpes, results of examinations
regulatory agencies, independent loan and leasewsyour estimate of the fair value of the undedycollateral taking into consideration
various valuation techniques and qualitative adjestts to inputs to those estimates of fair value strength and availability of guarantees,
concentration of credits and other factors. Allamad of the allowance may be made for specific $oamnleases, but the entire allowance is
available for any loan or lease that, in our judgtmshould be charged off. Loan and lease lossesharged against the allowance when we
believe that the uncollectability of a loan or lkedmlance is confirmed. Sbimte 1 — Nature of Operations and Summary of Signifant
Accounting Policiesin the Consolidated Financial Statements for furthecussion of the allowance for loan and leaseds.

We also continue to exercise our legal rights @mdedies as appropriate in the collection and dapgfisnon-performing assets, and
adhere to rigorous underwriting standards in oigiation process in order to continue to mainsthong asset quality. Although we believe
that the allowance for loan and lease losses wai®ppate as of December 31, 2013 based upon tileation of loan and lease delinquencies
non-performing assets, charge-off trends, econaomdlitions and other factors, there can be no assarthat future adjustments to the
allowance will not be necessary. If the qualityazins or leases deteriorates, then the allowandedo and lease losses would generally be
expected to increase relative to total loans aasds. If loan or lease quality improves, then tlosvance would generally be expected to
decrease relative to total loans and leases.

Income TaxesFBFS and its wholly owned subsidiaries file a cdidsted federal income tax return and a combinedddfisin state
tax return. Deferred income taxes are recognizethifuture tax consequences attributable to idiffees between the financial statement
carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilitied their respective tax bases. The determinaficnrrent and deferred income taxes is base
on complex analyses of many factors, includingitierpretation of federal and state income tax |ats difference between the tax and
financial reporting basis of assets and liabilifiesnporary differences), estimates of amountsecitly due or owed, such as the timing of
reversals of temporary differences, and currenbaciing standards. We apply a more likely thanapgroach to each of our tax positions
when determining the amount of tax benefit to rdégorour Consolidated Financial Statements. Defetag assets and liabilities are measured
using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxabbme in the years in which those temporaryedifices are expected to be recovered or
settled. The effect of a change in tax rates oerded taxes is recognized in income in the petiad includes the enactment date. We have
made our best estimate of valuation allowancewinty positive and negative evidence and evaluatiosources of taxable income including
tax planning strategies and expected reversalmofid differences to determine if valuation allowas were needed for deferred tax assets.
Realization of deferred tax assets over time iddpnt on our ability to generate sufficient tagadrrnings in future periods and a valuation
allowance may be necessary if management deterrtiinei is more likely than not that the deferes$et will not be utilized. These estimates
and assumptions are subject to change. Changleeda estimates and assumptions could adversett affare consolidated results of
operations.
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The federal and state taxing authorities who makessments based on their determination of taxrdaaysperiodically review our
interpretation of federal and state income tax lalves liabilities could differ significantly fromhe estimates and interpretations used in
determining the current and deferred income tabilltees based on the completion of examinationgdxyng authorities.

ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Marlet Risk

Our primary market risk is interest rate risk, wharises from exposure of our financial positiohanges in interest rates. It is our
strategy to reduce the impact of interest rateaisket interest margin by maintaining a favorabégch between the maturities and repricing
dates of interest-earning assets and interestrgphabilities. This strategy is monitored by tlespective Banks’ Asset/Liability Management
Committees, in accordance with policies approvetheyrespective Bank8oards. These committees meet regularly to reviEnsensitivity o
their respective Bank’s assets and liabilitiesharges in interest rates, liquidity needs and ssy@nd pricing and funding strategies.

We use two techniques to measure interest rate ek first is simulation of earnings. In this ma@snent technique the balance sl
is modeled as an ongoing entity whereby future ginpwricing, and funding assumptions are implemg:ntdese assumptions are modeled
under different rate scenarios that include a gimmglous, instant and sustained change in intextest.r

The following table illustrates the potential impa€ changes in market rates on our net interestnire for the next twelve months, as
of December 31, 2013 . Given the current low irgerate environment, we do not expect that intesgst will fall by greater than 50 basis
points from December 31, 2013 levels. We also asshiat managed rate liability prices will rise ataanount less than the instantaneous rate
shock in the Up 100 and Up 200 scenarios belowlewlsing at an amount equivalent to the instartaseaate shock in the Up 300 and Up 40(
scenarios. This model assumption is consistent aithexpectation on how depositors will react toidy rising interest rates and our desire to
maintain core deposit client relationships.

Change in interest rates in basis points Down 50 No Change Up 100 Up 200 Up 300 Up 400
Impact on net interest income 2.0%% — (1.08% 0.47% (3.31)% (3.20%

The second measurement technique used is stat@ngdysis. Gap analysis involves measurement difference in asset and
liability repricing on a cumulative basis withirspecified time frame. In general, a positive gapidates that more interest-earning assets thatr
interest-bearing liabilities reprice/mature inmdi frame and a negative gap indicates the oppdstehown in the cumulative gap position in
the table presented below, at December 31, 20aBinterest-bearing-liabilities have the generalrelsteristics that will allow them to reprice
faster than interest-earning assets in the neat-&ron while our interest-earning assets will iepffaster than interest-bearing-liabilities in the
one to five year time horizon. In addition to trepgposition, other determinants of net interesbime are the shape of the yield curve, general
rate levels and the corresponding effect of cottieddnterest rate floors, reinvestment spreadsnoa sheet growth and mix, and interest rate
spreads. Our success in attractingnarket deposits adds to the interest rate lialsigsitivity of the organization. During recent geemany o
our variable rate loans and certain of our variahte borrowings have been priced at a rate eqrivab a fixed spread above a market rate
index combined with an interest rate floor. Thegerest rate floors restrict the rate from repgdim tandem with the market rates. As rates
increase, these interest rate floors will resthiet subject assets and liabilities from experiegcate increases until the interest rate floor is
exceeded which may put pressure on net interegfimar

We manage the structure of interest-earning aaseténteresbearing liabilities by adjusting their mix, yielahaturity and/or repricin
characteristics based on market conditions. Brakeegtificates of deposit are a significant sowtinds. We use a variety of maturities to
augment our management of interest rate exposure.
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The following table illustrates our static gap pasi.

Estimated Maturity or Repricing at December 31,201

Within 3 months 3-12 months 1-5 years After 5 years Total
(Dollars In Thousands)
Assets:
Short-term investments $ 64,047 $ 2,30¢ $ 1,718 $ — % 68,061
Investment securities 9,47( 35,09 87,50 45,80: 177,86t
Commercial loans 98,57: 23,052 54,91: 5,50¢ 182,04(
Real estate loans 192,51 66,06 263,48 102,81 624,88:
Asset-based loans 131,98( — — — 131,98(
Lease receivables 1,19i 5,17( 14,49¢ 5,20( 26,06¢
Consumer loans 211 46 68 — 32t
Total earning assets $ 497,99 $ 131,72¢ $ 422,188 $ 159,32 $ 1,211,22
Liabilities
Interest-bearing transaction $ 77,00¢ $ — $ — 3 — % 77,00¢
Money market accounts 456,06! — — — 456,06!
Time deposits under $250,000 27,15:¢ 140,59: 227,44¢ 42,03} 437,22¢
Time deposits $250,000 and over 50C 4,83( 2,952 — 8,28z
FHLB advances — — — — —
Short-term borrowings 10 — — — 10
Long-term debt 5,711 — — 16,53( 22,241
Total interest-bearing liabilities $ 566,44 $ 145,42 $ 230,39¢ $ 58,567 $ 1,000,83.
Interest rate gap $ (68449 $ (1369) $ 191,78 $ 100,75¢ $ 210,39
Cumulative interest rate gap $ (68,449 $ (82,14 $ 109,64. $ 210,39t
Cumulative interest rate gap to total earning asset (5.65)% (6.76)% 9.0£% 17.31%
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First Business Financial Services, Inc.

Consolidated Balance Sheets

December 31,
2013

December 31,
2012

(In Thousands, Except Share Data)

Assets
Cash and due from banks $ 13,21¢ $ 21,62¢
Short-term investments 68,06 63,96(
Cash and cash equivalents 81,28¢ 85,58t
Securities available-for-sale, at fair value 180,11¢ 200,59t
Loans and leases receivable, net of allowanceofor nd lease losses of $13,901 and

$15,400, respectively 967,05( 896,56(
Leasehold improvements and equipment, net 1,15¢ 96¢
Foreclosed properties 33: 1,57¢
Cash surrender value of bank-owned life insurance 23,14: 22,27:
Investment in Federal Home Loan Bank stock, at cost 1,25¢ 1,14¢
Accrued interest receivable and other assets 14,31¢ 17,40¢
Total assets $ 1,268,65! $ 1,226,10i
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Deposits $ 1,129,85! $ 1,092,25.
Federal Home Loan Bank and other borrowings 11,93¢ 12,40¢
Junior subordinated notes 10,31¢ 10,31t
Accrued interest payable and other liabilities 7,27¢ 11,59¢
Total liabilities 1,159,38I 1,126,56
Commitments and contingencies
Stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, $0.01 par value, 2,500,000 stear#®rized, none issued or outstanding — —
Common stock, $0.01 par value, 25,000,000 shatbeazed, 4,106,084 and 4,011,370

shares issued, 3,943,997 and 3,916,667 sharearmditsj at December 31, 2013 and

2012, respectively 41 4C
Additional paid-in capital 56,00: 53,50¢
Retained earnings 57,14 45,59¢
Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income (342 2,18:
Treasury stock (162,087 and 94,703 shares at Deme®ih 2013 and 2012, respectively

at cost (3,569 (1,787)
Total stockholders’ equity 109,27! 99,53¢
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 1,268,65! $ 1,226,10

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financaé®ents.
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First Business Financial Services, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Income

Interest income
Loans and leases
Securities income
Short-term investments
Total interest income
Interest expense
Deposits
Notes payable and other borrowings
Junior subordinated notes
Total interest expense
Net interest income
Provision for loan and lease losses
Net interest income after provision for loan arakke losses
Non-interest income
Trust and investment services fee income
Service charges on deposits
Loan fees
Increase in cash surrender value of bank-ownedhgerance
Credit, merchant and debit card fees
Other
Total non-interest income
Non-interest expense
Compensation
Occupancy
Professional fees
Data processing
Marketing
Equipment
FDIC insurance
Collateral liquidation costs
Net (gain) loss on foreclosed properties
Other
Total non-interest expense
Income before income tax expense
Income tax expense
Net income
Earnings per common share:
Basic
Diluted
Dividends declared per share

For the Year Ended December 31,

2013 2012

(In Thousands, Except Share Data)

50,23¢ $ 51,12t
3,31t 3,417
257 224
53,81( 54,76¢
9,73¢ 13,02¢
85t 2,744
1,111 1,11¢
11,70¢ 16,88¢
42,10¢ 37,88:
(959 4,24:
43,06¢ 33,63¢
3,75¢ 2,921
2,15( 2,02¢
1,29t 2,02¢
84t 708
121 204
27¢ 811
8,44: 8,69¢
18,27¢ 17,01¢
1,26¢ 1,27(¢
1,96¢ 1,63¢
1,50(C 1,31¢
1,35¢ 1,22¢
52¢ 49(
741 1,73
19¢€ 65E
(117) 58&
4,65¢ 2,73¢
30,37! 28,66
21,13t 13,67¢
7,38¢ 4,75(
13,74¢  $ 8,92¢
35C % 3.3(C
3.4¢ 3.2¢
0.5€ 0.2¢

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financié®ents
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First Business Financial Services, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

For the Year Ended December 31,

2013 2012
(In Thousands)
Net income $ 13,74¢  $ 8,92¢
Other comprehensive loss, before tax
Unrealized securities losses arising during thépger (4,092) (503)
Income tax benefit 1,567 19t
Comprehensive income $ 11,227 $ 8,61¢

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financiaé®ents
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First Business Financial Services, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholdergquity

Accumulated

Balance at December 31, 2011

Net income

Other comprehensive loss

Issuance of common stock

Exercise of stock options

Share-based compensation - restricted shares
Share-based compensation - tax benefits
Cash dividends ($0.28 per share)

Treasury stock purchased

Treasury stock re-issued

Balance at December 31, 2012

Net income

Other comprehensive loss

Exercise of stock options

Share-based compensation - restricted share
Share-based compensation - tax benefits
Cash dividends ($0.56 per share)

Treasury stock purchased

Balance at December 31, 2013

Common Additional other
shares Common paid-in Retained comprehensive  Treasury
outstanding stock capital earnings income (loss) stock Total
(In Thousands, Except Share Data)

2,62556! $ 27 $ 2584! $ 3750 $ 2491 $ (1,64) $ 64,21
— — — 8,92¢ — — 8,92¢
— — — — (30¢) — (30¢)
1,265,001 13 27,06: — — — 27,07¢
1,00 — 22 — — — 22
30,38¢ — 54¢ — — — 54¢
— — 107 — — — 107
— — — (82¢) — — (82¢)
(9,445 — — — — (21¢) (21¢)
4,15¢ — (77) — — 77 —
3,916,66° $ 40 $ 5350¢ $ 4559¢ $ 2,18: $ (1,787 $ 99,53¢
— — — 13,74¢ — — 13,74¢
— — — — (2,525 — (2,525
69,68¢ 1 1,47: — — — 1,47¢
25,03( — 66( — — — 66(
— — 36¢ — — — 36E
— — — (2,202) — — (2,202)
(67,389 — — — — (1,782) (1,782)
3,94399 ¢ 41 $ 56,00 $ 57,14! $ (342) $ (3,569 $ 109,27

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financié®ents.
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First Business Financial Services, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended December 31,

2013 2012

(In Thousands)

Operating activities

Net income $ 13,74¢ % 8,92¢
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigea by operating activities:
Deferred income taxes, net 2,42¢ (1,906
Provision for loan and lease losses (95¢) 4,24%
Depreciation, amortization and accretion, net 2,32 3,05¢
Share-based compensation 66C 54¢
Increase in cash surrender value of bank-ownedhiifierance (84%) (703)
Origination of loans for sale — (1,54¢)
Sale of loans originated for sale — 1,69t
Gain on sale of loans originated for sale — (147)
Net (gain) loss on foreclosed properties, includingairment valuation (117 58¢
Excess tax benefit from share-based compensation (365) (107)
Decrease in accrued interest receivable and ofisets 2,71 64¢€
(Decrease) increase in accrued interest payabletaed liabilities (3,68]) 712
Net cash provided by operating activities 15,90: 15,99¢
Investing activities
Proceeds from maturities of available-for-sale s&es 62,52( 56,99:
Purchases of available-for-sale securities (48,04%) (90,407
Proceeds from sale of foreclosed properties 2,73¢ 1,95¢
Payments to priority lien holders of foreclosedpendies — (367)
Net increase in loans and leases (70,919 (65,62%)
Investments in limited partnerships (2,250 —
Distributions from limited partnerships 672z 89:
Investment in FHLB Stock (1,18%) —
Proceeds from sale of FHLB Stock 1,07¢ 1,22%
Purchases of leasehold improvements and equipmetnt, (537) (561)
Proceeds from sale of leasehold improvements anigregnt, net 30 —
Premium payment on bank owned life insurance pesici (25) (4,02%)
Proceeds from surrender of bank owned life insieaddicies — 11¢
Net cash used in investing activities (54,91¢) (99,809
Financing activities
Net increase in deposits 37,60: 40,94:
Repayment of FHLB advances (469) 13
Net decrease in short-term borrowed funds — (800C)
Proceeds from issuance of subordinated notes payabl — 6,21¢
Repayment of subordinated notes payable — (33,289
Excess tax benefit from share-based compensation 36¢ 107
Common stock issuance — 27,07:
Cash dividends paid (2,475 (73¢)
Exercise of stock options 1,47¢ 22
Purchase of treasury stock (1,782) (21¢)
Net cash provided by financing activities 34,71« 39,30«
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (4,300 (44,507
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning ofehedg 85,58¢ 130,09:
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period $ 81,28t $ 85,58t¢

Supplementary cash flow information



Interest paid on deposits and borrowings $ 12,368  $ 17,80(

Income taxes paid 6,08¢ 5,71¢
Transfer to foreclosed properties 1,381 1,511
Reissuance of treasury stock — 77

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financiaé®ents.
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First Business Financial Services, Inc.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1 — Nature of Operations and Summary of Sigridant Accounting Policies

Nature of Operations.The accounting and reporting practices of FirstiBess Financial Services, Inc. (the “Corporatioit§ wholly-owned
subsidiaries, First Business Bank (“FBB”) and FBssiness Bank — Milwaukee (“FBB — Milwaukee”) haween prepared in accordance with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (“@2A FBB and FBB — Milwaukee are sometimes refetetbgether as the “Banks.” FBB
operates as a commercial banking institution inMiaglison, Wisconsin market, consisting primarilyD#Ene County and the surrounding areas
with loan production offices in Oshkosh, Appletand Green Bay, Wisconsin. FBB also offers trustiamdstment services through First
Business Trust & Investments (“FBTI"), a divisiohFBB. FBB — Milwaukee operates as a commerciakbapinstitution in the Milwaukee,
Wisconsin market, consisting primarily of Wauke§€wunty and the surrounding areas. The Banks pravidgd range of financial services to
businesses, business owners, executives, profassiamd high net worth individuals. The Banks aigjext to competition from other financial
institutions and service providers and are alsgestibo state and federal regulations. FBB hagahewing wholly-owned subsidiaries: First
Business Capital Corp. (“FBCC"), First Madison Istreent Corp. (“FMIC”), First Business Equipment&fce, LLC (“FBEF") and FBB Real
Estate, LLC (“FBBRE"). FMIC is located in and wasthed under the laws of the state of Nevada. FBBvBlikee has one subsidiary, FBB —
Milwaukee Real Estate, LLC (“FBBMRE").

Basis of Financial Statement PresentatioriThe Consolidated Financial Statements include tceunts of the Corporation and its wholly-
owned subsidiaries. In accordance with the promisiof Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) Tog10, the Corporation’s ownership
interest in FBFS Statutory Trust Il (*Trust IIRas not been consolidated into the financial states All significant intercompany balances
transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Management of the Corporation is required to maitenates and assumptions that affect the reportexiats of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilitiehatdate of the financial statements as well asrted amounts of revenues and expenses durir
the reporting period. Actual results could diffegréficantly from those estimates. Material estiesathat could experience significant changes
in the near-term include the value of foreclosempprty, lease residuals, property under operatiagds, securities, income taxes and the leve
of the allowance for loan and lease losses. Ceamiounts in prior periods may have been reclassiieconform to current presentation.
Subsequent events have been evaluated througsstienice of the Consolidated Financial Statememtsighificant subsequent events have
occurred through this date requiring adjustmerh#ofinancial statements or disclosures.

Cash and Cash EquivalentsThe Corporation considers federal funds sold, @gebearing deposits and short-term investmentdhthee
original maturities of three months or less to hstcequivalents.

Securities Available-for-Sale.The Corporation classifies its investment and neagtgrelated securities as available-for-sale, teelahaturity
and trading. Debt securities that the Corporatias the positive intent and ability to hold to maguare classified as held-to-maturity and are
stated at amortized cost. Debt and equity secsifitiight expressly for the purpose of selling sribar term are classified as trading securitie
and are measured at fair value with unrealizedsgaimd losses reported in earnings. Debt and es@dyrities not classified as held-to-maturity
or as trading are classified as available-for-salailable-for-sale securities are measured atfaline with unrealized gains and losses reporte
as a separate component of stockholders’ equitygfrtax. Realized gains and losses, and declimealue judged to be other than temporary,
are included in the consolidated statements ofiecas a component of non-interest income. Theafastcurities sold is based on the specific
identification method. The Corporation did not halty held-to-maturity or trading securities at Daber 31, 2013 and 2012 .

Discounts and premiums on investment and mortgagkedu securities are accreted and amortized itgoeist income using the effective yield
method over the weighted average life of the s&easri

Declines in the fair value of investment securiagailable for sale (with certain exceptions fobideecurities noted below) that are deemed to
be other-than-temporary are charged to earningsraalized loss, and a new cost basis for the Biesus established. In evaluating other-than
temporary impairment, management considers theHesfgime and extent to which the fair value hasmless than cost, the financial
condition and near-term prospects of the issuet tla intent and ability of the Corporation to netids investment in the issuer for a period of
time sufficient to allow for any anticipated recoyén fair value in the near term. Declines in fh& value of debt securities below amortized
cost are deemed to be other-than-temporary inmistances where: (1) the Corporation has the intesll a security; (2) it is more likely than
not that the Corporation will be required to sk# security before recovery of its amortized cestidy or (3) the Corporation does not expect t
recover the entire amortized cost basis of therfigcif the Corporation intends to sell a secuntyif it is more likely than not that the
Corporation will be required to sell the securigfdre recovery, an other-than-temporary impairmeite-down is recognized in earnings ec

to the difference between the security’s amortizest basis and its fair value. If the Corporatioesinot
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intend to sell the security or it is not more likéhan not that it will be required to sell the sety before recovery, the other-than-temporary
impairment write-down is separated into an amoeptesenting credit loss, which is recognized imiegis, and an amount related to all other
factors, which is recognized in other comprehensiceme.

Loans and Leasesl.oans and leases which management has the intdrahality to hold for the foreseeable future oriumtaturity are

reported at their outstanding principal balancénaitjustments for partial charge-offs, the alloveaftr loan and lease losses, deferred fees ol
costs on originated loans and leases, and unamadpizemiums or discounts on any purchased loarad.originated or purchased and
intended for sale in the secondary market areazhat the lower of cost or estimated fair valuthmaggregate. Unrealized losses on such |
are recognized through a valuation allowance blyaage to other non-interest income. Gains and $ogsahe sale of loans are also included ir
other non-interest income.

A loan or a lease is accounted for as a troubléd @estructuring if the Corporation, for economidenal reasons related to the borrower’s
financial condition, grants a concession to thedwer that it would not otherwise consider. A trtathdebt restructuring may involve the
receipt of assets from the debtor in partial org$atisfaction of the loan or lease, or a modifaraf terms such as a reduction of the stated
interest rate or face amount of the loan or leaseduction of accrued interest, an extension®hthaturity date at a stated interest rate lower
than the current market rate for a new loan ordewith similar risk, or some combination of thesaaessions. Restructured loans can involve
loans remaining on non-accrual, moving to non-a¢ir continuing on accrual status, dependingndividual facts and circumstances. Non-
accrual restructured loans are included and treaiibdall other non-accrual loans. In addition,adkruing restructured loans are reported as
troubled debt restructurings which are consideretlaccounted for as impaired loans. Generallyruesitred loans remain on non-accrual unti
the borrower has attained a sustained period @fyrapnt performance under the modified loan terreadgally a minimum of six months).
However, performance prior to the restructuringsignificant events that coincide with the restwicty, are considered in assessing whether
the borrower can meet the new terms and whethdodimeshould be returned to or maintained on a¢status. If the borrowes’ ability to mee
the revised payment schedule is not reasonablyessiine loan remains on nonaccrual.

Interest on non-impaired loans and leases is ad@nd credited to income on a daily basis baseti@nnpaid principal balance and is
calculated using the effective interest method.fg@dicy, a loan or a lease is considered impairatigaced on a non-accrual status when it
becomes 90 days past due or it is doubtful thatractual principal and interest will be collectedaiccordance with the terms of the contract. /
loan or lease is determined to be past due if tilver fails to meet a contractual payment andlegihtinue to be considered past due until al
contractual payments are received. When a loaeasel is placed on non-accrual, interest accraidé®ntinued and previously accrued but
uncollected interest is deducted from interestimeolf collectability of the contractual principahd interest is in doubt, payments received ar
first applied to reduce loan principal. If collelstitty of the contractual payments is not in doyksyments may be applied to interest for inte
amounts due on a cash basis. As soon as it isndett with certainty that the principal of an inmeal loan or lease is uncollectable either
through collections from the borrower or dispositaf the underlying collateral, the portion of terying balance that exceeds the estimated
measurement value of the loan or lease is charfieldomns or leases are returned to accrual stahen they are brought current in terms of
both principal and accrued interest due, have pmdd in accordance with contractual terms for aaaable period of time, and when the
ultimate collectability of total contractual pripeil and interest is no longer doubtful.

Transfers of assets, including but not limited &otigipation interests in originated loans, thabmgompletion of the transfer satisfy the
conditions to be reported as a sale, includingllesgdation, are derecognized from the Consoliddedncial Statements. Transfers of assets
that upon completion of the transfer do not meetdbnditions of a sale are recorded on a gross kaiti a secured borrowing identified to
reflect the amount of the transferred interest.

Loan and lease origination fees as well as cediagtt origination costs are deferred and amorteedn adjustment to loan yields over the
stated term of the loan or lease. Loans or ledmgdsult from a refinance or restructuring, othain a troubled debt restructuring, where te
are at least as favorable to the Corporation atetines for comparable loans to other borrowers wsiithilar collection risks and result in an
essentially new loan or lease, are accounted farreswv loan or lease. Any unamortized net feesscospenalties are recognized when the
new loan or lease is originated. Unamortized na lor lease fees or costs for loans and leasessthdt from a refinance or restructure with
only minor modifications to the original loan oake contract are carried forward as a part of ¢hénwestment in the new loan or lease. For
troubled debt restructurings all fees receivedannection with a modification of terms are appléesda reduction of the loan or lease and any
related costs, including direct loan originatiorstsp are charged to expense as incurred.

Allowance for Loan and Lease Lossedhe allowance for loan and lease losses is maiedaat a level that management deems appropriate
absorb probable and estimable losses inherentito#in and lease portfolios. Such inherent losses fom the size and current risk
characteristics of the loan and lease portfolicassessment of individual impaired and other probans and leases, actual loss experience,
estimated fair value of underlying collateral, acbeesituations that may affect
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the borrower’s ability to repay, and current gepéia or industry-specific current economic eveftsme impaired and other loans and leases
have risk characteristics that are unique to aivididal borrower and the loss must be estimatedromdividual basis. Other impaired and
problem loans and leases may have risk charadétsr&milar to other loans and leases and bealaimherent risk of loss. Such loans and
leases, which are not individually reviewed and soead for impairment, are aggregated and histolosal statistics are used to determine the
risk of loss.

The measurement of the estimate of loss is relipah historical experience, information about thidity of the individual debtor to pay and
appraisal of loan collateral in light of currenbeomic conditions. An estimate of loss is an appnation of what portion of all amounts
receivable, according to the contractual term$af teceivable, is deemed uncollectible. Deternonatf the allowance is inherently subject
because it requires estimation of amounts and ¢jrafrexpected future cash flows on impaired an@oginoblem loans and leases, estimation
of losses on types of loans and leases based tmitéd losses and consideration of current econdrands, both local and national. Based on
management’s periodic review using all previousgntioned pertinent factors, a provision for load frase losses is charged to expense wh
it is determined an increase in the allowancedanland lease losses is appropriate. A negatiwespoa for loan and lease losses may be
recognized if determined a reduction in the le¥altmwance for loan and lease losses is apprapriaian and lease losses are charged again
the allowance and recoveries are credited to fbevahce.

The allowance for loan and lease losses contaisfgpallowances established for expected lossempaired loans and leases. Impaired
loans and leases are defined as loans and leasghifh, based on current information and evenis,probable that the Corporation will be
unable to collect scheduled principal and intepagtments according to the contractual terms ofdae or lease agreement. Loans and leases
subject to impairment are defined as ramtrual and restructured loans and leases exclogsmaller homogeneous loans such as home e
installment and 1-4 family residential loans. Intpdiloans and leases are evaluated on an indivizhsis to determine the amount of specific
reserve or charge-off required, if any.

The measurement value of impaired loans and léasketermined based on the present value of exphéuetiere cash flows discounted at the
loan’s effective interest rate (the contractuabiast rate adjusted for any net deferred loandeessts, premium, or discount existing at the
origination or acquisition of the loan), the markete of the loan or lease, or the fair valuehaf tinderlying collateral less costs to sell, if the
loan or lease is collateral dependent. A loan asdes collateral dependent if repayment is expdctée provided principally by the underlyi
collateral. A loan’s effective interest rate maynoge over the life of the loan based on subsequramiges in rates or indices or may be fixed &
the rate in effect at the date the loan was detexchio be impaired.

Subsequent to the initial impairment, any significehange in the amount or timing of an impaireghlor lease’s future cash flows will result
in a reassessment of the valuation allowance trahite if an adjustment is necessary. Measurentiasisd on observable market price or fair
value of the collateral may change over time amwire a reassessment of the valuation allowantteit is a significant change in either
measurement base. Any increase in the present ghkmpected future cash flows attributable toghesage of time is recorded as interest
income accrued on the net carrying amount of tha lar lease at the effective interest rate usaistmunt the impaired loan or lease’s
estimated future cash flows. For the year endecidéer 31, 2013 , no interest income was recogrdmedo the increase of the present value
of future cash flows attributable to the passagénoé. Any change in present value attributableftanges in the amount or timing of expected
future cash flows is recorded as loan loss expene same manner in which impairment was inifiadicognized or as a reduction of loan
expense that otherwise would be reported. Wherkettet of loan or lease impairment is measuredgusivservable market price or fair value
of collateral, any change in the observable markiee of an impaired loan or lease or fair valu¢hef collateral of an impaired collateral-
dependent loan or lease is recorded as loan IgEnee in the same manner in which impairment witialip recognized. Any increase in the
observable market value of the impaired loan cgdear fair value of the collateral in an impairedlateral-dependent loan or lease is recordec
as a reduction in the amount of loan loss expdmseotherwise would be reported.

Loans Held for Sale.Loans held for sale consist of the current origorabf certain 1-4 family mortgage loans and angied at lower of cost
or fair value. Fees received from the borrower dinglct costs to originate the loan are deferredrandgnized as part of the gain or loss on
There were no loans held for sale outstanding aebBer 31, 2013 or 2012 .

Net Investment in Direct Financing Leases\et investment in direct financing lease agreemeayisesents total undiscounted payments plus
estimated unguaranteed residual value (approxigata to 20%of the cost of the related equipment) and is rembab lease receivables wi
the lease is signed and the leased property igedleti to the client. The excess of the minimumdess/ments and residual values over the co
of the equipment is recorded as unearned leasenimcddnearned lease income is recognized over thedethe lease on a basis which results
in an approximate level rate of return on the uoveced lease investment. Lease payments are recafien due under the lease contract.
Residual values are established at lease inceptjoal to the estimated value to be received fraetiuipment following termination of the
initial lease and such estimated value considérglavant information and circumstances regardimgequipment. In estimating the
equipment’s fair value at lease termination, thepBmation relies on internally or externally prepéduappraisals,
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published sources of used equipment prices andriuiat experience adjusted for known current induahd economic trends. The
Corporation’s estimates are periodically revieweensure reasonableness, however the amounts ther&ton will ultimately realize could
differ from the estimated amounts. When there #ierchan temporary declines in the Corporationaisyéng amount of the unguaranteed
residual value, the carrying value is reduced dradged to non-interest expense.

Operating LeasesMachinery and equipment are leased to clients uoperating leases and are recorded at cost. Equnipumeer such leases
is depreciated over the estimated useful life ontef the lease, if shorter. The impairment lobaniy, would be charged to expense in the
period it becomes evident. Rental income is reabatethe straight-line accrual basis as other mberést income.

Leasehold Improvements and EquipmentThe cost of capitalized leasehold improvementsrisréized on the straight-line method over the
lesser of the term of the respective lease or asticheconomic life. Equipment is stated at cost é&&sumulated depreciation and amortization
which is calculated by the straight-line methodrabe estimated useful lives of three to ten yedigntenance and repair costs are charged tc
expense as incurred. Improvements which extendgbgul life are capitalized and depreciated overr#imaining useful life of the assets.

Foreclosed PropertiesProperty acquired by repossession, foreclosure aieled in lieu of foreclosure is carried at thedowf the recorded
investment in the loan at the time of acquisitiothe fair value of the underlying property, lessts to sell. Any write-down in the carrying
value of a loan or lease at the time of acquisitgocharged to the allowance for loan and leassemsAny subsequent write-downs to reflect
current fair value, as well as gains and lossedigposition and revenues are recorded in inberest expense. Costs relating to the develop
and improvement of the property are capitalizedevholding period costs are charged to other ntgrést expense. Foreclosed properties are
included in foreclosed properties, net in the ctidated balance sheets.

Bank-Owned Life Insurance.Bank-owned life insurance (“BOLI") is reported hetamount that would be realized if the life insio@

policies were surrendered on the balance sheetB@&tel policies owned by the Banks are purchasdti wie objective to fund certain future
employee benefit costs with the death benefit prdseThe cash surrender value of such policiescisrded in cash surrender value of life
insurance on the consolidated balance sheets amdjel in the value are recorded in non-interesinigc The total death benefit of all of the
BOLI policies was $57.4 million as of December 2@13 . There are no restrictions on the use of B@bteeds nor are there any contractual
restrictions on the ability to surrender the palidg of each of December 31, 2013 and 2012 , tivere no borrowings against the cash
surrender value of the BOLI policies.

Federal Home Loan Bank StockThe Banks own shares in the Federal Home Loan Babkicago (“FHLB") as required for membership to
the FHLB. The minimum required investment was $tiion as of December 31, 2013 . FHLB stock isrigat at cost which approximates its
fair value because the shares can be resold to misaber banks at their $100 per share par amdbetCorporation periodically evaluates its
holding in FHLB stock for impairment. Should thedk be impaired, it would be written down to it$imsited fair value. There were no
impairments recorded on FHLB stock during the yeamided December 31, 2013 and 2012 .

Other Investments. The Corporation owns certain equity investmentstier corporate organizations which are not codatdid because the
Corporation does not own more than a 50% inteneskercise control over the organization. Such stwents are not variable interest entities.
Investments in corporations representing at le@8%a interest are generally accounted for usingethéty method and investments in
corporations representing less than 20% interesganerally accounted for at cost. Investmentsniitdd partnerships representing from at
least a 3% up to a 50% interest in the entity amegally accounted for using the equity methodiamdstments in limited partnerships
representing less than 3% are generally accountedt £ost. All of these investments are periodijoavaluated for impairment. Should an
investment be impaired, it would be written dowritsoestimated fair value. The equity investmemésraported in other assets and the income
and expense from such investments, if any, is tedan non-interest income and non-interest expense

Derivative Instruments. The Corporation uses derivative instruments togutodgainst the risk of adverse price or intergs movements on
the value of certain assets, liabilities, futuretcflows and economic hedges for written clientvdgive contracts. Derivative instruments
represent contracts between parties that usuajlyinelittle or no initial net investment and reisnlone party delivering cash to the other party
based on a notional amount and an underlying asfigukin the contract and may be subject to masttting agreements. A notional amount
represents the number of units of a specific itemeh as currency units. An underlying representiable, such as an interest rate. The
amount of cash delivered from one party to the mighdetermined based on the interaction of théeonat amount of the contract with the
underlying.

Market risk is the risk of loss arising from an atke change in interest rates, exchange ratesuty @gices. The Corporatiog’primary marke
risk is interest rate risk. Instruments designethtmage interest rate risk include interest ratpswinterest rate options and interest rate caps
and floors with indices that relate to the pricofgspecific assets and
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liabilities. The nature and volume of the derivatimstruments used to manage interest rate riskrdkpn the level and type of assets and
liabilities on the balance sheet and the risk marant strategies for the current and anticipatedeavironments. Counterparty risk with
respect to derivative instruments occurs when ateoparty to a derivative contract with an unreadigain fails to perform according to the
terms of the agreement. Counterparty risk is mathédgdimiting the counterparties to highly ratecatbes and required collateral postings w
values are in deficit positions, applying unifornedit standards to all activities with credit riskd monitoring the size and the maturity
structure of the derivative portfolio.

All derivative instruments are to be carried at failue on the consolidated balance sheets. Trmuatiag for the gain or loss due to changes il
the fair value of a derivative instrument dependsvbether the derivative instrument qualifies d&®dge. If the derivative instrument does not
qualify as a hedge, the gains or losses are raportearnings when they occur. However, if thedsive instrument qualifies as a hedge, the
accounting varies based on the type of risk beadgbd. In 2013 and 2012 , the Corporation solelized interest rate swaps which did not
qualify for hedge accounting and therefore all gjemin fair value and gains and losses on thes®iments were reported in earnings as they
occurred. The effects of netting arrangements s@ased within the Notes of the Consolidated FalarStatements.

Income Taxes.Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are agrtbannually for temporary differences in timirgkeen the financial
statement and tax basis of assets and liabiliti@sresult in taxable or deductible amounts infthiere based on enacted tax law and rates
applicable to periods in which the differencesearpected to affect taxable income. The ultimatéizagon of deferred tax assets is dependent
upon the generation of future taxable income duttiregperiods in which those temporary differenoasome deductible. Management consi
the scheduled reversals of deferred tax liabilitsggpropriate tax planning strategies and projastfor future taxable income over the period
which the deferred tax assets are deductible. Wieerssary, valuation allowances are establisheztitace deferred tax assets to the realizabl
amount. Management believes it is more likely thahthat the Corporation will realize the benefifthese deductible differences, net of the
existing valuation allowances.

Income tax expense or benefit represents the tgadyb@ or tax refundable for a period, adjustedHzyapplicable change in deferred tax assets
and liabilities for that period. The Corporatiordats subsidiaries file a consolidated federal medax return and separate state income tax
returns. Tax sharing agreements allocate taxeadio entity for the settlement of intercompany taXé® Corporation applies a more likely
than not standard to each of its tax positions wdetermining the amount of tax expense or ber@fietord in its financial statements.
Unrecognized tax benefits are recorded in othéiliiees. The Corporation recognizes accrued irgerelating to unrecognized tax benefits in
income tax expense and penalties in other nondstexpense.

Other Comprehensive IncomeComprehensive income or loss, shown as a sepamatecfal statement, includes net income or losangbs il
unrealized holding gains and losses on availabledte securities, changes in deferred gains asd$oon investment securities transferred
from available for sale to held to maturity, if ampanges in unrealized gains and losses assogiitedash flow hedging instruments, if any,
and the amortization of deferred gains and losssscated with terminated cash flow hedges, if &oy.the year ended December 31, 2013,
there were no items requiring reclassificationafticcumulated other comprehensive income.

Earnings Per Share Earnings per common share (“EPS”) is computed ugiadwo-class method. Basic EPS are computed\iginlgy net
income allocated to common shares by the weightethge number of common shares outstanding faoehed, excluding any participating
securities. Participating securities include uneésestricted shares. Unvested restricted shagesoasidered participating securities because
holders of these securities receive non-forfeitaldl@ends at the same rate as the holders of tlpdatation’s common stock. Diluted EPS is
computed by dividing net income allocated to comrslbares adjusted for reallocation of undistribugachings of unvested restricted shares b
the weighted average number of common shares detrfor the basic EPS plus the dilutive effectammon stock equivalents using the
treasury stock method based on the average maiketfpr the period. Some stock options are diltitive and therefore are not included in
calculation of diluted EPS.

Segments and Related InformationThe Corporation is required to report each opegatggment based on materiality thresholds of ten
percent or more of certain amounts, such as reveédditionally, the Corporation is required to repseparate operating segments until the
revenue attributable to such segments is at Iéapeicent of total consolidated revenue. The Cearpmr provides a broad range of financial
services to individuals and companies in South @értlortheastern and Southeastern Wisconsin. Téasgces include demand, time, and
savings products, the sale of certain non-depwsih€ial products and commercial and retail lendiegsing and trust services. While the
Corporation’s chief decision-maker monitors theemaye streams of the various products and sendpesations are managed and financial
performance is evaluated on a corporate-wide b@kes.Corporation’s business units have similardeBaracteristics in the nature of the
products, production processes and type or claskentt for products or services; therefore, thessiness units are considered one operating
segment.
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Stock Options.Prior to January 1, 2006, the Corporation accoufdedtock-based compensation using the intrinaloe method. Under the
intrinsic value method, compensation expense fqrleyee stock options was generally not recognifétkei exercise price of the option
equaled or exceeded the fair market value of theksin the date of grant.

On January 1, 2006, the Corporation adopted ASGCT&B using the prospective method as stock ogtieere only granted by the
Corporation prior to meeting the definition of afia entity. Under the prospective method, ASC Topl8 must only be applied to the extent
that those awards are subsequently modified, repsed or cancelled. No stock options have beenegtamce the Corporation met the
definition of a public entity and no stock optidmsve been modified, repurchased or cancelled subsétp the adoption of ASC Topic 718.
Therefore, no stock-based compensation was recegjitizhe consolidated statements of income foy#aes ended December 31, 2013 or
2012 , except with respect to restricted stock daddpon vesting of any options subject to ASC €afdi8, the benefits of tax deductions in
excess of recognized compensation expense wikberted as a financing cash flow, rather than aspanating cash flow.

Future Accounting Changes.

In July 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013-Presentation of an Unrecognized Tax Benefit Whéfea Operating Loss Carryforward, a
Similar Tax Loss, or a Tax Credit Carryforward EBxitThis ASU provides that an unrecognized tax benefig portion thereof, should be
presented in the financial statements as a redutdia deferred tax asset for a net operatingdasyforward, a similar tax loss, or a tax credit
carryforward, except to the extent a net operdtisg carryforward, a similar tax loss, or a taxddrearryforward is not available at the
reporting date to settle any additional income $athat would result from disallowance of a tax posij or the tax law does not require the
entity to use, and the entity does not intend tothe deferred tax asset for such purpose. In tteses, the unrecognized tax benefit should be
presented as a liability. This ASU is effective fiscal years, and interim periods within thosergebeginning after December 15, 2013. Early
adoption and retrospective application is permitidte Corporation is in the process of evaluatimgimpact of this standard on its existing
disclosures and currently does not expect thigddstahto have a material impact on the Corporationissolidated financial position or results
of operations.

In January 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-(Recteivables—Troubled Debt Restructurings by Cresl{tBubtopic 310-40):
Reclassification of Residential Real Estate Cothteed Consumer Mortgage Loans upon Foreclosureofasensus of the FASB Emerg
Issues Task Force’” This ASU clarifies that an in substance repossassidoreclosure occurs, and a creditor is considiéo have received
physical possession of residential real estategutpollateralizing a consumer mortgage loan, ugitimer (1) the creditor obtaining legal title
to the residential real estate property upon cotigpieof a foreclosure or (2) the borrower conveyatignterest in the residential real estate
property to the creditor to satisfy that loan tlgbuwompletion of a deed in lieu of foreclosureloptigh a similar agreement. In addition, the
amendments require interim and annual disclosubmtif the amount of foreclosed residential realtegtroperty held by the creditor and the
recorded investment in consumer mortgage loanateodlized by residential real estate property dnatn the process of foreclosure in
accordance with local requirements of the applie@llisdiction. This amendment is effective foclisyears, and interim periods within those
years, beginning after December 15, 2014. An entty elect to adopt the amendments using eithexdified retrospective method ol
prospective transition method. Early adoption isyptted. The Corporation is in the process of eatihg the impact of this standard but does
not expect this standard to have a material impa¢he Corporation’s consolidated financial positio results of operations.

Note 2 — Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and due from banks was approximately $13I®ménd $21.6 million at December 31, 2013 and20fespectively. Required reserves
in the form of either vault cash or deposits heltha Federal Reserve Bank (“FRB”) were $1.5 milland $291,000 at December 31, 2013 an
2012 . FRB balances were $53.0 million and $53/lianiat December 31, 2013 and 2012 , respectiaiyg, are included in short-term
investments on the Consolidated Balance Sheetst-f&inm investments, considered cash equivalerdgsg $68.1 million and $64.0 million at
December 31, 2013 and 2012 , respectively. Feflendb sold at December 31, 2013 and 2012 were 8@40d $237,000 , respectively and
are included in short-term investments on the Clichsied Balance Sheets.
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Note 3 — Securities

The amortized cost and estimated fair value of sies available-for-sale were as follows:

As of December 31, 2013

Gross Gross
unrealized unrealized Estimated
Amortized cos holding gains holding losses  fair value

(In Thousands)

U.S. Government agency obligations - governmentisped enterpriset $ 16,38( $ 9 % (145 $ 16,24
Municipal obligations 16,201 35 (759) 15,48¢
Asset-backed securities 1,515 — (293 1,49¢
Collateralized mortgage obligations - governmesi ezl 111,01( 2,23¢ (1,279 111,96¢
Collateralized mortgage obligations - governmertrsored enterprises 35,56! 57 (69€) 34,92:

$ 180,67 $ 2,33¢ % (2,896 $ 180,11¢

As of December 31, 2012

Gross Gross
unrealized unrealized Estimated
Amortized cos holding gains holding losses  fair value

(In Thousands)

U.S. Government agency obligations - governmentisped enterprise: $ 19,667 $ 62 $ B8 $ 19,72:
Municipal obligations $ 11,897 $ 17¢  $ 43 $ 12,03
Collateralized mortgage obligations - governmesi ésl 148,36 3,34¢ (68) 151,64!
Collateralized mortgage obligations - governmertrsored enterprises 17,12¢ 88 (19 17,197

$ 197,06. $ 3,67 9 (23¢) $ 200,59¢

U.S. Government agency obligations - governmentispeed enterprises represent securities issuetieblyederal Home Loan Mortgage
Corporation (“FHLMC”) and Federal National Mortgagesociation (“FNMA”"). Collateralized mortgage adpitions - government issued
represent securities guaranteed by the Governmetidridil Mortgage Association (“GNMA”). Collateratid mortgage obligations —
government-sponsored enterprises include secugtiaganteed by FHLMC and the FNMA. Asset-backedisées represent securities issued
by the Student Loan Marketing Association (“SLMASN)d are 97% guaranteed by the U.S. government.difahiobligations include
securities issued by various municipalities locatgdharily within the State of Wisconsin and areyarily general obligation bonds that are
tax-exempt in nature. There were no sales of sesidvailable-for-sale during the years ended Béer 31, 2013 and 2012 .

At December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012 , sm=uwiith a fair value of $42.3 million and $23.1llian , respectively, were pledged to
secure interest rate swap contracts, outstandind3rdlvances, if any, and additional FHLB availaili

The amortized cost and estimated fair value of iiéesi available-for-sale by contractual maturitybeecember 31, 2013 are shown below.
Actual maturities may differ from contractual matigs because issuers have the right to call gggyrebligations without call or prepayment
penalties.
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Estimated
Amortized Cos Fair Value

(In Thousands)

Due in one year or less $ — 3 =
Due in one year through five years 15,15( 15,03¢
Due in five through ten years 41,11¢ 41,01¢
Due in over ten years 124,40¢ 124,06-

$ 180,67 $ 180,11¢

The table below shows the Corporation’s gross Uizeshlosses and fair value of investments, agdesbhy investment category and length of
time that individual investments were in a continsioinrealized loss position at December 31, 208132842 . At December 31, 2013 and
2012 , the Corporation owned 131 securities ansegrities that were in an unrealized loss positiespectively. Such securities have not
experienced credit rating downgrades; however, tiaaye primarily declined in value due to the cutiaterest rate environment. At
December 31, 2013, the Corporation held 13 seesitihat had been in a continuous loss positiotvielve months or greater.

The Corporation also has not specifically identifsecurities in a loss position that it intendsed in the near term and does not believe that i
will be required to sell any such securities. leipected that the Corporation will recover theéreramortized cost basis of each security basec
upon an evaluation of the present value of the egpkefuture cash flows. Accordingly, no other tiamporary impairment was recorded in the
Consolidated Statements of Income for the yearseimecember 31, 2013 and 2012 .

A summary of unrealized loss information for avibliéafor-sale securities, categorized by securipetfollows:

As of December 31, 2013

Less than 12 months 12 months or longer Total
Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized
Fair value losses Fair value losses Fair value losses

(In Thousands)
U.S. Government agency obligations -

government-sponsored enterprises $ 10,60¢ $ 145 $ — $ — $ 10,60¢ $ 14&
Municipal obligations 12,00: 65C 981 10z 12,98: 753
Asset-backed securities 1,494 23 — — 1,494 23
Collateralized mortgage obligations -

government issued 34,02 997 6,14¢ 282 40,16° 1,27¢
Collateralized mortgage obligations -

government-sponsored enterprises 20,62¢ 50¢€ 5,41¢ 19C 26,04¢ 69€

$ 7875 $ 2,321 % 12,54t  $ 57¢ $ 91,297 $ 2,89¢

As of December 31, 2012

Less than 12 months 12 months or longer Total
Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized
Fair value losses Fair value losses Fair value losses

(In Thousands)
U.S. Government agency obligations -

government-sponsored enterprises $ 299 % 8 $ — $ — $ 299 % 8
Municipal obligations 3,45( 43 — — 3,45( 43
Collateralized mortgage obligations -

government issued 12,99( 68 — — 12,99( 68
Collateralized mortgage obligations -

government-sponsored enterprises 5,07t 18 — — 5,07¢ 18

$ 24500 $ 13¢ % — $ — $ 24500 % 13¢
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Note 4 — Loan and Lease Receivables, Impaired Loaasd Leases and Allowance for Loan and Lease Losses

Loan and lease receivables consist of the following

December 31, December 31,
2013 2012

(In Thousands)

Commercial real estate

Commercial real estate — owner occupied $ 141,16 $ 144,98t
Commercial real estate — non-owner occupied 341,69! 323,66(
Construction and land development 68,70¢ 64,96¢
Multi-family 62,75¢ 58,45¢
1-4 family 30,78¢ 31,94
Total commercial real estate 645,11: 624,01:
Commercial and industrial 293,55: 256,45t
Direct financing leases, net 26,06t 15,92¢

Consumer and other
Home equity and second mortgages 5,27: 4,64
Other 11,97: 11,67:
Total consumer and other 17,24 16,31
Total gross loans and leases receivable 981,97: 912,70t

Less:

Allowance for loan and lease losses 13,90! 15,40(
Deferred loan fees 1,021 74¢
Loans and leases receivable, net $ 967,05( § 896,56(

During the years ended December 31, 2013 and 284@&.2 million and $58.3 million of loans were tséerred to third parties, respectively.
Each of the transfers of these financial assetsmeegualifications for sale accounting, includthg requirements specific to loan
participations, and therefore $46.2 million and 85®illion during the years ended December 31, 20182012 , respectively, have been
derecognized in the audited Consolidated Finargte@lements. The Corporation has a continuing ireraknt in each of the loans by way of
relationship management and servicing the loansgkier, there are no further obligations to thedtarty participant required of the
Corporation in the event of a borrower’s defaulhes than standard representations and warraetigied to sold amounts. The loans were
transferred at their fair value and no gain or leas recognized upon the transfer, as the partioipinterest was transferred at or near the dat
of loan origination and the payments received &vising the portion of the loans participated esgnt adequate compensation. The total
amount of loan participations purchased on the @aiton’s Consolidated Balance Sheets as of DeceB8he2013 and December 31, 2012
was $498,000 and $765,000 , respectively.

The total amount of outstanding loans transferoetthitd parties as loan participations sold as e€&nber 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012
was $52.1 million and $50.1 million , respectivedyl,of which was treated as a sale and derecodnirder the applicable accounting guidanc
in effect at the time of the transfers of the ficahassets. The Corporation’s continuing involvemeith these loans is by way of partial
ownership, relationship management and all sergioésponsibilities. As of December 31, 2013 anddbgwer 31, 2012 , the total amount of
the Corporation’s partial ownership of loans on@wporation’s Consolidated Balance Sheets wa2$illion and $71.9 million ,
respectively. As of December 31, 2013, no loarthis participation sold portfolio were considerstbaired as compared to $3.2 million as of
December 31, 2012 . This decline was due to thietliat the impaired loan in this portfolio was reghased and thus removed from this
portfolio as described further below. From Decent0 through May 2013, the Corporation recogniaé¢sctal of $2.7 million in charge-offs
associated with specific credits within the retdipertion of this portfolio of loans in accordangith the Corporation’s allowance for loan and
lease loss measurement process and policies. Tip@i@tion does not share in the participant’s portf the charge-offs.

74




Table of Contents

In May 2013, the Corporation repurchased, fromatiginal participating entity, a portion of onealowhich was previously and appropriately
accounted for as a transfer (sale) under a paaticip agreement. This repurchase was not a condifithe original participation agreement
and was undertaken to provide the Corporation thighability to directly and effectively manage therkout process of this loan. As agreed to
with the original participating entity and consrstavith the transaction agreement, such participptation of the loan with aggregate principal
balance of $3.2 million was repurchased with caghiavalue, or a discounted price of $1.5 million

The $1.4 million carrying amount of this portiontbe loan is recorded on the Consolidated BalahetS within loans and leases receivable,
net at December 31, 2013 along with Corporationévipusly retained portion of this loan. This Idarclassified as a nonperforming troubled
debt restructuring because the Corporation camasionably estimate the timing of the cash flowsetqa to be collected and therefore the
discount will not be accreted to earnings until¢herying amount is fully paid.

During the year ended December 31, 2013 , there merchanges to the allowance for loan and leasesorelating to this loan, as it is a
collateral dependent loan and was deemed to hdfieiesnt collateral value as of December 31, 204 3upport the carrying value.

Certain of the Corporation’s executive officerggedtors and their related interests are loan diefithe Banks. As of December 31, 2013 and
2012, loans aggregating approximately $3.0 milaoa $11.4 million , respectively, were outstandimguch parties. New loans granted to
such parties during the years ended December 3B, &0d 2012 were approximately $1.6 million andt$tillion and repayments on such
loans were approximately $10.0 million and $1.2iomil, respectively. These loans were made in tdeary course of business and on
substantially the same terms as those prevailitigeatime for comparable loans not related to éimelér. None of these loans were considered
impaired.

The following information illustrates ending balasoof the Corporation’s loan and lease portfohic|uding impaired loans by class of
receivable, and considering certain credit quatiticators as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 :

Category
As of December 31, 2013 | Il 1" v Total

(Dollars in Thousands)

Commercial real estate:

Commercial real estate — owner occupied $ 118,76: $ 11,25¢  $ 10,80: % 33 $ 141,16
Commercial real estate — non-owner occupied 290,86 29,44 21,10 28¢ 341,69!
Construction and land development 53,49: 1,97 7,75¢ 5,48¢ 68,70¢
Multi-family 57,04¢ 5,67¢ — 31 62,75¢
1-4 family 19,19° 7,611 3,31: 66€ 30,78¢
Total commercial real estate 539,36 55,96 42,97 6,80¢ 645,11:
Commercial and industrial 268,10¢ 11,68¢ 5,71z 8,04: 293,55:
Direct financing leases, net 23,17: 2,421 473 — 26,06

Consumer and other:

Home equity and second mortgages 4,40¢ 134 15C 58C 5,27
Other 11,17: — — 79t 11,97:
Total consumer and other 15,58t 134 15C 1,37¢ 17,24«
Total gross loans and leases receivable $ 846,230 $ 70,200 % 49.30¢ % 16,22¢ $ 981,97.
Category as a % of total portfolio 86.180% 7.15% 5.02% 1.65% 100.0%
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Category
As of December 31, 2012 I Il [ A Total
(Dollars in Thousands)

Commercial real estate:

Commercial real estate — owner occupied $ 117,18 $ 9,68t $ 17,35 § 76 $ 144,98t
Commercial real estate — non-owner occupied 267,88 29,55 22,99: 3,231 323,66(
Construction and land development 49,13« 2,037 8,38¢ 5,411 64,96¢
Multi-family 50,80¢ 6,81( 79C 46 58,45¢
1-4 family 18,25¢ 4,657 7,87: 1,15¢ 31,94
Total commercial real estate 503,26 52,74¢ 57,39( 10,61¢ 624,01:
Commercial and industrial 233,52 9,92 10,17( 2,84 256,45¢
Direct financing leases, net 10,48¢ 3,891 1,54 — 15,92¢

Consumer and other:

Home equity and second mortgages 3,52¢ 157 22C 74C 4,64
Other 10,64: — — 1,03( 11,67:
Total consumer and other 14,16¢ 157 22C 1,77( 16,31
Total gross loans and leases receivable $ 76143 $ 66,72. % 69,320 $ 15,227 $ 912,70¢
Category as a % of total portfolio 83.4% 7.31% 7.6(% 1.67% 100.0%

Credit underwriting through a committee process k&y component of the Corporation’s operatingqsuphy. Business development officers
have relatively low individual lending authorityrits, and thus a significant portion of the Corpiargs new credit extensions require approva
from a loan approval committee regardless of tipe ©yf loan or lease, asset quality grade of theitsr@mount of the credit, or the related
complexities of each proposal. In addition, the@oation makes every effort to ensure that theepgopriate collateral at the time of
origination to protect the Corporation’s interasthie related loan or lease.

Each credit is evaluated for proper risk ratingrupagination, at the time of each subsequent rahewpon receipt and evaluation of updated
financial information from the Corporation’s borrevs, or as other circumstances dictate. The Cdtiparases a nine grade risk rating system
to monitor the ongoing credit quality of its loaansd leases. The risk rating grades follow a coasistefinition, and are then applied to specific
loan types based on the nature of the loan. Eakhating is subjective and, depending on the amknature of the credit, subject to various
levels of review and concurrence on the statedratikg. In addition to its nine grade risk ratsgstem, the Corporation groups loans into four
loan and related risk categories which determieddkiel and nature of review by management.

Category | — Loans and leases in this categorpar®rming in accordance with the terms of the mitand generally exhibit no immediate
concerns regarding the security and viability @ timderlying collateral, financial stability of therrower, integrity or strength of the
borrower's management team or the industry in whiiehborrower operates. Loans and leases in thégogy are not subject to additional
monitoring procedures above and beyond what isiredjat the origination or renewal of the loaneade. The Corporation monitors Category
| loans and leases through payment performancéincea maintenance of its personal relationshigh siich borrowers and continued review
of such borrowers’ compliance with the terms oftihespective agreements.

Category Il — Loans and leases in this categonpbaggnning to show signs of deterioration in onenare of the Corporation’s core
underwriting criteria such as financial stabilitganagement strength, industry trends and collatataks. Management will place credits in
category to allow for proactive monitoring and deson with the borrower to possibly mitigate thea of concern and prevent further
deterioration or risk of loss to the Corporatiomté€gjory Il loans are considered performing butaoaitored frequently by the assigned
business development officer and by subcommittéédseoBanks’ loan committees.
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Category lll — Loans and leases in this categoeyi@entified by the Corporation’s business develepnofficers and senior management as
warranting special attention. However, the baldndais category is not intended to represent theunt of adversely classified assets held by
the Banks. Category Ill loans and leases geneealybit undesirable characteristics such as eviglef@dverse financial trends and conditis
managerial problems, deteriorating economic cooaiitiwithin the related industry, or evidence ofexde public filings and may exhibit
collateral shortfall positions. Management contmteebelieve that it will collect all required peipal and interest in accordance with the
original terms of the contracts relating to then®and leases in this category, and therefore Gatélj loans are considered performing with
no specific reserves established for this categoagegory Il loans are monitored by managementl@aad committees of the Banks on a
monthly basis and the Banks’ Boards of Directorsaath of their regularly scheduled meetings.

Category IV — Loans and leases in this categorycansidered to be impaired. Impaired loans ancekehave been placed on non-accrual as
management has determined that it is unlikely tti@Banks will receive the required principal antérest in accordance with the contractual
terms of the agreement. Impaired loans are indallgevaluated to assess the need for the estaidishof specific reserves or charge-offs.
When analyzing the adequacy of collateral, the Ga@fion obtains external appraisals at least ahntalimpaired loans and leases. External
appraisals are obtained from the Corporation’s @t appraiser listing and are independently regtte monitor the quality of such
appraisals. To the extent a collateral shortfadlifgan is present, a specific reserve or chargeatffbe recorded to reflect the magnitude of the
impairment. Loans and leases in this category aneitored by management and loan committees of tr&k8on a monthly basis and the
Banks’ Boards of Directors at each of their regylacheduled meetings.

Utilizing regulatory classification terminology,efCorporation identified $22.8 million and $22.0lion of loans and leases as Substandard a
of December 31, 2013 and 2012 , respectively. ldadavere considered Special Mention, Doubtful ad.as of either December 31, 2@iRI
2012 . The population of Substandard loans ardseswf Category Il and Category IV loans.
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The delinquency aging of the loan and lease paotfw) class of receivable as of December 31, 20t32012 were as follows:

Greater
30-59 60-89 than 90 Total past
As of December 31, 2013 days past due days past due days past due due Current Total loans

(Dollars in Thousands)
Accruing loans and leases
Commercial real estate:

Owner occupied $ — 9 — — % — $ 140,82 $ 140,82
Non-owner occupied — — — — 341,41 341,41
Construction and land development — — — — 63,28t¢ 63,28t¢
Multi-family — — — — 62,721 62,721
1-4 family — — — — 30,26 30,26
Commercial & industrial — — — — 285,54: 285,54:
Direct financing leases, net — — — — 26,06¢ 26,06¢
Consumer and other:
Home equity and second mortgages — — — — 4,81¢ 4,81¢
Other — — — — 11,17% 11,177
Total $ — 3 —  $ — — $ 966,11° $ 966,11°

Non-accruing loans and leases
Commercial real estate:

Owner occupied $ — % — 254 % 254 % 85 $ 33¢
Non-owner occupied — — — — 283 283
Construction and land development — — — — 5,42z 5,42
Multi-family — — — — 31 31
1-4 family — 18C 123 30z 21¢ 521
Commercial & industrial 1,944 1,407 53 3,40¢ 4,607 8,011

Direct financing leases, net — — — — — _
Consumer and other:

Home equity and second mortgages — — 8t 8t 36¢ 45%
Other — — 79t 79t — 79t
Total $ 194  $ 1587 $ 1,31 $ 4841 $ 11,01« $ 15,85t

Total loans and leases
Commercial real estate:

Owner occupied $ — 9 — 3 254 % 254 $ 140,91( $ 141,16
Non-owner occupied — — — — 341,69! 341,69!
Construction and land development — — — — 68,70¢ 68,70¢
Multi-family — — — — 62,75¢ 62,75¢
1-4 family — 18C 12¢ 302 30,48 30,78¢
Commercial & industrial 1,94¢ 1,40 53 3,40¢ 290,14¢ 293,55:
Direct financing leases, net — — — — 26,06 26,06
Consumer and other:
Home equity and second mortgages — — 8% 8% 5,18 5,27
Other — — 79t 79t 11,177 11,97:
Total $ 1,94¢  $ 1587 $ 1,31C $ 4841 $ 977,13. $ 981,97
Percent of portfolio 0.2(% 0.1€% 0.12% 0.4% 99.51% 100.0(%
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Greater
30-59 60-89 than 90 Total past
As of December 31, 2012 days past due days past due days past due due Current Total loans

(Dollars in Thousands)
Accruing loans and leases
Commercial real estate:

Owner occupied $ 21C % — — 21C $ 144,00¢ $ 144,21¢
Non-owner occupied — — — — 320,78t 320,78t
Construction and land development — — — — 60,02( 60,02(
Multi-family — — — — 58,40¢ 58,40¢
1-4 family — — — — 30,931 30,931
Commercial & industrial — — — — 253,61¢ 253,61¢
Direct financing leases, net — — — — 15,92¢ 15,92¢
Consumer and other:
Home equity and second mortgages — — — — 4,03( 4,03(
Other — — — — 10,64: 10,64:
Total $ 21C % — 3 — % 21C $ 898,37t $ 898,58t

Non-accruing loans and leases
Commercial real estate:

Owner occupied $ —  $ — ¢ 117 $ 117 $ 65z $ 76¢
Non-owner occupied 2,41¢ — 444 2,85¢ 12 2,871
Construction and land development — — 471 471 4,47¢ 4,94¢
Multi-family — — — — 46 46
1-4 family 74 — 482 55€ 45C 1,00¢
Commercial & industrial 57 — 56( 617 2,22¢ 2,84:

Direct financing leases, net — — — — — _
Consumer and other:

Home equity and second mortgages — — 121 121 491 612
Other — — 1,03( 1,03( — 1,03(
Total $ 2,546 % —  $ 3,228 % 5771 % 8,351 & 14,12

Total loans and leases
Commercial real estate:

Owner occupied $ 21C % — 3 117 $ 327 $ 144,66 $ 144,98t
Non-owner occupied 2,41t — 444 2,85¢ 320,80: 323,66(
Construction and land development — — 471 471 64,49¢ 64,96¢
Multi-family — — — — 58,45 58,45
1-4 family 74 — 482 55€ 31,381 31,94
Commercial & industrial 57 — 56C 617 255,84: 256,45¢
Direct financing leases, net — — — — 15,92¢ 15,92¢
Consumer and other:
Home equity and second mortgages — — 121 121 4,521 4,64
Other — — 1,03( 1,03( 10,64 11,67:
Total $ 2,75¢ % — % 3,228 % 5981 $ 906,720 $ 912,70¢
Percent of portfolio 0.3(% —% 0.36% 0.6€% 99.3%% 100.0%
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The Corporation’s total impaired assets consisfatiefollowing at December 31, 2013 and 2012 peesvely.

December 31, December 31,
2013 2012

(Dollars in Thousands)

Non-accrual loans and leases
Commercial real estate:

Commercial real estate — owner occupied $ 33¢ ¢ 76¢
Commercial real estate — non-owner occupied 283 2,871
Construction and land development 5,42 4,94¢
Multi-family 31 4€
1-4 family 521 1,00¢
Total non-accrual commercial real estate 6,59¢ 9,63¢
Commercial and industrial 8,011 2,84

Direct financing leases, net — —
Consumer and other:

Home equity and second mortgages 4532 612
Other 79t 1,03(
Total non-accrual consumer and other loans 1,24¢ 1,64:
Total non-accrual loans and leases 15,85¢ 14,12:
Foreclosed properties, net 333 1,574
Total non-performing assets 16,18¢ 15,69¢
Performing troubled debt restructurings 371 1,10¢
Total impaired assets $ 16,55¢  § 16,80:
December 31, December 31,

2013 2012

Total non-accrual loans and leases to gross laash¢cases 1.61% 1.55%
Total non-performing assets to total gross loamksleases plus foreclosed properties, net 1.6t 1.7z
Total non-performing assets to total assets 1.2¢ 1.2¢
Allowance for loan and lease losses to gross laaddeases 1.42 1.6¢
Allowance for loan and lease losses to non-acdozels and leases 87.6¢ 109.0¢

As of December 31, 2013 and December 31, 20121, $8lion and $8.8 million of the non-accrual loamere considered troubled debt
restructurings, respectively. As of December 31,2 0there were no unfunded commitments associwitadroubled debt restructured loans
and leases.
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As of December 31, 2013 As of December 31, 2012
Number Pre-Modification PostModification Number Pre-Modification PostModification
of Recorded Recorded of Recorded Recorded
Loans Investment Investment Loans Investment Investment

(Dollars in Thousands)
Troubled debt restructurings:
Commercial real estate
Commercial real estate —

owner occupied 1 $ 11C % 84 5 $ 33 $ 302
Commercial real estate — non-
owner occupied 3 38t 28¢ 5 88t 803
Construction and land
development 3 6,06( 5,48¢ 4 8,04¢ 4,95:
Multi-family 1 184 31 1 184 47
1-4 family 10 911 66€ 13 1,67 1,132
Commercial and industrial 5 1,93¢ 56& 7 2,25(C 931

Consumer and other:
Home equity and second

mortgage 6 752 58C 7 86t 72€
Other 1 2,07¢ 79t 1 2,07¢ 1,03(
Total 30 $ 12,41 $ 8,49: 43 $ 16,31¢ $ 9,92¢

All loans and leases modified as a troubled deditweturing are evaluated for impairment. The reaand extent of the impairment of
restructured loans, including those which have ggpeed a default, is considered in the determinatif an appropriate level of the allowance
for loan and lease losses.

As of December 31, 2013 and 2012 , our troubled dedtructurings grouped by type of concession \asriollows:

As of December 31, 2013 As of December 31, 2012
Number Number

of of
Loans Recorded Investment Loans Recorded Investment

(Dollars in Thousands)
Commercial real estate

Extension of term 1 $ 55 2 $ 117
Combination of extension and interest |
concession 17 6,49¢ 26 7,121
Commercial and industrial
Extension of term 1 49 3 241
Combination of extension and interest rate
concession 4 51¢€ 4 68¢
Consumer and other
Extension of term 2 88C 2 1,115
Combination of extension and interest |
concession 5 49k 6 64C
Total 30 $ 8,49: 43 3 9,92¢

There were no loans and leases modified in a tesubébt restructuring during the previous 12 monthigh subsequently defaulted during the
year endeDecember 31, 2013 .
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The following represents additional informationaedjng the Corporation’s impaired loans and leéseslass:

Impaired Loans and Leases

As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2013

Unpaid Average Foregone Interest for,:géne
Recorded principal Impairment recorded interest income interest
investment balance reserve investment” income recognized income
(In Thousands)
With no impairment reserve
recorded:
Commercial real estate:
Owner occupied $ 33¢ % 33¢ — 3 715 $ 57 5C 7
Non-owner occupied 22¢ 22¢ — 1,58¢ 19¢ 17 181
Construction and land development 5,48¢ 8,16( — 5,771 20: 3 20c
Multi-family 31 39¢ — 36€ 93 — 93
1-4 family 244 244 — 40E 31 34 ©)
Commercial and industrial 55k 76€ — 434 97 114 7
Direct financing leases, net — — — 6 — — —
Consumer and other:
Home equity and second mortgages 51¢ 51¢ — 59¢ 37 3 34
Other 79 1,461 — 942 10C — 10C
Total $ 8,20C $ 12,11t — % 10,82: % 81¢ 221 59t
With impairment reserve recorded:
Commercial real estate:
Owner occupied $ — 8 — —  $ —  $ = = =
Non-owner occupied 54 94 54 88 6 — 6
Construction and land development — — — — — — —
Multi-family — — — — — — —
1-4 family 422 422 15& 437 18 — 18
Commercial and industrial 7,48¢ 7,48¢ 131 67C 42 — 42
Direct financing leases, net — — — — — — —
Consumer and other:
Home equity and second mortgage 62 62 62 65 5 — 5
Other — — — — — — —
Total $ 8,02¢ $ 8,06¢ 40z $ 1,26C $ 71 — 71
Total:
Commercial real estate:
Owner occupied $ 33¢ % 33¢ — 3 715 $ 57 5C 7
Non-owner occupied 28¢ 32: 54 1,67« 204 17 187
Construction and land development 5,48¢ 8,16( — 5,771 20: 3 20c
Multi-family 31 39¢ — 36€ 93 — 93
1-4 family 66€ 66€ 15¢ 84z 49 34 1t
Commercial and industrial 8,04 8,25¢ 131 1,10¢ 13¢ 114 25
Direct financing leases, net — — — 6 — — —
Consumer and other:
Home equity and second mortgages 58C 58( 62 65¢ 42 3 3¢
Other 79t 1,461 — 942 10C — 10C
Grand total $ 16,22¢ $ 20,18: 40z $ 12,08 $ 887 221 66€

(1) Average recorded investment is calculated primasiyng daily average balanc

82




Table of Contents

Impaired Loans and Leases
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2012

Unpaid Average Foregone Interest forgg(t)ne
Recorded principal Impairment recorded interest income Interest
investment balance reserve investment” income recognized Income
(In Thousands)
With no impairment reserve
recorded:
Commercial real estate:
Owner occupied $ 741 % 741 $ — 3 1,48: % 14z % 2 3 14C
Non-owner occupied 64¢ 64¢ — 1,23¢ 222 207 il
Construction and land development 4,94¢ 8,531 — 5,83¢ 24¢ 24 222
Multi-family 47 414 — 312 69 60 9
1-4 family 544 677 — 2,21 151 — 151
Commercial and industrial 2,39¢ 2,40¢ — 1,987 162 25 13¢
Direct financing leases, net — — — 4 — 1 Q)
Consumer and other:
Home equity and second mortgages 65€ 657 — 91: 55 1 54
Other 1,03( 1,62( — 1,15( 11z 1 112
Total $ 11,00¢ $ 15,69¢ $ —  $ 15,13t % 1,161 $ 321 % 84(
With impairment reserve recorded:
Commercial real estate:
Owner occupied $ 28 % 28 % 1€ $ 30 % 2 3 — % 2
Non-owner occupied 2,58 2,58 82¢ 162 33 — 33
Construction and land development 46F 46¢ 174 52¢ 15 — lig
Multi-family — — — — — — —
1-4 family 614 614 224 637 36 — 3€
Commercial and industrial 447 3,131 187 1,35( 17¢ — 17¢
Direct financing leases, net — — — — — — —
Consumer and other:
Home equity and second mortgage: 85 85 87 10z 7 — 7
Other — — — — — — —
Total $ 4,221 % 6,911 $ 1517 $ 281C $ 2711 $ — $ 271
Total:
Commercial real estate:
Owner occupied $ 76 % 76 % 1€ $ 151 % 144 % 2 3 14z
Non-owner occupied 3,23( 3,23( 82¢ 1,401 25¢ 207 48
Construction and land development 5,411 9,00z 174 6,36- 261 24 237
Multi-family 47 414 — 312 69 60 9
1-4 family 1,15¢ 1,291 224 2,85( 187 — 187
Commercial and industrial 2,841 5,541 187 3,331 341 25 31€
Direct financing leases, net — — — 4 — 1 Q)
Consumer and other:
Home equity and second mortgages 741 742 87 1,01¢ 62 1 61
Other 1,03( 1,62( — 1,15( 11z 1 112
Grand total $ 15227 $ 22,60¢ $ 1517 $ 17,948 $ 1,43:  $ 321 % 1,11

(1) Average recorded investment is calculated primasiyg daily average balanc

The difference between the loans and leases retamdestment and the unpaid principal balance dd $illion and $7.4 million as of
December 31, 2013 and 2012 , respectively, reptepantial charge-offs resulting from confirmeddes due to the value of the collateral
securing the loans and leases being less tharathgng values of the loans and leases. Impairadd@nd leases also included $371,000 and
$1.1 million of loans that were performing troublgebt restructurings, and thus, while not on aoorual, were reported as impaired, due tc
concession in terms. When a loan is placed on oonsal, interest accruals are discontinued andigusly accrued but uncollected interest is



deducted from interest income. If
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collectability of contractual principal and inter@ayments is in doubt, cash payments collectedamnaccrual loans are first applied to
principal. Foregone interest represents the intéhas was contractually due on the note but noeikeed or recorded. To the extent the amount
of principal on a non-accrual note is fully colledtand additional cash is received, the Corporatiimecognize interest income.

To determine the level and composition of the atlove for loan and lease losses, the Corporaticakbreut the loan and lease portfolio by
segments and risk ratings. First, the Corporati@uates loans and leases for potential impairrossification. The Corporation analyzes
each loan and lease determined to be impaired amdandual basis to determine a specific reserasda upon the estimated value of the
underlying collateral for collateral-dependent Isaor alternatively, the present value of expectesh flows. The Corporation applies historica
trends from established risk factors to each cagegbloans and leases that has not been indivileahluated for the purpose of establishing
the general portion of the allowance.

As of June 30, 2013, based on the results of thpdtation’s continuous risk assessment and mongagorocess, the Corporation refined its
methodology of establishing the general portiothefallowance for loan and lease losses attribetabihe historical loss migration by
shortening the historical loss period from five ngei® three years and increasing the historical fastor applied to Category Ill loans. Both
changes were implemented to more accurately refiecestimate of incurred losses for the colledyiexaluated loans as of the balance sheet
date. The impact of the changes was not matedaliglually or in the aggregate.

A summary of the activity in the allowance for loamnd lease losses by portfolio segment is as fallow

As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2013

Commercial Direct
Commercial and Consumer financing
real estate industrial and other leases, net Total

(Dollars in Thousands)
Allowance for credit losses:

Beginning balance $ 10,697 % 4,12¢ $ 371 % 207 % 15,40(
Charge-offs (89¢6) (14) (4) — (914
Recoveries 353 11 5 5 374
Provision (1,095 10¢ (99 12¢€ (959)

Ending balance $ 9,05¢ % 423t % 272 $ 33 % 13,90:

Ending balance: individually evaluated for impaimhe $ 20¢  $ 131 $ 62 $ — 3 40z

Ending balance: collectively evaluated for impainne $ 8,84¢ % 4,10¢  $ 211 % 33 % 13,49¢

Ending balance: loans acquired with deteriorateditr
quality $ — 3 —  $ — 3 —  $ —

Loans and lease receivables:

Ending balance, gross $ 64511: $ 29355 $ 17,24  $ 26,06f $ 981,97:

Ending balance: individually evaluated for impaimhe $ 537¢ % 8,04: % 1,37t $ — 3 14,79’

Ending balance: collectively evaluated for impaimme $ 638,30 $ 28550¢ § 15,86¢ $ 26,06f $ 965,74t

Ending balance: loans acquired with deteriorateditr
quality $ 1,42¢ % — 3 — $ — 1,42¢

Allowance as % of gross loans 1.4(% 1.44% 1.58% 1.3(% 1.42%
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As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2012

Commercial Direct
Commercial and Consumer financing
real estate industrial and other leases, net Total

(Dollars in Thousands)
Allowance for credit losses:

Beginning balance $ 9,55¢ % 3977 % 384 % 24C % 14,15t
Charge-offs (612) (2,739 (22§) — (3,479
Recoveries 37t 66 4C — 481
Provision 1,37¢ 2,82¢ 75 (33 4,24:
Ending balance $ 10,69: $ 4,12¢ % 371 % 207 % 15,40(
Ending balance: individually evaluated for impaimhe $ 1,24  $ 18¢ $ 87 ¢ —  $ 1,517
Ending balance: collectively evaluated for impainne $ 9,44¢ % 3,94 % 284  $ 207 % 13,88
Ending balance: loans acquired with deterioratedicr

quality $ — % — 3 — % — % —
Loans and lease receivables:
Ending balance, gross $ 624,01 $ 25645( $ 16,31 % 1592¢ $ 912,70t
Ending balance: individually evaluated for impaimhe $ 10,61 $ 2,84: % 1,777 $ —  $ 15,22}

Ending balance: collectively evaluated for impainme $ 613,39° $ 253,61t $ 1454 % 1592¢ $ 897,48

Ending balance: loans acquired with deteriorateditr
quality $ — ¢ — — 3 — —

Allowance as % of gross loans 1.71% 1.61% 2.21% 1.3(% 1.6%%

The Corporation’s net investment in direct finamcieases consists of the following:

As of December 31,

2013 2012
(In Thousands)
Minimum lease payments receivable $ 24,65¢ $ 12,95:
Estimated unguaranteed residual values in leasgabpty 4,54¢ 4,36¢
Initial direct costs 22¢ 29
Less unearned lease and residual income (3,36%) (1,420
Investment in commercial direct financing leases $ 26,06 $ 15,92¢

There were no impairments of residual value ofddgsroperty during the years ended December 313 and 2012 .

The Corporation leases equipment under direct &imgnleases expiring in future years. Some of theases provide for additional rents, base
on use in excess of a stipulated minimum numbéoafs, and generally allow the lessees to purctiesequipment for fair value at the end of
the lease term.
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Future aggregate maturities of minimum lease payserbe received are as follows:

(In Thousands)
Maturities during year ended December 31,

2014 $ 6,42¢
2015 5,33:
2016 4,25¢
2017 3,21¢
2018 2,49¢
Thereafte 2,93
$ 24,65¢

Note 5 — Leasehold Improvements and Equipment

A summary of leasehold improvements and equipmedeaember 31, 2013 and 2012 is as follows:

As of December 31,

2013 2012
(In Thousands)

Leasehold improvements $ 1547 $ 1,26:
Furniture and equipment 3,251 3,031
Construction and purchases in progress — 77
4,80« 4,371

Less: accumulated depreciation (3,649 (3,409
Total leasehold improvements and equipment, net $ 1,158 % 96¢

Note 6 — Other Assets

The Corporation is a limited partner in severalitgd partnership investments. The Corporation i@ general partner, does not have
controlling ownership, and is not the primary vhhginterest holder in any of these limited parshgs. The Corporation’s share of the
partnerships’ income included in the consolidatedesnents of income for the years ended Decemhe&2@B and 2012 was a loss$#37,00(
and income of $678,000 , respectively. The Corpamatiad an equity investment in Aldine Capital Fuol, a mezzanine fund, of $1.2 million
and $2.0 million recorded as of December 31, 20182012 , respectively. The Corporation had a remgicommitment to provide funds of
$960,000 at December 31, 2013 . In March 2013Ctmporation invested in Aldine Capital Fund Il, CRlIdine II"), a mezzanine fund. As of
December 31, 2013, the Corporation’s equity investinin Aldine Il totaled $942,000 . The Corporatlmad a remaining commitment to
provide funds of $3.8 million at December 31, 20T3e Corporation also has one tax-preferred lidhitartnership equity investment, Chapel
Valley Senior Housing, LP. At December 31, 2013 2842 , there was a zero cost basis remainingsrtdi-preferred limited partnership
equity investment.

The Corporation is the sole owner of $315,000 oficmn securities issued by Trust Il, a Delawarermss trust. The purpose of Trust Il was
to complete the sale of $10.0 million of 10.50%efixate trust preferred securities. Trust Il, a lyhmwvned subsidiary of the Corporation, was
not consolidated into the financial statementsef@orporation. The investment in Trust Il of $XW) as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 is
included in accrued interest receivable and othsets.
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A summary of accrued interest receivable and adbsets is as follows:

As of December 31,

2013 2012
(In Thousands)

Accrued interest receivable $ 3,231 $ 3,211
Deferred tax assets, net 3,72 4,58
Investment in limited partnerships 2,141 2,00(
Investment in Trust Il 31k 31t
Fair value of interest rate swaps 94¢ 3,06¢
Prepaid expenses 1,22¢ 1,452
Other 2,73 2,771

Total accrued interest receivable and other assets $ 14,31¢ % 17,40¢

Note 7 — Deposits

The composition of deposits at December 31, 2083212 was as follows. Weighted average balangegssent year-to-date averages.

December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012
Weighted Weighted
average Weighted average Weighted
Balance balance average rate Balance balance average rate

(Dollars in Thousands)
Non-interest-bearing transaction

accounts $ 151,27 % 138,92( —% $ 161,98! $ 137,11° —%
Interest-bearing transaction accounts 77,00« 62,57¢ 0.2C 43,54: 34,18( 0.2¢
Money market accounts 456,06" 450,55¢ 0.5¢ 443,74 395,25¢ 0.7¢
Certificates of deposit 51,97¢ 60,27¢ 1.01 68,59¢ 82,43( 1.17
Brokered certificates of deposit 393,53! 393,72¢ 1.6€ 374,38! 400,69! 2.2t
Total deposits $ 1,129,850 $ 1,106,05 o8 $ 1,09225 $ 1,049,68 1.2¢

A summary of annual maturities of certificates epdsit outstanding at December 31, 2013 follows:

(In Thousands)
Maturities during the year ended December 31,

2014 $ 173,07
2015 117,38:
2016 58,08"
2017 31,57:
2018 23,357
Thereafter 42,03}
$ 445,51:

Deposits include approximately $23.2 million and $3million of certificates of deposit, including brokered dgipgy which are denominated
amounts of $100,000 or more at December 31, 20d2@ah2 , respectively.
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Note 8 — FHLB Advances, Other Borrowings and JunioiSubordinated Notes

The composition of borrowed funds at December 8132and 2012 was as follows. Weighted average batarepresent year-tiate average

December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012
Weighted Weighted Weighted Weighted
average average average average
Balance balance rate Balance balance rate
(Dollars in Thousands)
Federal funds purchased $ — 3 26( 0.78% $ — 3 237 0.82%
FHLB advances — 6,471 0.1¢ 46¢ 2,03¢ 1.5¢
Line of credit 10 10 3.41 10 1,66¢ 4.07
Subordinated notes payable 11,92¢ 11,92¢ 6.92 11,92¢ 37,48 7.0Z
Junior subordinated notes 10,31¢ 10,31¢ 10.7¢ 10,31 10,31¢ 10.81
$ 22,25 % 28,98: 6.7¢ $ 22,72( % 51,73: 7.4¢€
Short-term borrowings $ 1C $ 47¢
Long-term borrowings 22,24 22,24
$ 22,25 $ 22,72(

The Corporation’s FHLB advances fully matured itbfemary 2013. At December 31, 2013 and 2012 , there no securities sold under
agreements to repurchase. There were no outstafedlegal funds purchased at any month-end durstgfiyears December 31, 2013 and
2012.

The Corporation has a $65.8 million FHLB line oédit available for advances and open line borrowinich is collateralized by mortgage-
related securities, unencumbered first mortgagesl@ad secured small business loans as noted b&td»ecember 31, 2013 , $65.8 million of
this line remained unused. There were no advanassamding on the Corporation’s open line at Decam34, 2013 and 2012 . There were no
Term FHLB advances outstanding at December 31, 28i®ecember 31, 2012 , Term FHLB advances tdt&#69,000 . The advances bore
fixed interest rates which ranged from 5.91% t®%otat December 31, 2012 .

The Corporation is required to maintain, as coti{enortgage-related securities and unencumbérstchiortgage loans and secured small
business loans in its portfolio aggregating attléfas amount of outstanding advances from the FHld&ns totaling approximately $37.1
million and $35.4 million and collateralized morggaobligations totaling approximately $39.5 milliand $18.9 million were pledged as
collateral for FHLB advances and unused availal#ditat December 31, 2013 and 2012 , respectively.

The Corporation has a senior line of credit withied-party financial institution of $10.5 millionAs of December 31, 2013, the line of credit
carried an interest rate of LIBOR + 2.75% with@ofl of 3.25% and had certain performance debt cvisrof which the Corporation was in
compliance. The Corporation pays an unused lineffeis senior line of credit. For the years enBedember 31, 2013 and 2012 , the
Corporation incurred $13,000 and $11,000 of addi#ionterest expense due to this fee. On Februar2d14 , the credit line was renewed for
one additional year with pricing terms of LIBOR #72% with an interest rate floor of 3.25% and auritt date of February 19, 2015 .

The Corporation has subordinated notes payabl®egember 31, 2013 and 2012 , the amount of suteetimotes payable outstanding was
$11.9 million . The subordinated notes payableifutdr Tier 2 capital. At December 31, 2013 , $5nfllion of the subordinated notes bore an
interest rate of LIBOR + 4.75% with an intereserfibor of 6.00% and $6.2 million bore a fixed irgst rate of 7.50% . There are no debt
covenants on the subordinated notes payable. $8i@mof the subordinated notes outstanding aBetember 31, 2013 were held by a third
party financial institution and mature on May 1622 . The remaining $6.2 million of the subordimbt®tes consists of notes which the
Corporation offered and sold to certain accredit@éstors in 2012. The notes were structured tdifgyues Tier 2 capital, mature alanuary 1¢
2022 and bear a fixed interest rate of 7.50% year for their entire term. The Corporatioryns its option, redeem the notes, in whole ot,

at any time after the fifth anniversary of issuaridge Corporation used the net proceeds from tleea$dhe notes to repay a portion of its then.
existing $39.0 million of other subordinated notesDecember 2012, the Corporation successfulsediapproximately $29.1 million through
the issuance of 1,265,000 shares of common stoglpate of $23.00 per share. The net proceedseobffering, approximately $27.1 million ,
were immediately used to further repay a portioit$39.0 million of subordinated
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notes outstanding at that time. On January 17, #®d €orporation repaid an additional $4.0 millafrthe third party financial institution
subordinated notes. As of the filing of the 10-ke butstanding balance of the third party finanicisfitution debt was $1.7 million and total
subordinated debt was $7.9 million .

In September 2008 , Trust || completed the sa®16f£0 million of 10.50% fixed rate trust preferiseturities (“Preferred Securities”). Trust Il
also issued common securities of $315,000 . Ttustdd the proceeds from the offering to purchd€3million of 10.50% Junior
Subordinated Notes (“Notes”) of the Corporatione Rreferred Securities are mandatorily redeemaiale the maturity of the Notes on
September 26, 2038 . The Preferred Securitiesfyualder the risk-based capital guidelines as Tieapital for regulatory purposes. Per the
provisions of the Dodd-Frank Act, bank holding camigs with total assets of less than $15 billienrast required to phase out trust preferred
securities as an element of Tier 1 capital as othager institutions must. The Corporation useaghoceeds from the sale of the Notes for
general corporate purposes including providing taftil capital to its subsidiaries. Debt issuanogts of approximately $428,000 were
capitalized in 2008 and are amortizing over the ¢if the Notes as an adjustment to interest expéssef December 31, 2013, $353,000 of
debt issuance costs remain reflected in othersesethe consolidated balance sheets.

The Corporation has the right to redeem the Nateseh interest payment date on or after Septe@®he2013 . The Corporation also has the
right to redeem the Notes, in whole but not in pafiter the occurrence of a special event. Spegiahts are limited to: (1) a change in capital
treatment resulting in the inability of the Corpiiwa to include the Notes in Tier 1 capital, (Qfange in laws or regulations that could require
Trust Il to register as an investment company ufdher Investment Company Act of 1940, as amendedi{2)na change in laws or regulations
that would require Trust Il to pay income tax wiéspect to interest received on the Notes or, pibthie Corporation from deducting the
interest payable by the Corporation on the Noteagsult in greater than a de minimis amount of sefwe Trust .

Trust I, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Corpawat was not consolidated into the financial staata of the Corporation. Therefore, the
Corporation presents in its Consolidated Finar8fatements junior subordinated notes as a lialdliy its investment in Trust Il as a
component of other assets.

Note 9 — Stockholders’ Equity and Regulatory Capith

On June 5, 2008, the Board of Directors declardividend of one common share purchase right foh eatstanding share of common stock,
$0.01 par value per share (common shares), of éngaZation. The dividend was paid on July 15, 2@xh right entitles the registered holder
to purchase from the Corporation one-half of omammn share, at a price of $85.00 per full commanresifequivalent to $42.50 for each one-
half of a common share), subject to adjustment.rigtes will be exercisable only if a person orgpaacquires 15% or more of the
Corporation’s common stock or announces a tender fufr such stock. Under conditions describechimn $hareholder Rights Plan, holders of
rights may acquire additional shares of the Corfpmm&s common stock. The value of shares acquiretktuthe plan would have a market value
of two times the then-current per share purchaise pfhe rights will expire on June 5, 2018.

The Corporation and the Banks are subject to vaniegulatory capital requirements administered égyeral and State of Wisconsin banking
agenciesFailure to meet minimum capital requirements caultén certain mandatory, and possibly additiatiatretionary actions on the p

of regulators, that if undertaken, could have adatimaterial effect on the Banks’ assets, liab#itand certain off-balance-sheet items as
calculated under regulatory practices. The Corpmrat and the Banks’ capital amounts and clasdifica are also subject to qualitative
judgments by the regulators about componentsweightings and other factors. The Corporation cargusly reviews and updates wt
appropriate its Capital and Liquidity Action Plahd “Capital Plan”), which is designed to help emsappropriate capital adequacy, to plan for
future capital needs and to ensure that the Catiparaerves as a source of financial strengtheédthinks. The Corporation’s and the Banks’
Boards of Directors and management teams adhéhe tappropriate regulatory guidelines on decisiehigh affect their capital position,
including but not limited to, decisions relatingttee payment of dividends and increasing indebtesine

As a bank holding company, the Corporation’s aptlit pay dividends is affected by the policies antbrcement powers of the Federal
Reserve. Federal Reserve guidance urges comparsesngly consider eliminating, deferring or siggantly reducing dividends if: (i) net
income available to common shareholders for théfpas quarters, net of dividends previously paidlidg that period, is not sufficient to fully
fund the dividend; (ii) the prospective rate ofréags retention is not consistent with the banldim@g company’s capital needs and overall
current prospective financial condition; or (iiijet bank holding company will not meet, or is in g@nof not meeting, its minimum regulatory
capital ratios. Management intends, when apprapriatler regulatory guidelines, to consult with Fleeleral Reserve Bank of Chicago and
provide it with information on the Corporation’stircurrent and prospective earnings and capitaliposn advance of declaring any cash
dividends.
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The Banks are also subject to certain legal, reégujand other restrictions on their ability to pdiyidends to the Corporation. As a bank
holding company, the payment of dividends by thakBao the Corporation is one of the sources ofi$uthe Corporation could use to pay
dividends, if any, in the future and to make otb@yments. Future dividend decisions by the Bankistia@ Corporation will continue to be
subject to compliance with various legal, regulatand other restrictions as defined from time noeti

Qualitative measures established by regulatiom$wie capital adequacy require the Corporationtla@@®anks to maintain minimum amounts
and ratios of Total and Tier 1 capital to risk-weigd assets and of Tier 1 capital to average asSetsl capital generally consists of
stockholders’ equity plus certain qualifying deheat and other specified items less intangibletasseh as goodwill. Risk-based capital
requirements presently address credit risk relatdunbth recorded and off-balanskeet commitments and obligations. Managementussjeas
of December 31, 2013, that the Corporation andBteks met all applicable capital adequacy requares

As of December 31, 2013 , the most recent notificafrom the FDIC and the WDFI categorized the Baak well capitalized under the
regulatory framework for prompt corrective action.

The following table summarizes the Corporation’d &anks’ capital ratios and the ratios requiredhmjr federal regulators at December 31,
2013 and 2012, respectively:

Minimum Required to Be Well
Capitalized Under Prompt

Minimum Required for Capital Corrective Action
Actual Adequacy Purposes Requirements
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio

(Dollars In Thousands)
As of December 31, 2013

Total capital
(to risk-weighted assets)
Consolidated $ 145,35: 13.1¢% $ 88,37: 8.0(% N/A N/A
First Business Bank 123,33: 12.5% 78,51¢ 8.0C $ 98,14 10.0(%
First Business Bank — Milwaukee 17,94« 14.6¢€ 9,79( 8.0C 12,23¢ 10.0C
Tier 1 capital
(to risk-weighted assets)
Consolidated $ 119,61 10.8: $ 44,18¢ 4.0C N/A N/A
First Business Bank 111,06: 11.32 39,25¢ 40C $ 58,88 6.0C
First Business Bank — Milwaukee 16,41« 13.41 4,89t 4.0C 7,345 6.0C
Tier 1 capital
(to average assets)
Consolidated $ 119,61 9.3t $ 51,15¢ 4.0C N/A N/A
First Business Bank 111,06: 10.3¢ 42,91 400 % 53,64. 5.0C
First Business Bank — Milwaukee 16,41« 7.64 8,59¢ 4.0C 10,74« 5.0C
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Minimum Required to Be Well
Capitalized Under Prompt

Minimum Required for Capital Corrective Action
Actual Adequacy Purposes Requirements
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio

(Dollars In Thousands)
As of December 31, 2012

Total capital
(to risk-weighted assets)
Consolidated $ 132,04: 12.9% $ 81,45: 8.0(% N/A N/A
First Business Bank 115,61: 12.7: 72,64( 8.0C $ 90,80( 10.0(%
First Business Bank — Milwaukee 15,74 14.6( 8,62¢ 8.0C 10,78: 10.0¢
Tier 1 capital
(to risk-weighted assets)
Consolidated $ 107,35¢ 10.5¢ $ 40,72¢ 4.0C N/A N/A
First Business Bank 104,23. 11.4¢ 36,32( 400 % 54,48( 6.0C
First Business Bank — Milwaukee 14,39 13.3¢ 4,31z 4.0C 6,47(C 6.0C
Tier 1 capital
(to average assets)
Consolidated $ 107,35¢ 8.9¢ $ 47,75( 4.0C N/A N/A
First Business Bank 104,23. 10.4¢ 39,73 40 $ 49,66 5.0C
First Business Bank — Milwaukee 14,39: 6.72 8,56: 4.0C 10,70: 5.0C

The following table reconciles stockholders’ equiyfederal regulatory capital at December 31, 284@ 2012 , respectively.

As of December 31,

2013 2012
(In Thousands)
Stockholders’ equity of the Corporation $ 109,27 $ 99,53¢
Unrealized and accumulated losses (gains) on $péeifns 34z (2,189
Trust preferred securities 10,00( 10,00(
Tier 1 capital 119,61 107,35t
Allowable general valuation allowances and subaigid debt 25,73t 24,68t
Risk-based capital $ 145,35 $ 132,04:

Note 10 — Earnings per Common Share

Earnings per common share are computed using thelags method. Basic earnings per common shamearputed by dividing net income
allocated to common shares by the weighted averagwer of shares outstanding during the applicabted, excluding outstanding
participating securities. Participating securifiedude unvested restricted shares. Unvested cesirshares are considered participating
securities because holders of these securitiesyeenen-forfeitable dividends at the same rateadédrs of the Corporation’s common stock.
Diluted earnings per share are computed by dividigigincome allocated to common shares adjustegtédiocation of undistributed earnings
of unvested restricted shares by the weighted gearamber of shares determined for the basic eggmar common share computation plus
the dilutive effect of common stock equivalentsgsihe treasury stock method.

In December 2012 , the Corporation successfullyptetad a capital-raising transaction through tiseasice of 1,265,000 shares of common
stock at a price of $23.00 . This stock issuangeaitted the Corporation’s earnings per share by#&ging the number of shares outstanding.

For the years ended December 31, 2013 and 20Xkage anti-dilutive employee share-based awardtetb?7 and 115,236 , respectively.
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For the Year Ended December 31,
2013 2012
(Dollars in Thousands, Except Share Data)

Basic earnings per common share

Net income $ 13,74¢  $ 8,92¢
Less: earnings allocated to participating secwitie 331 32¢
Basic earnings allocated to common shareholders $ 13,41t $ 8,591
Weighted-average common shares outstanding, exgjymdirticipating securities 3,832,29 2,608,96
Basic earnings per common share $ 350 % 3.3C

Diluted earnings per common share

Earnings allocated to common shareholders $ 13,41 $ 8,591
Reallocation of undistributed earnings 2 —
Diluted earnings allocated to common shareholders $ 13,41 $ 8,591
Weighted-average common shares outstanding, exgjumdirticipating securities 3,832,29i 2,608,96
Dilutive effect of share-based awards 15,31 1,911
Weighted-average diluted common shares outstandkuliiding participating securities 3,847,61 2,610,87.
Diluted earnings per common share $ 3.4¢ % 3.2¢

Note 11 — Share-Based Compensation

The Corporation adopted the 2012 Equity Incentilaa Rthe “Plan”) during the quarter ended June2B0,2. The Plan is administered by the
Compensation Committee of the Board of DirectorthefCorporation and provides for the grant of ggownership opportunities through
incentive stock options and nonqualified stock ati (together, “Stock Options”), restricted stadstricted stock units and dividend
equivalent units, and any other type of award peechiby the Plan. As of December 31, 2013 , 1989%8es were available for future grants
under the Plan. Shares covered by awards thategxtpiminate or lapse will again be available Far grant of awards under the Plan. The
Corporation may issue new shares and shares feasaury for shares delivered under the Plan.

Stock Options

The Corporation may grant Stock Options to serxecatives and other employees under the Plan. $2ptions generally have an exercise
price that is equal to the fair value of the comrsbares on the date the option is awarded. StotkBpgranted under the plans are subject tc
graded vesting, generally ranging from 4 yearsyed&s , and have a contractual term of 10 ydaps any new awards issued, compensation
expense is recognized over the requisite servideg#or the entire award on a straight-line bakis.Stock Options were granted since the
Corporation became a reporting company under tearies Exchange Act of 1934 and no Stock Optiaenge been modified, repurchased or
cancelled since such time. For that reason, ndkdiased compensation related to Stock Options a@sgnized in the Consolidated Financial
Statements for the years ended December 31, 2@IL3CGH? . As of December 31, 2013, all Stock Oggtigranted and not previously forfeited
had vested. The benefits of tax deductions asudt refsdisqualifying dispositions upon exercisestdck options are recognized as a financing
cash flow activity.
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The following table represents a summary of Stopkidds activity for the periods indicated.

For the Years Ended December 31,

2013 2012
Weighted Weighted

Options average price Options average price
Outstanding at beginning of year 124,03: $ 22.4: 125,03: $ 22.4:
Granted — — — —
Exercised (69,689 21.1: (1,000 22.0C
Expired (3,350 22.0C — —
Forfeited — — — —
Outstanding at end of year 51,00( 24.2¢ 124,03: 22.4°
Options exercisable at end of year 51,00( 24.2¢ 124,03: 22 4%

The following table represents outstanding Stockiddg and exercisable Stock Options at the respectinges of exercise prices at
December 31, 2013 .

Options Outstanding Exercisable
Weighted

average Weighted Weighted

remaining average average

contractual exercise exercise

Range of exercise prices Shares life (years) price Shares price

$24.00 - $24.99 39,00( 0.80 $ 24.0( 39,00( $ 24.0(C
$25.00 - $25.99 12,00( 1.13 25.0( 12,00( 25.0(
51,00( 0.88 24.2¢ 51,00( 24.2¢

Restricted Stocl

Under the Plan, the Corporation may grant resttisteares to plan participants, subject to forfeitypon the occurrence of certain events until
the dates specified in the participant’s award exgrent. While the restricted shares are subjedairfeifure, the participant may exercise full
voting rights and will receive all dividends andhet distributions paid with respect to the restdcshares. The restricted shares granted unde
the Plan are subject to graded vesting. Compemsatipense is recognized over the requisite sepgced of generally four years for the en
award on a straight-line basis. Upon vesting dfriced share awards, the benefit of tax deductinrexcess of recognized compensation
expense is recognized as a financing cash flowigcti

Restricted share activity for the years ended Déegrl, 2013 and 2012 was as follows:

For the Year Ended December 31,

2013 2012

Weighted Weighted

Number of average Number of average

restricted grant-date restricted grant-date

shares fair value shares fair value
Nonvested balance at beginning of year 94,50¢ $ 18.1¢ 95,86¢ $ 15.1¢
Granted 25,03( 33.0C 37,12 23.0¢
Vested (34,827 16.8¢ (35,90 15.0¢
Forfeited — — (2,580 18.3:2
Nonvested balance as of end of year 84,70¢ 23.1( 94,50¢ 18.1¢

As of December 31, 2013, $1.7 million of defercednpensation expense was included in additionatipacapital in the Consolidated Balai
Sheets related to unvested restricted shares whécBorporation expects to recognize over approtdéin®.7 years. As of December 31, 2013
all restricted shares that vested were delivereditie years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012e-bhsed compensation expense included
in the Consolidated Statements of Income total&&DF®H0 and $548,000 , respectively.
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Note 12 — Employee Benefit Plans

The Corporation maintains a contributory 401(k)imied contribution plan covering substantially atidoyees. The Corporation matches 1(
of amounts contributed by each participating emgéoyp to 3.0% of the employee’s compensation. Tdrp@ation may also make
discretionary contributions up to an additional6.6f salary. Contributions are expensed in thegoencurred and recorded in compensation
expense in the consolidated statements of incomme Corporation made a matching contribution of 3t6%ill eligible employees which
totaled $348,000 and $321,000 for the years endeetiber 31, 2013 and 2012 , respectively. Disaratiocontributions of 4.6% , or
$533,000, and 5.0% , or $528,000 , were made 18 20id 2012 , respectively.

As of December 31, 2013 and 2012 , the Corpordtazha deferred compensation plan under which itigeal contributions to supplement the
retirement income of one executive. Under the tasfrike plan, benefits to be received are genepaliyable within six months of the date of
the termination of employment with the Corporatidhe expense associated with the deferred compengdan in 2013 and 2012 was
$81,000 and $58,000 , respectively. The preseneval future payments under the remaining plan6df7$000 and $566,000 at December 31,
2013 and 2012, respectively, is included in ottadilities.

The Corporation owned life insurance policies amlife of the executive covered by the deferred pensation plan, which had cash surrende
values and death benefits of approximately $2.0aniland $5.7 million , respectively, at Decembgr 2013 and cash surrender values and
death benefits of approximately $1.9 million and7/illion , respectively, at December 31, 20The remaining balance of the cash surre
value of bank-owned life insurance of $21.1 milleomd $20.4 million as of December 31, 2013 and 20&8pectively, is related to policies on
a number of then-qualified individuals affiliatedtlwvthe Banks.

Note 13 — Leases

The Corporation and FBB occupy space in Madisonuder an operating lease agreement that expiréalgry, 2028 . FBB has three loan
production offices in Appleton, WI, Oshkosh, Wi da@reen Bay, WI, that occupy office space undeassp operating lease agreements that
expire on November 30, 2017 , January 31, 2018 March 31, 2014 , respectively. FBB — Milwaukeeugies office space under an
operating lease agreement that expires on Nove&the2020 . The Corporation’s total rent expense $4a2 million for both years ended
December 31, 2013 and 2012 , respectively. Rergresgis recognized on a straight-line basis. Thpdation also leases other office
equipment. Rental expense for these operatingdeaas $29,000 and $27,000 for the years ended Depedi, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Future minimum lease payments for noncancelableatipg leases for each of the five succeeding yaadsthereafter are as follows:

(In Thousands)

2014 $ 70€
2015 67¢
2016 645
2017 618
2018 55¢
Thereafter 4,88t
$ 8,08t
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Note 14 - Other Operating Expenses

A summary of other operating expenses for the yeaded December 31, 2013 and 2012 is as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2013 2012
(In Thousands)

Endowment to First Business Charitable Foundation $ 1,30C $ =
General and administrative expenses 93¢ 917
Travel and other employee expenses 871 903
Computer software expenses 677 44¢€
Partnership loss (income) 437 (67¢€)
Foreclosed properties expenses 18t 58¢
Other expenses 24C 562

Total other operating expenses $ 4,65/ $ 2,73¢

Note 15 — Income Taxes

Income tax expense applicable to income for thesyeaded December 31, 2013 and 2012 consists éblithering:

Year Ended December 31,

2013 2012

(In Thousands)

Current:
Federal $ 3,608 % 5,47:
State 1,35¢ 1,18:¢
Current tax expense 4,961 6,65¢
Deferred:
Federal 2,257 (1,756
State 171 (150)
Deferred tax expense (benefit) 2,42¢ (1,906
Total income tax expense $ 7,38¢ $ 4,75(

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities refteetnet tax effects of temporary differences betwtbe carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes aneithtax basis. Net deferred tax assets are includether assets in the consolidated balance
sheets.
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The significant components of the Corporation’setiefd tax assets and liabilities are as follows:
At December 31,

2013 2012

(In Thousands)

Deferred tax assets:

Allowance for loan and lease losses $ 537 % 5,89(
Deferred compensation 1,14¢ 1,13¢
State net operating loss carryforwards 73C 712
Write-down of foreclosed properties — 18¢
Non-accrual loan interest 733 863
Capital loss carryforwards 35 35
Unrealized loss on securities 21t —
Other 48¢ 50t
Total deferred tax assets before valuation allowanc 8,71¢ 9,33:
Valuation allowance (67) (8
Total deferred tax assets 8,64¢ 9,32«
Deferred tax liabilities:
Leasing and fixed asset activities 4,80z 3,26¢
Unrealized gain on securities — 1,352
Other 122 122
Total deferred tax liabilities 4,92¢ 4,741
Net deferred tax asset $ 3,72 % 4,58

The tax effects of unrealized gains and lossesenivative instruments and unrealized gains ancebss securities are components of other
comprehensive income. A reconciliation of the cleaimgnet deferred tax assets to deferred tax expetsws:

At December 31,

2013 2012
(In Thousands)
Change in net deferred tax assets $ (861) $ 2,101
Deferred taxes allocated to other comprehensiveniec (1,567%) (195)
Deferred income tax (expense) benefit $ (2,429 $ 1,90¢

The Corporation had state net operating loss camvgrds of approximately $14.1 million and $13.6liov at December 31, 2013 and 2012 ,
respectively, which can be used to offset futuatestaxable income. The carryforwards expire betv&3 and 2032 . A valuation allowance
has been established for the future benefits atafile to certain of the state net operating losBes valuation allowance associated with thes
deferred tax assets was $67,000 and $8,000 asceinikeer 31, 2013 and 2012 , respectively. On Jup2®#l, the State of Wisconsin 2011-
2013 Budget Bill, Assembly Bill 40, was signed itdav. The bill provides that, starting with thesfitaxable year beginning after Decembel
2011, and thereafter for the next 19 years, a coetbgroup member that has [@@09 net business loss carryforwards can, aftetrdsing suc
net business loss carryforwards to offset its awaoime for the taxable year and after using shareskk, use up to five percent of the pre-200
net business loss carryforwards to offset the Wisitbincome of their group members on a proport®basis. These net business loss
carryforwards can be used to the extent the indsrattributable to the group’s unitary businesshé# five percent cannot fully be used, the
remainder can be added to the portion that magoffe Wisconsin income of all other combined grongmbers in a subsequent year, until it
is completely used or expired. The Corporationgwels it will be able to fully utilize its Wisconsstate net operating losses under this law an
therefore no valuation allowance has been estalisin its Wisconsin state net operating losses.
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Realization of the deferred tax asset over tindegendent upon the Corporation generating suffi¢@mble earnings in future periods. In
determining that realizing the deferred tax waserliiely than not, the Corporation gave consideratd a number of factors including its
recent earnings history, its expected earningkerfuture, appropriate tax planning strategiesexqdration dates associated with operating
carry forwards.

The provision for income taxes differs from thatguted at the federal statutory corporate taxaat®llows:

Year Ended December 31,

2013 2012
(Dollars In Thousands)

Income before income tax expense $ 21,138 % 13,67¢
Tax expense at statutory federal rate of 34.43%348¢ applied to income before income tax

expense, respectively $ 7,278 % 4,65(
State income tax, net of federal effect 90¢€ 647
Tax-exempt security and loan income, net of TEFRistments (682) (431)
Change in valuation allowance 59 ©)]
Bank-owned life insurance (297) (239
Other 122 12€
Total income tax expense $ 7,38¢ % 4,75(
Effective tax rate 34.9% 34.7%

As of both December 31, 2013 and 2012 , the sumwfaail of the Corporation’s uncertain tax posisdotaled $16,000 . There were no
significant additions to or reductions from theseertain tax positions for the year ended DecerBheP013 . In addition, there were no
settlements of uncertain tax positions. As of Deoen81, 2013 , tax years remaining open for theeStWisconsin tax were 2010 through
2012 . Federal tax years that remained open wel@ 20ough 2012 . As of December 31, 2013 , thexeewmo unrecognized tax benefits that
are expected to significantly increase or decreagen the next twelve months.

Note 16 — Derivative Financial Instruments

The Corporation offers interest rate swap proddesctly to qualified commercial borrowers. The Garation economically hedges client
derivative transactions by entering into offsettintggrest rate swap contracts executed with a frartly. Derivative transactions executed as
part of this program are not designated as acaayhtedge relationships and are markeditrket through earnings each period. The deriv
contracts have mirror-image terms, which resulthépositions’ changes in fair value primarilysafting through earnings each period. The
credit risk and risk of noperformance embedded in the fair value calculatismsfferent between the dealer counterpartiestaadommercie
borrowers which may result in a difference in thamges in the fair value of the mirror-image swdjpge Corporation incorporates credit
valuation adjustments to appropriately reflect bttfown non-performance risk and the counterpantigk in the fair value measurements.
When evaluating the fair value of its derivativentacts for the effects of non-performance anditresk, the Corporation considered the
impact of netting and any applicable credit enharer@s such as collateral postings, thresholds aachgtees.

At December 31, 2013, the aggregate amortizingpnak value of interest rate swaps with various gwrcial borrowers was $31.4 million .
The Corporation receives fixed rates and paysifigatites based upon LIBOR on the swaps with coroigdvorrowers. These interest rate
swaps mature in January, 2014 through Februang 2@@mmercial borrower swaps are completed indeagrethy with each borrower and are
not subject to master netting arrangements. Thasenercial borrower swaps were reported on the Qlaged Balance Sheets as a derivative
asset of $528,000 , included in accrued interestivable and other assets, and as a derivativditlyatit $918,000 , included in accrued interest
payable and other liabilities. In the event of déiffan a commercial borrower interest rate swaphigycounterparty, a right of offset exists to
allow for the commercial borrower to set off amaudtie against the related commercial loan. As @eber 31, 2013, no interest rate swap
were in default and therefore all values for thenowercial borrower swaps are recorded on a gross Within the Corporation’s Consolidated
Balance Sheets.
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At December 31, 2013, the aggregate amortizingnat value of interest rate swaps with dealer ¢tenparties was also $31.4 million . The
Corporation pays fixed rates and receives floatiigs based upon LIBOR on the swaps with dealentegparties. These interest rate swaps
mature in January, 2014 through February, 2023lddeounterparty swaps are subject to mastengedtjreements among the contracts
within each of our banks and are reported on thesGlidated Balance Sheets as a derivative as$&tl& 000 and a net derivative liability of
$28,000 . The value of these swaps was includeddénued interest payable and other liabilitiesfd3ezember 31, 2013 . The gross amount o
dealer counterparty swaps, without regard to tliereeable master netting agreement, was a grossatiee liability of $528,000 an§918,00(
gross derivative asset. No right of offset exisithwhe dealer counterparty swaps.

The table below provides information about the tmraand fair value of the Corporation’s derivatinstruments as of December 31, 2013 an
2012 .

Interest Rate Swap Contracts

Asset Derivatives Liability Derivatives
Balance Sheet Balance Sheet
Location Fair Value Location Fair Value

(In Thousands)

Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments
December 31, 2013 Other assets $ 94€ Other liabilities $ 94¢
December 31, 2012 Other assets $ 3,06¢ Other liabilities $ 3,06¢

No derivative instruments held by the Corporationthe year endeDecember 31, 2013 were considered hedging instrtan&t changes in
the fair value of these instruments are recordeathier non-interest income . Given the mirror-imggyens of the outstanding derivative
portfolio, the change in fair value for the yeaded December 31, 2013 and 2012 had an insignifiogpect to the audited Consolidated
Statements of Income.

Note 17 — Commitments and Contingencies

The Banks are party to financial instruments wihbalance-sheet risk in the normal course of besérnto meet the financing needs of clients.
These financial instruments include commitmentsxiend credit and standby letters of credit andlve, to varying degrees, elements of
credit and interest rate risk in excess of the art®recognized in the Consolidated Financial Statém The contract amounts reflect the e;
of involvement the Banks have in these particulasses of financial instruments.

In the event of non-performance, the Banks’ exposoiicredit loss for commitments to extend credd standby letters of credit is representec
by the contractual amount of these instruments.Bdrgks use the same credit policies in making camanits and conditional obligations as
they do for instruments reflected in the Consobddatinancial Statements. An accrual for creditdesen financial instruments with off-
balance-sheet risk would be recorded separate dronvaluation account related to any such recodrfisancial instrument. As of

December 31, 2013 and 2012 , there were no accredit losses for financial instruments with offidogce-sheet risk.

Financial instruments whose contract amounts reptgsotential credit risk at December 31, 2013 2BitR , respectively, are as follows:

At December 31,

2013 2012
(In Thousands)
Commitments to extend credit, primarily commer&ians $ 282,58. $ 257,15(
Standby letters of credit 19,60: 17,84(

Commitments to extend credit are agreements totteactlient as long as there is no violation of aandition in the contract. Commitments
generally have fixed expiration dates or other teation clauses and may have a fixed interestaagerate which varies with the prime rate or
other market indices and may require payment eka$ince some commitments expire without being/dngpon, the total commitment
amounts do not necessarily represent future caglireenents of the Banks. The Banks evaluate thditarerthiness of each client on a case-by
case basis and generally extend credit only orcarsd basis. Collateral obtained varies but comgismarily of commercial real estate,
accounts receivable, inventory, equipment,

98




Table of Contents

and securities. There is generally no market fonoercial loan commitments, the fair value of whiebuld approximate the present value of
any fees expected to be received as a result aoimenitment. These are not considered to be mhterihe financial statements.

Standby letters of credit are conditional committséssued by the Banks to guarantee the performaireelient to a third party. Generally,
standby letters of credit expire within one yead are collateralized by accounts receivable, egeigiinventory, and commercial properties.
The credit risk involved in issuing letters of ditdd essentially the same as that involved in eaiieg loan facilities to clients. The fair value of
standby letters of credit is recorded as a ligbilihen the standby letter of credit is issued. fetievalue has been estimated to approximate th
fees received by the Banks for issuance. The feeseaorded into income and the fair value of thargntee is decreased ratably over the tern
of the standby letter of credit.

In the normal course of business, various legatgdings involving the Corporation are pending. Mpement, based upon advice from legal
counsel, does not anticipate any significant logses result of these actions. Management beliaesiny liability arising from any such
proceedings currently existing or threatened will Imave a material adverse effect on the Corparatitnancial position, results of operations,
and cash flows.

Note 18 — Fair Value

The Corporation determines the fair market valdetsdinancial instruments based on the fair véiigrarchy established in ASC Topic 820,
which requires an entity to maximize the use ofeobable inputs and minimize the use of unobserviapiets when measuring fair value. Fair
value is defined as the price that would be reakinean orderly transaction that is not a forcedililation or distressed sale at the measureme
date and is based on exit prices. Fair value irmdwssumptions about risk such as nonperformasicenrliability fair values and is a market-
based measurement, not an entity-specific measateige standard describes three levels of infiatisrhay be used to measure fair value.

Level 1— Level 1 inputs are unadjusted quoted prices fivamarkets for identical assets or liabilitieattthe Corporation has the ability to
access at the measurement date.

Level 2— Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted griceluded with Level 1 that are observable forahkset or liability either directly or
indirectly, such as quoted prices for similar aseetliabilities; quoted prices in markets that ao¢ active; or other inputs that are observable c
can be corroborated by observable market dataufustantially the full term of the assets or liai@k.

Level 3— Level 3 inputs are inputs that are supportedthg br no market activity and that are signifitémthe fair value of the assets or
liabilities.

In instances where the determination of the faiueaneasurement is based on inputs from diffeerdls of the fair value hierarchy, the level
in the fair value hierarchy within which the entfeér value measurement falls is based on the lolees! input that is significant to the fair
value measurement in its entirety. The Corporasi@ssessment of the significance of a particufautito the fair value measurement in its
entirety requires judgment and considers factoesifip to the asset or liability.
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Assets and liabilities measured at fair value oecairring basis, segregated by fair value hieraftetgl, are summarized below:

Fair Value Measurements Using
December 31, 2013 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

(In Thousands)

Assets:

Municipal obligations $ — $ 15,48¢ $ — ¢ 15,48¢
Asset backed securities — 1,49¢ — 1,49¢
U.S. Government agency obligations - governmentsped enterprises — 16,24« — 16,24
Collateralized mortgage obligations - governmesi ésl — 111,96¢ — 111,96¢
Collateralized mortgage obligations - governmertrsored enterprises — 34,92: — 34,92:
Interest rate swaps — 94¢ — 94¢
Liabilities:

Interest rate swaps $ — 94€ $ — 94¢€

Fair Value Measurements Using
December 31, 2012 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

(In Thousands)

Assets:

Municipal obligations $ — $ 12,03 $ — 3 12,03¢
U.S. Government agency obligations - governmentisped enterprise! — 19,72: — 19,72:
Collateralized mortgage obligations - governmesi ezl — 151,64! — 151,64!
Collateralized mortgage obligations - governmertrsored enterprises — 17,197 — 17,197
Interest rate swaps — 3,06¢ — 3,06¢
Liabilities:

Interest rate swaps $ — $ 3,06¢ % — 3 3,06¢

For assets and liabilities measured at fair valua cecurring basis, there were no transfers betweelevels during the years ended
December 31, 2013 or 2012 related to the aboveunements.

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value momrecurring basis, segregated by fair value hibgaare summarized below:

As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2013

Fair Value Measurements Using

Balance at Total
December 31, Gains
2013 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 (Losses)
(In Thousands)
Impaired loans $ 13,71¢ $ — 3 13,66¢ $ 53 $ —
Foreclosed properties 33¢ — 33¢ — (59
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As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2012
Fair Value Measurements Using

Balance at Total
December 31, Gains
2012 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 (Losses)
(In Thousands)
Impaired loans $ 8,54¢ % — $ 6,77C $ 1,77¢  $ =
Foreclosed properties 1,57¢ 52¢ 982 63 (600)

Impaired loans that are collateral dependent weitterw down to their fair value less costs to s€$13.7 million and $8.5 million at
December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012 , respgtitarough the establishment of specific reseordsy recording charge-offs when the
carrying value exceeded the fair value. Valuatexrhhiques consistent with the market approachniecapproach, or cost approach were use
to measure fair value and primarily included obabte inputs for the individual impaired loans begwgluated such as current appraisals,
recent sales of similar assets or other observablet data. In cases where such inputs were unatide, specifically discounts applied to
appraisal values to adjust such values to curremket conditions or to reflect net realizable valie impaired loan balance is reflected within
Level 3 of the hierarchy. The quantification of bservable inputs for Level 3 values range from 1380% . The weighted average of those
unobservable inputs as of the measurement datec#rbber 31, 2013 was 64% . The majority of the ireddoans in the Level 3 category are
considered collateral dependent loans.

Non-financial assets subject to measurement at féilevan a non-recurring basis included foreclosegerties. Foreclosed properties, upon
initial recognition, are re-measured and reportddiavalue through a charge-off to the allowafmeloan and lease losses, if deemed
necessary, based upon the fair value of the fasedi@roperty. The fair value of a foreclosed priyperpon initial recognition, is estimated
using a market approach or Level 2 inputs baseabservable market data, typically an appraisalemel 3 inputs based upon assumptions
specific to the individual property or equipmenéviel 3 inputs typically include unobservable inpaiish as management applied discounts
used to further reduce values to a net realizatliegevand may be used in situations when observalgs become stale. Foreclosed property
fair value inputs may transition to Level 1 uponeipt of an accepted offer for the sale of theteeldoreclosed property. As of December 31,
2013, there were no foreclosed properties suppdngen Level 3 valuation. Subsequent impairmenfemclosed properties are recorded as a
loss on foreclosed properties. During the year diidlecember 31, 2013 , $1.4 million of outstandimanis were transferred to foreclosed
properties. Based upon an evaluation of value déireof the Corporation’s foreclosed propertiespairment losses of $59,000 on foreclosed
properties were recognized for the year ended Dbeefil, 2013 . The activity of the Corporation’seidosed properties is summarized as
follows:

As of and for the Year Ended December 31,

2013 2012
(In Thousands)
Foreclosed properties at the beginning of the perio $ 1572 $ 2,23¢
Loans transferred to foreclosed properties, at tmfeost or fair value 1,381 1,511
Payments to priority lien holders of foreclosedpmuies — 367
Proceeds from sale of foreclosed properties (2,739 (1,955
Net gain on sale of foreclosed properties 17¢€ 15
Impairment valuation (59 (600
Foreclosed properties at the end of the period $ 33§ 1,57¢

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Corporation is required to disclose estimaéidvialues for its financial instruments. Fair vakstimates, methods, and assumptions,
consistent with exit price concepts for fair valneasurements, are set forth below:

101




Table of Contents

Financial assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Securities available-for-sale

Loans and lease receivables, net
Federal Home Loan Bank stock

Cash surrender value of life insurance
Accrued interest receivable

Interest rate swaps

Financial liabilities:

Deposits

Federal Home Loan Bank and other borrowing
Junior subordinated notes

Interest rate swaps

Accrued interest payable

Off balance sheet items:

Standby letters of credit
Commitments to extend credit

*Not meaningful

Financial assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Securities available-for-sale

Loans and lease receivables, net
Federal Home Loan Bank stock

Cash surrender value of life insurance
Accrued interest receivable

Interest rate swaps

Financial liabilities:

Deposits

Federal Home Loan Bank and other borrowing
Junior subordinated notes

Interest rate swaps

Accrued interest payable

Off balance sheet items:

Standby letters of credit
Commitments to extend credit

December 31, 2013

Carrying
Amount Fair Value
Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
(In Thousands)
81,28t $ 81,29 $ 66,26¢ 4,02¢ 11,00(
180,11¢ 180,11¢ — 180,11 —
967,05( 963,93 — 13,66¢ 950,27
1,25¢ 1,25¢ — — 1,25¢
23,14 23,14 23,142 — —
3,231 3,231 3,231 — —
94¢€ 94¢€ — 94¢ —
1,129,85! $ 1,131,000 $ 684,34 446,65¢ —
11,93¢ 11,97¢ — 11,97¢ —
10,31¢ 7,08¢ — — 7,08¢
94¢€ 94¢€ — 94¢€ —
1,052 1,052 1,05z — —
21¢ 21¢ — — 21¢
_ * * * *
December 31, 2012
Carrying
Amount Fair Value
Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
(In Thousands)

85,58t $ 85,59 $ 74,94( 5,15¢ 5,50(
200,59¢ 200,59¢ — 200,59¢ —
896,56( 905,50: — 6,77( 898,73.
1,14¢ 1,14¢ — — 1,14¢
22,27 22,27 22,27 — —
3,217 3,217 3,217 — —
3,06¢ 3,06¢ — 3,06¢ —
1,092,25. $ 1,102,31 % 649,34¢ 452,97( —
12,40¢ 13,17( — 13,17( —
10,31¢ 7,04¢ — — 7,04¢
3,06¢ 3,06¢ — 3,06¢ —
1,711 1,711 1,711 — —
197 197 — — 197
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*Not meaningful

Disclosure of fair value information about finandistruments, for which it is practicable to estim that value, is required whether or not
recognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheetsaadaswhere quoted market prices are not availfailesalues are based on estimates using
present value or other valuation techniques. Thedeniques are significantly affected by the asgionp used, including the discount rate and
estimates of future cash flows. In that regard dived fair value estimates cannot be substaatiay comparison to independent markets

in many cases, could not be realized in immedietidesnent of the instruments. Certain financiatrimsients and all non-financial instruments
are excluded from the disclosure requirements. Atingly, the aggregate fair value amounts presedtedot necessarily represent the
underlying value of the Corporation.

Cash and cash equivalentsThe carrying amounts reported for cash and due franks, interest bearing deposits held by the Gatjom,
accrued interest receivable and accrued intergsthba approximate fair value because of their imiatedavailability and because they do not
present unanticipated credit concerns. The carryahge of commercial paper, included in the cash@ash equivalents category, approxim
fair value due to the short-term maturity structoféhe instrument. As of December 31, 2013 and22Gihe Corporation held $11.0 milli@amd
$5.5 million , respectively, of commercial papeneTfair value of commercial paper is considereaweel 3 input due to the lack of available
independent pricing sources. The carrying valulerokered certificates of deposit purchased is exeint to purchase price of the instrument a
the Corporation has not elected a fair value opfiiorthese instruments. The fair value of brokeredificates of deposits purchased is based ¢
the discounted value of contractual cash flowsgusinliscount rate reflective of rates currentheoffl for deposits of similar remaining
maturities. As of December 31, 2013 and 2012 Cbporation held $4.0 million and $5.1 million spectively, of brokered certificates of
deposits.

Securities: The fair value measurements of investment secsirdtie determined by a third party pricing serviteclv considers observable d
that may include dealer quotes, market spreadh,fass, the U.S. Treasury yield curve, trade exiecudata, market consensus prepayment
speeds, credit information and the securities’ seamd conditions, among other things. On a sanmgdis pthe fair value measurements are
subject to independent verification by anotheripgource on a quarterly basis to review for reabteness. In addition, the Corporation
reviews the third-party valuation methodology gpegiodic basis. Any significant differences in \ation are reviewed with appropriate
members of management who have the relevant teadlexpertise to assess the results. The Corporh#ierdetermined that these valuations
are classified in Level 2 of the fair value hietarcWhen the independent pricing service does ratige a fair value measurement for a
particular security, the Corporation will estimé#te fair value based on specific information akeatth security. Fair values derived in this
manner are classified in Level 3 of the fair vahigrarchy.

Loans and LeasesThe fair value estimation process for the loanfpba uses an exit price concept and reflects dist® that the Corporation
believes are consistent with liquidity discountstia market place. Fair values are estimated fdfgims of loans with similar financial
characteristics. The fair value of performing andperforming loans is calculated by discountingesithed and expected cash flows through
the estimated maturity using estimated market thigsreflect the credit and interest rate riskeir@mt in the portfolio of loans and then apph
a discount factor based upon the embedded crekibfithe loan and the fair value of collateralwséw nonperforming loans when the loan is
collateral dependent. The estimate of maturityaisenl on the Banks’ historical experience with repanyts for each loan classification,
modified, as required, by an estimate of the eféécturrent economic and lending conditions. Sigaifit unobservable inputs include, but are
not limited to, discounts (investor yield premiunagplied to fair value calculations to further detme the exit price value of a portfolio of
loans.

Federal Home Loan Bank StockThe carrying amount of FHLB stock equals its faitue because the shares may be redeemed by the FHI
at their carrying amount of $100 per share.

Cash Surrender Value of Life Insurance:The carrying amount of cash surrender value ofitifeirance approximates its fair value as the
carrying value represents the current settlemewoiuain

Deposits: The fair value of deposits with no stated matustych as demand deposits and money market accaiatgjal to the amount
payable on demand. The fair value of time depdsit@sed on the discounted value of contractudl ftaw's. The discount rate is estimated
using the rates currently offered for depositsiwiilar remaining maturities. The fair value estiemto not include the intangible value that
results from the funding provided by deposit lidlds compared to borrowing funds in the market.

Borrowed Funds: Market rates currently available to the Corporato Banks for debt with similar terms and remajmimaturities are used
to estimate fair value of existing debt.
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Financial Instruments with Off-Balance-Sheet RisksThe fair value of the Corporation’s off-balance-shi@struments is based on quoted
market prices and fees currently charged to entersimilar agreements, taking into account theaiaing terms of the agreements and the
credit standing of the related counterparty. Comraiits to extend credit and standby letters of teedigenerally not marketable. Furtherm
interest rates on any amounts drawn under such d@omemts would generally be established at markesrat the time of the draw. Fair value
would principally derive from the present valudfeds received for those products.

Interest Rate Swaps:The carrying amount and fair value of existing d@ative financial instruments are based upon indéeenvaluation
models, which use widely accepted valuation tealesgincluding discounted cash flow analysis onetkpected cash flows of each derivative
contract. This analysis reflects the contractuathteof the derivatives, including the period to unéy, and uses observable market-based
inputs, including interest rate curves and implrethtilities. The Corporation incorporates credituation adjustments to appropriately reflect
both its own nonperformance risk and the respeciwaterparty’s nonperformance risk in the fairneaineasurements. In adjusting the fair
value of its derivative contracts for the effechohperformance risk, the Corporation has consitifire impact of netting and any applicable
credit enhancements, such as collateral postihgessholds, mutual puts and guarantees.

Limitations: Fair value estimates are made at a discrete potithe, based on relevant market information afiorimation about the financial
instrument. These estimates do not reflect any jpm@nor discount that could result from offering &ale at one time the Corporation’s entire
holding of a particular financial instrument. Besawmno market exists for a significant portion e @orporation’s financial instruments, fair
value estimates are based on judgments regardingefaxpected loss experience, current economidiions, risk characteristics of various
financial instruments, and other factors. Thesenadées are subjective in nature and involve unogigs and matters of significant judgment
and, therefore, cannot be determined with precisbdranges in assumptions could significantly affeetestimates.

Fair value estimates are based on existing balstmeet financial instruments without attemptinggtreate the value of anticipated future
business and the value of assets and liabilitizsate not considered financial instruments. Intaad the tax ramifications related to the
realization of the unrealized gains and lossesheare a significant effect on fair value estimates aere not considered in the estimates.

Note 19 — Condensed Parent Only Financial Informatin
The following represents the condensed financiarmation of FBFS - Only:

Condensed Balance Sheets

As of December 31,
2013 2012

(In Thousands)

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents $ 4858 $ 1,032

Investments in subsidiaries, at equity 127,45( 121,12.

Leasehold improvements and equipment, net 78¢ 47¢

Other assets 1,921 2,19¢
Total assets $ 135,01 $ 124,82¢

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity

Borrowed funds $ 22,25. % 22,25:

Other liabilities 3,48¢ 3,03¢
Total liabilities 25,74( 25,28¢

Stockholders’ equity 109,27" 99,53¢
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 135,01 $ 124,82t
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Condensed Statements of Income

Interest income
Interest expense
Net interest expense
Non-interest income
Consulting and rental income from consolidated slidnses
Other
Total non-interest income
Non-interest expense

Loss before income tax benefit and equity in umiisted net income of consolidated
subsidiaries

Income tax benefit
Loss before equity in undistributed net incomeaisolidated subsidiaries
Equity in undistributed net income of consolidasedbsidiaries

Net income

105

For the Year Ended December 31,

2013 2012
(In Thousands)

—  $ —
1,952 3,82t
(1,952 (3,825
9,73¢ 8,90/

34 34
9,77 8,93¢
10,55¢ 9,61°t
(2,73¢) (4,507)
(1,050 (1,722
(1,68¢) (2,780)
15,43 11,70¢
13,74¢  $ 8,92¢
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Condensed Statements of Cash Flows

Operating activities
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskl irs@perating activities:
Equity in undistributed earnings of consolidatetsidiaries
Share-based compensation
Excess tax benefit from share-based compensation
Increase (decrease) in other liabilities
Other, net

Net cash used in operating activities
Investing activities
Dividends received from subsidiaries
Capital contributions to subsidiaries

Net provided by investing activities
Financing activities
Net decrease in short-term borrowed funds
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt
Repayment of long-term debt
Proceeds from issuance of common stock
Proceeds from exercise of stock options
Purchase of treasury stock
Excess tax benefit from share-based compensation
Dividends paid

Net cash used in financing activities
Increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning ofehied
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period

106

For the Year Ended December 31,

2013 2012
(In Thousands)
13,74¢  $ 8,92¢
(15,439 (11,706
311 254
(145) 47
867 (1,137
(34) (297)
(68¢9) (4,007)
8,00( 6,00(
(850 —
7,15(C 6,00(
— (800)
— 6,21t
— (33,289
— 27,074
1,47¢ 22
(1,782 (21€)
14t 47
(2,475 (73€)
(2,63¢) (1,68%)
3,82 314
1,032 71€
4,855 % 1,03z




Table of Contents

Note 20 — Condensed Quarterly Earnings (unaudited)

2013 2012
First Second Third Fourth First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
(Dollars in Thousands, Except per share data)
Interest income $ 13,31¢ $ 13,214: $ 13,58¢ $ 13,76¢ $ 13,637 $ 13,94: $ 14,03 $ 13,15¢
Interest expense (3,090 (2,949 (2,887) (2,779 (4,707 (4,339 (4,117 (3,727)
Net interest income 10,22¢ 10,19: 10,69¢ 10,98 8,92¢ 9,60¢ 9,91t 9,431
Provision for loan losses (80) (54) (109 1,20z (509 (2,045 (850 (849
Non-interest income 1,95: 2,17¢ 2,12¢ 2,191 1,85( 1,904 2,24¢ 2,69¢
Non-interest expense (7,17¢) (7,490 (7,147 (8,55¢€) (6,832) (7,139 (7,25)) (7,446
Income before income tax expense 4,92¢ 4,82: 5,56 5,821 3,44( 2,33¢ 4,06: 3,831
Income taxes (1,680) (2,690 (1,95¢) (2,06)) (1,230) (777 (1,447 (1,30¢)
Net income $ 324 $ 313t $ 360¢ $ 3,76( $ 221C $ 1568 $ 262: $ 2,52¢
Per common share data:
Basic earnings per commonshare $ 08: $ 08 $ 092 $ 09 $ 08 $ 06C $ 09¢ $ 0.8¢
Diluted earnings per common share 0.8: 0.8C 0.91 0.9t 0.84 0.6( 0.9¢ 0.8¢
Dividends declared per share 0.1¢ 0.14 0.1¢ 0.1¢ 0.07 0.07 0.07 0.07
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
First Business Financial Services, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balaheets of First Business Financial Services,dnd subsidiaries as Bfecember 3:
2013 and 2012 , and the related consolidated stmitsnof income, comprehensive income, change®akisblders’equity, and cash flows f
the years then ended. These consolidated finastaééments are the responsibility of the Compmamyanagement. Our responsibility i
express an opinion on these consolidated finasta¢ments based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstaits of the Public Company Accounting OversighamBioUnited States). Those stand.
require that we plan and perform the audit to ebta@asonable assurance about whether the finaptaggments are free of mate
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on aldasis, evidence supporting the amounts and disas in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting princied and significant estimates made by managenentelhas evaluating the overall finan
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetaemeferred to above present fairly, in all matferespects, the financial position of F
Business Financial Services, Inc. and subsidiasest December 31, 2013 and 2QX&hd the results of their operations and theih ¢asvs fol
the years then ended, in conformity with U.S. galheraccepted accounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stdsdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Blofdnited States), First Busini
Financial Services, Inc.’s internal control overdicial reporting as of December 31, 2013 , basedriteria established imternal Control -
Integrated Framework (199Zissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatahthe Treadway Commission (COSO), and our re
dated March 7, 2014 expressed an unqualified opiaiothe effectiveness of the Company’s internatmd over financial reporting.

/sl KPMG LLP

Chicago, lllinois
March 7, 2014
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountasion Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Corporation’s management, with the participatbthe Corporation’s Chief Executive Officer a@tlief Financial Officer, has
evaluated the Corporation’s disclosure controls gnodedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) andlB%e]} under the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934, as amended). Based upon that evaluatierCorporation’s Chief Executive Officer and CHiéfiancial Officer have concluded that
the Corporation’s disclosure controls and proceslurere effective as of December 31, 2013 .

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reportirg

There was no change in the Corporation’s interoatrol over financial reporting (as such term ifired in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-
15(f) under the Securities and Exchange Act of 1834amended) that occurred during the quarterdeBeéeember 31, 2013 that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaff, the Corporation’s internal control over fineheceporting.

Management’'s Annual Report on Internal Control overFinancial Reporting

The Corporation’s management is responsible fabdishing and maintaining adequate internal cordvelr financial reporting, as
such term is defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d)18(der the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, asratad. The Corporation’s internal
control over financial reporting is a process desdjto provide reasonable assurance regardin@liability of financial reporting and the
preparation of the Corporation’s financial statetadar external purposes in accordance with gelyesatepted accounting principles.

Management, under the supervision of the Chief &txee Officer and the Chief Financial Officer, assed the effectiveness of the
Corporation’s internal control over financial refiog based on criteria for effective internal cohwver financial reporting established in
Internal Control— Integrated Framework (1992)ssued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organimatiche Treadway Commission (COSO).
Based on this assessment, management has detertimabdloe Corporation’s internal control over figa reporting was effective as of
December 31, 2013 .

KPMG LLP, the independent registered public acciognirm that audited the Consolidated Financiat&ments of the Corporation
included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, hasuisd an attestation report on the effectivenetiseo€orporation’s internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2013 . Tdpmort, which expresses an unqualified opinion enetfiectiveness of the Corporation’s
internal control over financial reporting as of Batber 31, 2013, is included under the heading ¢iRegf Independent Registered Public
Accounting Firm.”
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
First Business Financial Services, Inc.:

We have audited First Business Financial Services's internal control over financial reporting asDecember 31, 2013based on criter
established ininternal Control - Integrated Framework (199%sued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatiohshe Treadwa
Commission (COSO). First Business Financial Sesvibe.'s management is responsible for maintaining effectnternal control ow
financial reporting and for its assessment of tffecéveness of internal control over financial oefing, included in the accompany
Managemens Annual Report on Internal Control over Finandraporting. Our responsibility is to express an minon First Busine:
Financial Services, Inc.’s internal control overaicial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the statsdof the Public Company Accounting Oversight ifq@nited States). Those stand:
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtaasonable assurance about whether effectivenaiteontrol over financial reporting w
maintained in all material respects. Our auditudeld obtaining an understanding of internal coraxar financial reporting, assessing the
that a material weakness exists, and testing aalli@ing the design and operating effectivenesatefnal control based on the assessed
Our audit also included performing such other pdoces as we considered necessary in the circunestaée believe that our audit provide
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A companys internal control over financial reporting is @@ess designed to provide reasonable assuranaeliregthe reliability of financie
reporting and the preparation of financial statetmdor external purposes in accordance with gelyemicepted accounting principles
companys internal control over financial reporting inclediose policies and procedures that (1) pertatheéanaintenance of records tha
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleet ttansactions and dispositions of the assetseottimpany; (2) provide reasonable assui
that transactions are recorded as necessary toitpgraparation of financial statements in accorédamdth generally accepted accoun
principles, and that receipts and expenditureshef dompany are being made only in accordance withoaizations of management
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanalsksurance regarding prevention or timely deteafounauthorized acquisition, use
disposition of the company’s assets that could lzaneterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or @etaisstatements. Also, projections of
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods atgexct to the risk that controls may become inadégjbecause of changes in conditions, o
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate.

In our opinion, First Business Financial Servides, maintained, in all material respects, effegtinternal control over financial reporting a:
December 31, 2013, based on criteria establishédténnal Control - Integrated Framework (199Bsued by the Committee of Sponso
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO).

We also have audited, in accordance with the stdsdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@nited States), the consolidas
financial statements of First Business Financial/i8es, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31320d 2012 and the related consolida
statements of income, comprehensive income, changs®ckholdersequity, and cash flows for the years then ended,am report date
March 7, 2014 expressed an unqualified opiniorhasé consolidated financial statements.

/sl KPMG LLP

Chicago, lllinois
March 7, 2014
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Item 9B. Other Information

None.

PART III.

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corpora¢ Governance

(a) Directors of the Registrar. The information included in the definitive Pro®yatement for the Annual Meeting of the Sharehalde!
to be held on May 19, 2014 under the captions “lfenElection of Directors,” “Corporate Governarienciples and Practices”
and “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reportimgpliance” is incorporated herein by reference.

(b) Executive Officers of the Registri. The information presented in Item 1 of this doeutris incorporated herein by referei

(c) Code of Ethics The Corporation has adopted a code of ethicsagtypé to all employees, including the principateutive officer,
principal financial officer and principal accourginfficer of the Corporation. The FBFS Code of E$his posted on the
Corporation’s website at www.firstbusiness.com. Thgporation intends to satisfy the disclosure megpents under Item 5.05(c)
of Form 8-K regarding any amendment to or waivethefcode with respect to its Chief Executive Gffiand Chief Financial
Officer, principal accounting officer, and persgesforming similar functions, by posting such infation to the Corporation’s
website.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

Information with respect to compensation for ouediors and officers included in the definitive Bré&tatement for the Annual
Meeting of the Shareholders to be held on May D@42under the captions “Executive Compensationiigary Compensation Table,”
“Long Term Incentive Plans,” “Outstanding Equity Awds at December 31, 2013 ,” “Disclosure Regardiagmination and Change in Control
Provisions” and “Director Compensation” is incorged herein by reference.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial @Qvners and Management and Related Stockholder Matter

Information with respect to security ownership eftain beneficial owners and management includeddrdefinitive Proxy Stateme
for the Annual Meeting of the Shareholders to bd lba May 19, 2014 under the caption “Principal iehalders” is incorporated herein by
reference.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transa@ns, and Director Independence

Information with respect to certain relationships &elated transactions included in the definifvexy Statement for the Annual
Meeting of the Shareholders to be held on May Dd42inder the captions “Related Party Transactiansg’“Corporate Governance Principles
and Practices” is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

Information with respect to principal accountingseand services included in the definitive Proxat&hent for the Annual Meeting of
the Shareholders to be held on May 19, 2014 urecaption “Miscellaneous” is incorporated herginréference.

PART IV.

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules
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The Consolidated Financial Statements listed onrttiex included under ftem 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
are filed as a part of this Form 10-K. All financséatement schedules have been included in thedidated Financial Statements or are eithe
not applicable or not significant.

Exhibits . See Exhibit Index.
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Signatures

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredatyp authorized.

FIRST BUSINESS FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC.

/sl Corey A. Chambas
Corey A. Chambas Chief Executive Officer March 7, 2014

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe following persons on behalf of 1
registrant and in the capacities and on the dattisdted.

Signature Title Date

/sl Corey A. Chambas Chief Executive Officer March 7, 2014
Corey A. Chambas

/sl James F. Ropella Chief Financial Officer March 7, 2014
James F. Ropella

/sl Shauna M. Gnorski Chief Accounting Officer March 7, 2014
Shauna M. Gnorski

/sl Jerome J. Smith Chairman of the Board of Directors March 7, 2014
Jerome J. Smith

/sl Mark D. Bugher Director March 7, 2014
Mark D. Bugher

/sl Jan A. Eddy Director March 7, 2014
Jan A. Eddy
/s/ John J. Harris Director March 7, 2014

John J. Harris

/sl Gerald L. Kilcoyne Director March 7, 2014
Gerald L. Kilcoyne

/s/ John M. Silseth Director March 7, 2014
John M. Silseth

/s/ Barbara H. Stephens Director March 7, 2014
Barbara H. Stephens

/s/ Dean W. Voeks Director March 7, 2014
Dean W. Voeks
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Exhibit Index

Exhibit Name

Amended and Restated Articles of IncorporatibRirst Business Financial Services, Inc., asraded (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Annual Reportr@nmm 10-K filed on March 13, 2009)

Amended and Restated Bylaws of First Busii@sancial Services, Inc., as amended (incorporayeceference to
Exhibit 3.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed January 31, 2012)

Pursuant to Item 601(b)(4)(iii) of Regulati®+K, the Registrant agrees to furnish to the S&éearand Exchange
Commission, upon request, any instrument definregrights of holders of long-term debt not beingistered that is
not filed as an exhibit to this Annual Report onfRd.0-K. No such instrument authorizes securitiesxcess of 10%
of the total assets of the Registrant.

Rights Agreement, dated as of June 5, 20a8/dem the Registrant and Computershare Invest@ic®st Inc.
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to thgReation Statement on Form 8-A filed on June@&)

Form of Common Stock Certificate (incorporabgdeference to Exhibit 4.3 to Amendment No. th® Registration
Statement on Form S-1 filed on November 26, 2012)

2001 Equity Incentive Plan (incorporated &igrence to Exhibit 10.1 to the Amended RegistraBtatement on
Form 10 filed on April 28, 2005)

Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement ¢giporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the AneehRegistration
Statement on Form 10 filed on April 28, 2005)

2006 Equity Incentive Plan (incorporated éfgrence to Appendix B to the Corporation’s Proigt&ment for the
2006 Annual Meeting of Shareholders filed on Masdh 2006)

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement (incorfeddy reference to Exhibit 4.4 to the Registratiéatement on Form
S-8 filed on September 28, 2006)

2012 Equity Incentive Plan (incorporated &ference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Quarterly ReporfFonm 10-Q filed on
July 27, 2012)

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement (incorfetdy reference to Exhibit 4.5 to the Registrat@éatement on Form
S-8 filed on August 13, 2012)

Form of Executive Change-in-Control and Sawee Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibil to the
Current Report on Form 8-K filed on February 100&0

Amended and Restated Agreement effectiveadgriy 2005 between the Registrant and Corey Anbas
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to therént Report on Form 8-K filed on November 13, @00

Annual Incentive Bonus Program (incorpordtgdeference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Current ReparfForm 8-K filed
on January 29, 2014)

Subsidiaries of the Registrant (incorporateddfgrence to Exhibit 21 to the Amended RegistraStatement on
Form 10 filed on April 28, 2005)
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Consent of KPMG LLP
Certification of the Chief Executive Officer
Certification of the Senior Vice Presidend &hief Financial Officer

Certification of the Chief Executive OfficercaBenior Vice President and Chief Financial Offiparsuant to 18
U.S.C. Section 1350

Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of thar®@holders (to be filed with the Securities andhzxge
Commission under Regulation 14A within 120 daysraflecember 31, 2013; except to the extent speatific
incorporated by reference, the Proxy Statementh®Annual Meeting of the Shareholders shall naddemed to be
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commiss®pat of this Annual Report on Form 10-K)

The following financial information from FirBusiness Financial Services, Inc.’s Annual ReparForm 10-K for
the years ended December 31, 2013, formatted inLX@Ktensible Business Reporting Language): (i) €xidated
Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2013 and Dec&hp2012, (ii) Consolidated Statements of Incoorelie
years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, (iii) Goladed Statements of Comprehensive Income foydags
ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, (iv) Consolidatatdments of Changes in Stockholders’ EquityHeryears
ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, (v) Consolidéiz@ments of Cash Flows for the years ended Dezedih
2013 and 2012, and (vi) the Notes to Consolidairdr€ial Statements+

Submitted electronically with this Annual Report

115



Exhibit 23
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

The Board of Directors
First Business Financial Services, Inc.:

We consent to the incorporation by reference irréiggstration statements (No. 333-129059, No. 383274 and No. 333-137635) on Forn8S-
of First Business Financial Services, Inc. and &lidises of our reports dated March 7, 2QMith respect to the consolidated balance shd
First Business Financial Services, Inc. and sulsgB as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, and thtedetonsolidated statements of incc
comprehensive income, changes in stockholderstyeqnd cash flows for the years then ended, aacetfectiveness of internal control o
financial reporting as of December 31, 2013, whigports appear in the December 31, 2013, AnnuabRem Form 10K of First Busines
Financial Services, Inc.

/sl KPMG LLP

Chicago, lllinois
March 7, 2014



Exhibit 31.1

Certifications

I, Corey A. Chambas, certify that:

1.

2.

| have reviewed this Annual Report on FormKL6f First Business Financial Services, |

Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact otamstate a material fact necessary t
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgtsiunder which such statements were made, nigtadisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amngtfe@ periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer andrk responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd &ave:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedarecaused such disclosure controls and procedotee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtubsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isihg prepared;

b. Designed such internal control over finanaiglarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in ataace with generally accepted accounting principles

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registradisslosure controls and procedures and presentglsi report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cousyeldis report based on
such evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in thestegnt’s internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimaport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaft, the registrant’s internal control over finalceporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer antddve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrastboard of directors (or persons performing theweden!
functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cbotrer financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrigistrant’s ability to record, process, summasiad report financial
information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that inneadvymanagement or other employees who have a samiifiole in the
registrant’s internal control over financial repogt

/sl Corey A. Chambas
Corey A. Chambas
Chief Executive Officer
March 7, 2014




Exhibit 31.2

Certifications

[, James F. Ropella, certify that:

1.

2.

| have reviewed this Annual Report on FormKL6f First Business Financial Services, |

Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact otamstate a material fact necessary t
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgtsiunder which such statements were made, nigtadisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amngtfe@ periods presented in this report;

The registrant's other certifying officer anaré responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd &ave:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedareaused such disclosure controls and procedotee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhubsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isihg prepared;

b. Designed such internal control over finanaiglarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in ataace with generally accepted accounting principles

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registralisglosure controls and procedures and presentiisi report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cousyeldis report based on
such evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in thegtegnt's internal control over financial reportihgt occurred during the
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the regis's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an ahneport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaff, the registrant's internal control over finahceporting; and

The registrant's other certifying officer anglalve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thataumnmittee of the registrant's board of direct@ispersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cbotrer financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrdgistrant's ability to record, process, summaaizé report financial
information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that inneadvymanagement or other employees who have a sagmiifiole in the
registrant's internal control over financial repugt

/sl James F. Ropella
James F. Ropella
Chief Financial Officer
March 7, 2014




Exhibit 32

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Sd¢ion 1350

Solely for the purposes of complying with 18 U.SSection 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section Bl dSarbane®xley Act of 2002, we
the undersigned Chief Executive Officer and ChiefaRcial Officer, of First Business Financial Sees, Inc., a Wisconsin Corporation |
“Corporation”), hereby certify, based on our knogde that the Annual Report on Form KOef the Corporation for the year ent
December 31, 2013 (the “ReportQlly complies with the requirements of Section d)3¢r Section 15(d) of the Securities Exchange &
1934, as amended, and that information containgierReport fairly presents, in all material respethe financial condition and results
operations of the Corporation.

/sl Corey A. Chambas
Corey A. Chambas
Chief Executive Officer
March 7, 2014

/sl James F. Ropella
James F. Ropella
Chief Financial Officer
March 7, 2014




